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SEC Bldg. EDSA, Greenhills
Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila

Attention:
' Director

Afty, Justina F. Callangan

12 Tuly 2013

e
Corporation Finance Department R —

Re:  Definitive Information Statement for the
2013 Annual Stockholders' Meeting
of Vantapge Equities, Inc. (“Vantage™)

Gentlemen:

On behalf of our client, Vantage, we submit herewith its Definitive Information
Statement or SEC Form 20-IS for its 2013 Annual Stockholders Meeting, incorporating
the following amendments as requested in your letter dated 27 June 2013:

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

SEC Form 20-IS Preliminary filed on June 27, 2013

Checklist of Requirements

Page
No.

‘Remarks

B. Control and Compensation Information

RN AR
N (S A5} ] 5) BT

Furnished information required by Part
IV paragraph © of “Annex C”

Submit signed copy of the
Notice of Annual Stockholder’s
Meeting

Done. Please see
completed notice.

| Disclose equity ownership of

foreigners on a per class basis,
if any

Done. Please see
Page 3 - of the
Definitive 20-IS.

&) Security Ownership of Certain
Record and Beneficial Owners of
more than 5% -

X ) iR B ). FIER
DERIGER

Information required by Part IV

paragraph (4), (D)(1) and

(D)(3) of “Annex C’

Identify the person/s who will
vote the shares held by Creative
Wisdom, Inc.

Done. Please see
Page 4 of the
Definitive 20-IS.

(A)(1) Identify Directors, including
independent Directors and Executive
Officers

(1) Submitupdate Certification
on the Qualifications and
Disqualification of Independent
Directors

SEC Notice dated
20 October 2006
states that ‘‘the
certification shall
be submitted within
30 days from the
date of election or
appointment” of an
independent




p—

(2) The company is reminded
of SEC Memorandum Circular
No. 9, Series of 2011 re: Term
Limits for  Independent
Directors

director. In this

regard, the
Corporation
undertakes to file |
the said
Certification during
the said time,

The  Corporation
notes the reminder
on the term limits
for  independent
directors and
undertakes to
submit the same
within the period
prescribed.

(D) (1) Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions

(1) In addition to the disclosures in the

financial statements which are
required under SFAS/IAS No. 24 on
the Related Party Disclosures,
registrant shall describe under this
item the elements of the transactions
that are necessary for an
understanding of the transactions’
business purpose and economic
substance, their effect on the financial
statements, and the special risks or
contingencies arising from these
transactions.  The  Commission
considers the discussion of the
following to be necessary:

@

the Dbusiness purpose of the
arrangement;

(®)

identification of the related partics
transaction  business with  the
registrant and nature of the
relationship;

(c)

how tramsaction prices were
determined by parties;

(@

if disclosures  represent that
transactions have been evaluated for
faimess, a description of how the
evaluation was made; and

(e

any ongoing contractual or other
commitments as a result of the
arrangement

(2) The disclosure shall also include
information about parties that fall outside
the definition “related parties” under
SEAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related have a
relationship that enables the parties to
negotiate terms of material transactions

Discussion under this item
should be correlated with the
Notes of the 2012
Consolidated Financial
Statements

The related party

trangactions with the
subsidiaries of
Vantage are
¢liminated in the
Consolidated
Financial

Statements. Please
see pages 9-10 of
the Definitive 20-IS.




that may not be available from other, more
clearly independent parties on an arm’s
length basis. For example, an entity may
be established and operated by individuals
that were former senior management of, or
have some other current or former
relationship with, a registrant. The
purpose of the entity may be to own assets
used by the registrant or provide financing
or services to be registrant. Although
former management or persons with other
relationships may not meet the definition
of a related party pursuant to SFAS/IAS
No. 24, the former management positions
may result in negotiation of ferms that are
more or less favorable that those available
on arm’s-length basis from clearly
independent third parties that are material
to the registrant’s financial position or
financial performance.

In some cases, investors may be unable to
understand the registrant’s reported results
of operations without clear explanation of
these arrangements and relationships.
Items of similar nature may be disclosed
in aggregate except when separate
disclosure is necessary for an
understanding of the effect of related party
transaction on the financial statements,

DHEIEERIS
If action to be taken with regard to
election, any bonus, profit sharing,
pension/retirement plan granting of
extension of any portion, warrant or right
to purchase any securities, furnished the
following:

(1) Summary Compensation Table

%) ’
Pursuant to the requirements of the
Securities Regulation Code, the issued
has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto
duly authorized

10to 11

"

Not complied with. Indicate
compensation of the CEO and
top four (4) most highly
compensated Executive Officers
and Directors as a group.

HR

Done. Please see
page 10-11 of the
Definitive 20-1S

Signature and Title

13

Incomplete, comply with the
highlighted portion

Done. Please see
page 14 of the
Definitive 20-IS




Audited Financial Statements and
Interim Financial Statements

Submit:

(i) 2011 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements;

(if) Statement of Management’s
Responsibility signed under
oath by the following:
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer,

Done. Please see
Annex “A” and “B-
l”

All other registrants shall provide the
following information:

For both full fiscal years and interim
periods, disclose the company’s and its
majority owned subsidiaries top five (5)
key performance indicators. It shall
which the company calculates or
identifies the indicator presented on a
comparable basis

26

Incomplete, Comply with the
highlighted portion

Done. Please sce

page 28 of the
Definitive 20-IS.

(4) Key Variable and Other Qualitative
and Quantitative Factors

If Material:

(i) Any known Trends, Events or
Uncertainties (Material Impact on
Liquidity)

(ii) Events that will trigger direct or
contingent financial obligation that
is material to the company,
including any defauit or
acceleration of an obligation

(i7i) ANl material off-balance sheet
transactions, arrangements,
obligation (including contingent
obligations), and other relationship
of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created
during the reporting period.

(iv) Description of any material
commitments for capital
expenditures, general purpose of
such commitments, expected sources
of funds for such expenditures

{v) Any known Trends, Evenis or
Uncertainties (Material Impact on
Sale)

(vi) Any Significant Elements of Income
or Loss {from continuing operations)

(vii) Causes for Any material Changes
from Period to Period of FS which
shall include vertical and horizontal
analyses of any material item (5%)

The term “material in this section shall
refer to changes or items amounting to at
least five percent (5% of the relevant
accounts or such lower amount the
registrant deems material on the basis of

Disclose, if any

Done. Please see
page 35 of the
Definitive 20-IS.




other factor

(viii) Seasonal Aspects that has material
Effect onthe FS

(b) Interim Periods: Comparable
discussion to assess material changes
(last, fiscal year and comparable interim
period in the preceding year). Disclose
the required information under
subparagraph (2)(a)(1) to (viii) above.

Submit 1* Quarter Report for
the period ended March 31,
2013.

Done. Please see
AIlnEX “D”

Market Price and Dividends required
by Part V of Annex C

(1) Market Information

(b) If the information called for by
paragraph (A) of this Part is being
presented, the document shall also
include the price information as of the
latest practicable trading date, and in the
case of securities to be issued in
connection with an acquisition, business
combination or other reorganization, as
of the trading date immediately prior to
the public announcement of such
transaction.

Incomplete. Comply with the
highlighted portion

Done. Please see
page 25 of the
Definitive-IS.

(2) Holders

(a) (1) Approximate Number _of 24 Incomplete, Comply with the Done. Please see
Holders of Each Class of Common highlighted portion page 25 of
Security as of the latest practicable Definitive 20-IS.
date but in no event more than 90 days
prior to filling of report

(i) Names ofthe Top Twentv (20) 24 Incomplete. Comply with the Deone. Please see
Shareholders of Each Class highlighted portion page 25 of the
Definitive 20-IS.
3) Dividends
(b) Description of any Restriction that 25 Disclose, if any No Restrictions,

Limits the Payment of Dividend on
Common Shares

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Management Responsibility
on the Financial Statements as prescribed
by SRC Rule 68, As amended) (Financial
Reporting Bulletin No. 1)

The Management of (name of reporting
company) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements for the year (s)
ended (date), including the additicnal
components attached therein, in
accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein.
This responsibility includes designing
and the implementing internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, selecting

Statement of Management’s
Responsibility signed under
oath by the following: Chairman
of the Board Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, pursuant to Bulleting -
No. 001 dated February 16,
2012, SRC Rule 68, A,
amended :

Done. Please see
Annex “A”




and applying appropriate accounting
policies and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. The Board of Directors
or Trustees reviews and approves the
financial statements and submit the same
to the stockholders or members. (Name
of Auditing Firm), the independent
auditors, appointed by the stockholders
has examined the financial statements of
the company in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
its report to the stockholders or
members, has expressed opinion on the
fairness of presentation upon completion
of such examination, Signature

(Printed Name of the (1) Chairman of
the Board (2) Chief Executive Officer (3)
Chief Financial Qfficer)

ADDITIONAL COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SATTEMENTS
(SRC Rule 68, as amended October 2011)

Legal matter paragraph in the Auditor’s Not submitted Done. Please sce

Report on each components: Annex “B-2”
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings |
Auvailable for Dividend Declaration

(part1,4 (c))

Tabular schedule of standard and
interpretations as of reporting date (par
14 {J)

A reconciliation of Retained Earnings
available for dividend declaration which
shall present the prescribed adjustments
as indicated in Annex 68-C

A map of the conglomerate or group of
companies showing the relationships
between and among the company and its
ultimate parent company, middle parent,
subsidiaries or co-subsidiaries, and
associates, and associates Par 4 (h))

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Additional disclosure set forth in Annex
68-1) shall appear on the face of the
balance sheets or related notes and in the
Statement of comprehensive income or
related notes filed and on the face of the
financial statements

Disclosures of receivable/payables with Not submitted ‘ The related party
related parties eliminated during transactions

consolidation (Annex 68-D) eliminated during
consolidation are

as follows:

12.1 In 2012,
PEMI participated
in the Parent




Company’s
investment in
credit-linked note
by purchasing
P101.77M at face
value, The
Company serves as
the receiving agent
of all coupon
interest for the
entire duration of
the participation.

12.2 The Company
waived the
¢ollection of rental
for the lease of
office of Yehey! of
the years 2011 and
2012.

12.3In 2012, 2011
and 2010, the
Parent Company
paid certain
expenses of -
Business, Yehey!,
PEMI and
iCurrencies, which
were later billed for
reimbursement.

We trust that the above sufficiently addressed your concerns.
Thank you very much.

Very truly yours,

TRINA C. MULI

r the Birm
Encl.: a/s
TFAdata\CLIENTS\2 1INCORPAMIS CAASM20 L3\Reply-SEC'S comments to Prefim 20-15.doc
ABKT/ICN/KCM/aissa 213237
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VANTAGE

EQUITIES, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

TO:  ALL STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that there will be an annual meeting of the stockholders of VANTAGE
EQUITIES, INC. on Saturday, 3 August 2013 at 10;15 in the morning at the Rigodon Ballroom, The
Peninsula Manila, Ayala Avenue corner Makati Avenue, Makati City to consider the following:

AGENDA
1. Cali to Order
2. Proof of Notice of Meeting
3. Certification of Quorum
4, Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders
5. Approval of 2012 Operations and Results :
8. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers
7. Election of Directors
8. Appointment of External Auditors
9. Other Matters
10. Adjournment

In accordance with the rules of the Philippine Stock Exchange, the close of business on 3
Juiy 2013 has been fixed as the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to
notice of and vote at said meeting and any adjournment thereof.

Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 9:30 a.m. and
end prompily at 10:00 a.m.. All stockholders who will not, are unable, or do not expect to attend the
meeting in person are encouraged to fill out, date, sign and send a proxy to the Corporation at Unit
2703-B East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City,
Metro Manila, Philippines. All proxies should be received by the Corporation at least fen (10) days
before the meeting, or on or before 24 July 2013. Proxies submitied shall be validated by a
Committee of Inspectors on 25 July 2013 at 10:00 a.m. at Unit 2703-B East Tower, Philippine Stock
Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. For corporate stockhoiders, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s
authorized representative.

To avoid inconvenience in registering your attendance at the meeting, you or your proxies are
requested to bring identification paper(s) containing a photograph and signature {e.g. passport,
driver's license, or credit card).

City of Pasig, Metro Manila, 8 July 2013.

EA Bayani K. Tan

Corporate Secretary
A




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S E—

Fr““‘“”

o &
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION zo - ~; el ?,j;._,_

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION Cg it |5 DR
1. Check the appropriate box

B!
. i :ima. z w8 . ,!EJ
. P SR
i 1  Preliminary Information Statement ] AR T
¥ , IWE D
I B weemro )

[ ¥ 1 Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter VANTAGE EQUITIE iNC.

3 Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorparation or organization:
Metro Manila, Philippines

4, SEC Identification Number: AS092-07059
5. BIR Tax Identification Number: 002-010-620
8. Address of Principal Office: 2703-B _East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605
7. Registrant’s telephone number, includiné area code: {02) 689-8090 to 689-8093
8. Date, time, and place of the meeting of secubrity holders:
Date : 3 August 2013
Time : 10:15 in the morning
Venue : Rigodon Baliroom, The Peninsula Manila,
(Corner of Ayala and Makati Avenue, Makati City)
9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: 15 July 2013
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code (information on number of

shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Qutstanding {(net of Treasury Shares)
as of 31 May 2013

Common Stock 2,100,535,133
P1.00 par value Excluding Treasury Shares of
134,855,500
1. Are any or all of Registrant's securitiés listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes[¥] No[ 1]

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Common Stocks

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY




GENERAL INFORMATION

Date, Time and Place of the Meeting of the Security Holders

Date: 3 August 2013
Time: 10:15 in the morning
Place: Rigodon Ballroom, The Peninsula Manila

Corner of Ayala and Makati Avenue, Makati City
Complete address of the principal office of the Registrant:
Unit 2703-B East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City, Philippines, 1605
The approximate date on which the Information Statement will be sent or given to security
holders is on 15 July 2013.

Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The matters to be voted upon in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Vantage Equities, Inc.
(hereinafter, the 'Company’) on 3 August 2013 are not among the instances enumerated in Sections
42 and 81 of the Corporation Code whereby the right of appraisal, defined to be the right of any
stockholder to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares, may be exercised. The
instances where the right of appraisal may be exercised are as follows:

1. In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences
in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. Incase of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets;

3. In case the Compahy decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business
outside of its primary purpose; and

4. In case of merger or consoclidation.

Under Section 82 of the Corporation Code, the appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder
who shall have voted against the proposed corporate action, by making a written demand on the
Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair
value of his shares. However, failure to make the demand within such pericd shall be deemed a
waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the
Company shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate or certificates of stock
representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was
taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporaie action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be
named by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Company
within thirty (30) days after such award is made, provided that no payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover



such payment, and that upon payment by the Company of the agreed or awarded price, the
stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Company.

Interest of Certain Person in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No person who has been a director, officer or nominee for election as Director of the Company, or an
associate of such persons, have a substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted
upon other than the election of Directors for the year 2013-2014.

No Director of the Company has informed the latter in writing that he intends to oppose any action to
be taken by the Company at the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thersof

(a)

(c)

d)

As of 31 May 2013, the Company has 2,100,535,133 outstanding common shares.
Qut of the 2,100,535,133 outstanding common shares 1,883,185 are owned by
foreigners. Each common share shall be entitled to one vote with respect to all
matters to be taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

The record date for purposes of determining stockholders entitled to vote in the
Annual Stockhelders’ Meeting to be held on 3 August 2013 is set on 3 July 2013.

In the forthcoming Annual Stockholders' Meeting, stockholders shall be entitied to
elect nine (9) members of the Board of Directors. Each stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many as nine {9) persons he may choose to be elected from
the list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of his shares multiplied by nine {9) shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit,
provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of
shares owned by him multiplied by nine (9).

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
{1 Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
1. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of 31 May 2013, Vantage Equities, Inc. knows no one who beneficially owns in
excess of 5% of the Company’s common stock except as set forth in the following
table:

Name and

Title of Address of
Class Record/Beneficia

| Owner

Gommon ggg.b?%mmee Stockholder Filipino
G/F MSE Building

Ayala Avenue,

Makati

. L Percen
Ciflzensht Number of t of

Shares Class

Relationshi Record (r)
pwiththe  Beneficial
Company {b) Owner P

2,099,070,20
6

99.93%

{*}PCD Nominee Corporation (PCDNC) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Phifippine Central Depository, Inc.
(PCD). The beneficial owners of the shares under the name of PCONC are PCD’s participants who hold
the shares in their own behalf or in behalf of their respective clients.No single PCD participant currently
owns more than 5% of the Cotporation’s shares forming part of the PCDNC account except as folfows:



8 R

I 21/F Easi Tower, PSE

| Centre,

! Exchange Road,

" OrigasCenlar. Pasig City
i /5. Ruby Tan - Finance |
i tanager i

Common | Wealth Securities, inc. Slockhelder 1,833.255,00 Filipino ' 87.34%
|
13

“Tre shares shal! be voled by the person these shareholders shall duly authenze for the purpsse. No single bess’ 12 ocar2-
¢’ these shares cwn more than 5% of the shares of the Company except as fehows:

Stockholdar Filipino

Creative Wisdom, Inc.

21/F East Tower, PSE
Cenire,
Exchange Road,
CrtigasCenter, Pasig City
kis. Ruby Tan - Corp.
Sac.
*Nealln Secunnes, Inc. - 18 a broker ang dealer in securitizs, [t holds the shares of the Fund in behalf of ther ¢ 2,
Fund has no nformalicn as to lhe idenbties of the beneficial owners of the securites held by Wealh Soc.r
Nenetheless, shares of capital stock of Wealln Securities, Inc. are owned by the following persons who have thz 2
vele or dispose or direct the voling or disposition of the shares of the company; Arsenic Go Sy, Bian Co Sy, F'L., ::{ Talr
Moisas Qng Tan and Valentino Co Sy,

Common

{2} Security Ownership of Management

The foliowing table shows the shares owned on record by the directors and
execulive officers of the Company as of 31 May 2013:

B Of:Es 0=

e

- H:m- Cl = cdl = ={8 (s
Common WILSON'L. 8Y . 184,150,000 Filipino . 8.77%
Comman VALENTINO 8Y 62,957,812 | Filipino 3.00:4 "
Common | WiLLY OCIER - 6,520,500 Filiging H.31%
Commen ANTONIO R, SAMSON 62,500 Filipino 0.00% \[
Common | ROBERTC Z. LORAYES 25.000 Filipino 0.5 .
Common - | IGNACIO B. GIMENEZ 12,500 Filipino (.00 |
Commion JOSEPH LIAOQ ONG 12,500 Filipino 0.00%
Commen | EDMUNDO MARCO P. BUNYI. JR. 6.262,500 |  Filipino 0.30% !
Common GREGORIC U. KILAYKO 10,000 Filiping 0.00% -
Common A 3R 7ANIK. TAN : 1,437 Filiping RS

TOTAL 260,014,749 12.38% :

(3) Veting Trust Holders of Five Percent {5%) or More

The Company is not aware of any party which holds any voting trust or any
similar agreement for five percent (5%) or more of the Company's voting
securities.



(4) Changes in Control
The Company is not aware of any arrangement that may result in a change

in control of the Company. There were also no changes in control of the
Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

Directors and Executive Officers

Material Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of any pending legal proceedings involving the members of its
Board of Directors and its Executive Officers material to an evaluation of their ability and
integrity, except as provided in the subsequent portion on Involvement in Certain Legal
Proceedings.

Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, and Control Persons

U = Feriod - =8 i = - [) A e
Director 2003 to present | Ignacio B. Gimenez Filipino 68
Directer 2002 to present | Valentino L. Sy Filipino 57
Chairman & CEQO 2005 to present

Edmundo P. Bunyi,
Director ‘ 2006 to present | Jr. Filipino 48
President & COO
Director 2003 to present | Joseph L. Ong Filipino 59
Treasurer 2005 to present
Director 1999 to present | Willy N. Ocier Filipino 56
Director 2003 to present | Reberto Z. Lorayes Filipino 69
Director 1993 to 2000 & Wilson L. Sy
2005 to present Filipino 60

Director 2005 to present | Antonio R. Samson | Filipino 67
Director 2012 to present | Gregorio U. Kilayko | Filipino 58
Corporate Secretary 1993 to present | A. Bayani K. Tan Filipino 57

In accordance with the Corporation's By-Laws, the members of the Board of Directors are
elected annually and therefore serve for a year after election.

All present members of the Board of Directors were elected during the annual stockholders’
meeting last year. The ferm of the current members of the Board shall hold office until the
next stockholders' meeting, or on 3 August 2013.

The following are brief write-ups for each of the Beard of Directors and Executive Officers.

Valentino C. Sy

Mr. Sy is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He has
been a Director of the Company since 2002. He is the President of Equinox
International Corp. (1996 - present). He was the Regional Manager of Duferco



International Trading Ltd., Taiwan (1987 ~ 1995} and Ertanger Metals Ltd., Hong Kong
(1979 — 1986). Al these companies are engaged in trading of steel. He holds a
degree in Industrial Management Engineering from the De La Salle University.

Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr,

Mr. Bunyi is currently the President and Chief Operations Officer of the Company. He
became a Director of the Company in October 2006. Concurrently, he is a Director
(2006-present) of Yehey! Corporation, an online search engine and web portal & e-
Business Services, Inc,, a Western Union franchise (2006-Jan, 2008). He was
appointed Presicent and Chief Executive Officer of eBusiness Services, Inc. effective
February 2008 - present. He is also the President and Chief Operations Officer of
Philequity Management, Inc., an investment company adviser, since October 20086.
He is the former Senior Vice President and Treasurer of International Exchange Bank,
Assistant Vice Prasident and Head of FCDU & FX Sales of United Coconut Planters
Bank, Assistant Manager for Corporate Banking Group of Far East Bank and Trust
Company, and Assistant Manager for the Corporate Banking Department of Union
Bank of the Philippines. He holds a degree in Management Engineering from the
Ateneo de Manila University.

Ignacio B. Gimenez

Mr. Gimenez became a Director of the Company in 2003. He is the Treasurer of |. B,
Gimenez Securities, Inc., a stock brokerage firm (1976 - present). He is the President
of the following mutual funds, namely, Philequity Fund, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income
Fund, Inc., Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. and Philequity Pesc Bond Fund, Inc.
(formerly Philegquity Money Market Fund, Inc.). He is also the Sales and Marketing
Manager of Society Publishing, Inc. (1991 - present). He holds a graduate degree in
Business Administration from the Asian Institute of Management (1970) and a college
degree from the University of the Philippines {1967).

Joseph L. Ong

Mr. Ong is the treasurer of the Company and became a director in 2003. Heisa
director as well of Yehey! Corp., eBusiness Services Inc, and Philequity Management
Inc. Currently, he is president of Chemcenter Corporation, a company engaged in
import and distribution of industrial chemicals. Previously, he was connected with
Exxon Chemical/Exxon Corp holding positions in sales, marketing, planning, and audit
functions both here and abroad. He holds a degree in Chemical Engineering, Magna
Cum Laude, from De La Salle University.

Willy N. Ocier

Filipino, 56, is the Chairman and President of the Company and has been a Director
since 29 July 1999. He also serves as Co-Vice Chairman of Belle Corporation and
Highlands Prime, Inc., as Chairman of Tagaytay Midiands Golf Club, Inc., APC
Group, Inc., and Sinophil Corporation. He is also the current Vice Chairman of
Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. and is a Director of Vantage
Equities, Inc.. He was also previously affiliated with Eastern Securities Development
Corporation being its past President and Chief Operations Officer.

Roberto Z. Lorayes

Mr. Lorayes became a Director of the Company in 2003. Currently, he is the
Chairman (1994 — present) of Philequity Management, Inc., a fund management
company, and President (1993 — present) of Strategic Equities Corporation, a



stockbrokerage firm. He is also a Director (1998 — present) of Hiedelberg Motors
Corporation, dealer of automobiles.

Wilson L. Sy

Mr. Sy was reelected to the Board in 2005. He is a former Director of the Company
(1993 — 2000). Currently, he is the Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance Holdings, Corp.
and Director of Philequity Management, Inc., Xcell Property Ventures, Inc., and Monte
Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. Mr. Sy is also an Independent Director of the reporting
corporations The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., Tagaytay Highlands
International Golf Club, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., and The Spa and
Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands. He is presently the Chairman of the Manila Stock
Exchange Foundation, Inc. He was a former Chairman of the Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc., a Director of Basic Petroleum & Minerals, Basic Diversified Ind., Belle
Corp., Saniwares Manufacturing, A. Brown Corporation, and Jollibee Foods
Corporation; and a trustee of the PSE Foundation, Inc. He holds a degree in
Management Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University.

Antonio R. Samson

Mr. Samson became a Director of the Company in 2005. He is concurrently the
Group Chairman, Chief Business Strategist of DDB Worldwide Communications
Group, Inc., an advertising company. He is the former President and CEO of OMD
Philippines, where he also previously served as Chairman. The company is an
international media planning and buying agency with regional office in Singapore. He
is also a thrice-weekly columnist of Business World (since 1984 in then Business Day)
and is the President of the Manila Chamber Orchestra Foundation and the
Metropolitan Museum, and Chairman of the Advertising Foundation. From 1982 to
2003, Mr. Samson worked with the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company,
where his last position from 1999 until his early retirement was Executive Vice
President, and concurrently President and CEQ of MediaQuest Holdings, Ihc.

Mr. Samson holds a Bachelor's of Arts Degree in Economics from the Ateneo de
Manila University, a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the Asian
Institute of Management, and a Masters Degree in Business Economics from the
University of the Asia and the Pacific (then Center for Research and Communication).

Gregorio U. Kilayko

Mr. Kilayko was elected as an independent director in 2012. He is presently the
Chairman of ABBA Motors, a Director of The Royal Bank of Scotland, and an
Independent Director of SM Prime Holdings, Inc., Belle Corporation, and Highlands
Prime Leisure, Inc. He was also the founding head of ING Barings' stock brokerage
and investment banking business in the Philippines and a Philippine Stock Exchange
Governor in 1996 and 2000. Mr. Kilayko holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

A. Bayani K. Tan

Mr. Tan has been the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation since January 1993.
He is currently a Director, Corporate Secretary or both of the following reporting
andfor listed companies; Belle Corporation (May 1994-present}, Coal Asia Holdings,
Inc. (July 2012-present), Destiny Financial Plans, Inc. {2003-present), First Abacus
Financial Holdings Corporation (May 1994-present), I-Remit, Inc. (May 2007~
present), Pacific Online Systems Corporation (May 2007-present), Philequity
Balanced Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc.



(March 1998-present), Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income Fund, Inc. (March
2010-present), Philequity Fund, Inc. {(June 1997-present), Philequity Peso Bond
Fund, Inc. (June 2000-present), Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (February 1999-
present), Philequity Resources Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Strategic
Growth Fund, Inc. (April 2008-present), Sinophil Corporation {December 1993-
present), Tagaytay Highlands international Golf Club, Inc. (November 1993-present),
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (June 1997-present), The Country Club at
Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (August 1985-present), The Spa and lLodge at Tagaytay
Highlands, Inc. (December 1999-present), TKC Steel Corporation (February 2007-
present}, Vantage Equities, Inc. (January 1993-present} and Yehey! Corporation
(June 2004-present). Mr. Tan is also the Corporate Secretary and a Director of
Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. since December 2006. He is also a Director, Corporate
Secretary, or both for the following private companies: Destiny LendFund, Inc.
(December 2005-present), Discovery World, Inc. (March 2013 as Director, July 2003
—-present as Corporate Secretary), Monte Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. {(March
2005-present) Palm Concepcion Power Corporation (January 2013-present), and
Pharex HealthCorp. (March 2012-present), among others. Afty. Tan is Managing
Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza Valdez {1988 to present), Managing
Director/President of Shamrock Development Corporation (May 1988-present),
President of Catarman Chamber Elementary School Foundation, inc. (August 2012-
present) and Managing Trustee of SCTan Foundation, Inc. (1986-present). He is
currently the legal counsel of Xavier School, Inc.

Atty. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University USA (Class of
1988} and earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
(Class of 1980) where he was a member of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P.
College of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in his class. Atty. Tan passed the
bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth. He has a Bachelor of Arts major in
Political Science degree from the San Beda College (Class of 1976) from where he
graduated Class Valedictorian and was awarded the medal for Academic Excellence.

Independent Directors

The nomination, pre-screening and election of independent directors were made in
compliance with the requirements of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and the
Securities and Exchange Commission's Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of
Independent Directors which have been adopted and made part of the Corporation’s By-
Laws. The Nomination Committee constituted by the Company's Board of Directors, indorsed
the respective nominations given in favor of Mr. Samson (by Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan) and Mr.
Kilayko (by Mr. Edmundo Marco P. Bunyi, Jr.).

The Nomination Committee, composed of Mr. Lorayes (Chairman), Mr. Kilayko and Mr. Ong,
has determined that these nominees for independent directors possess all the qualifications
and have none of the disqualifications for independent directors as set forth in the Company’s
Amended Manual on Corporate Governance and Rule 38 of the Implementing Rules of the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC).

The nominees, whose required information are discussed above, are in no way related to the

stockhelders who nominated them and have signified their acceptance of the nominations.
These nominees are expected to attend the scheduled Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

Significant Employees

The Company has no significant employees.



Family Relationships Among Direcfors
Messrs. Valentino Sy and Wilson Sy are brothers.

involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company and its major subsidiaries and associates are not involved in, nor are any of
their properties subject to, any material legal proceedings that could potentially affect their
operations and financial capabiiities.

Except as provided below, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein
any of its directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or
control person were involved during the past five (5) years up fo the latest date:

{a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the above
persons was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the
bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

(b) Any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated,
of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the
above persons in any type of business, securities, commodifies or banking activities;
and

(¢) Any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action),
the SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has
violated a securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed,
suspended, or vacated.

As a result of the delay in the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure Club, Inc.
(ULC), some of its members have initiated legal actions against ULC, the Universal Rightfield
Property Holdings, Inc. (URPHI) and the Universal Leisure Corporation (ULCorp), as well as
their respective incumbent and former officers and directors, including their former Corporate
Secretary, Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan. Other than the Complaint for Estafa (docketed as [.S. No.
08-K-19713) filed before the City Prosecutor of Manila, all the legal actions initiated have
been dismissed. A Counter-Affidavit has already been filed before the City Prosecutor in I.S.
No. 08-K-19713 seeking to dismiss the Complaint for lack of cause of action. As of 29
February 2012, the case is still pending resolution by the City of Manila, Office of the City
Prosecutor.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The Company has not been a party during the last two (2) years to any other transaction or
proposed transaction, in which any director or executive officer of the Company, or any

security holder owning 10% or more of the securities of the Company or any member of the
immediate family of such persons, had a direct or indirect material interest.

Vantage Equities, Inc. is not under the control of any parent company.
The following are the Corporation’s Related Party Transactions with its subsidiaries:
12.1 In 2012, PEMI participated in the Parent Company's investment in credit-linked note

by purchasing P101.77M at face value. The Company serves as the receiving
agent of all coupon interest for the entire duration of the participation.



12.2 The Company waived the collection of rental for the lease of office of Yehey! of the
years 2011 and 2012.

12.3 In 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Parent Company paid certain expenses of e-Business,
Yeheyl, PEMI and iCurrencies, which were [ater billed for reimbursement.

The following are the other related party transactions, as correlated with the Consolidated
Financial Statements:

12.4 In 2012, Fifth Agency Unified Services Inc. (FAUSI), had reimbursable expenses of
P346,544.

12.5 In 2012, Media Contacts Inc. (MCI), had cash advance settlement of P1,456,500
and commission income of P117,039.

Disagreement with Director

None of the Directors have resigned or have declined to stand for re-election to the Board of
Directors since the date of the ‘last annual meeting of security holders because of a
disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the Company's operations,
. policies, or practices.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
Summary Compensation Table (Annual Compensation)

Except for Messrs. Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr., all of the Company's directors and
officers have not received any form of compensation from inception up to present
other than a per diem of 26,000.00 (net of withholding tax) for each meeting
attended and annual per diem during stockholders’ meeting. There is no
employment contract between the Company and the above-named executive
officer or current executive officers. In addition, except as provided below, there
are no compensatory plans or arrangemenis with respect named executive
officers that resulted in or will result from the resignation, retirement or
termination of such executive director or from a change-in-control in the
Company. '

Summary Compensation Table (Annual Compensation)

Name and Principal

Position
Valentino C. Sy
Chairman & CEO
Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr.
President & COO
Joseph L. Ong
Treasurer
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Most Highly
Compensated

Executive Officers

Directors as a group
{unnamed)

* The CEO do not receive any form of compensation

Independent Public Accountants

The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the
Company external auditors, who are appointed upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
and which appointment shall be ratified by the stockholders during the annual stockholders’ meeting.
The Chairman of the Company’'s Audit Committee is Mr. Gregorio U. Kilayko, an independent
director. The two other members of the Committee are Mr. Antonio R. Samson and Mr. Edmundo P.

Bunyi

The principal accountants and external auditors of the Company is the accounting firm of SyCip,
Gorres, Velayo & Company (“SGV & Co.") with address at SGV Building, 6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati
City. The Corporation has retained the services of SGV & Co. for several years now. There have
been no changes in and any disagreements with said accountants in the last five (5} years on any

accounting and financial disclosures. :

However, in the interest of greater transparency and in accordance with good corporate governance
practice as mandated by SRC Rule 68(3)(b)iv), as amended, the Board of Directors has decided to
appoint a different external auditor for 2013. The Board has solicited proposals from the country's
biggest auditing firms but it is still in the process of evaluating them. The Board will request that it be
authorized by the stockholders to appoint the Corporation’s external auditor for 2013.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting or Financial Disclosure

There are no changes and matters of disagreement with accountants on any accounting & financial
disclosures the last iwo (2) most recent fiscal years.

The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the
Company external auditors, who are appointed upon the recommendaticn of the Audit Committee,

The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two years for professional services rendered by the

Company's external auditors in connection with annual audit of the Consolidated and Parent
Company Financial Statements for statutory and regulatory filings are summarized below:

Audit fee 755,040.00 704,704.00
Tax Services -
Other Fees -
TOTAL 755,040.00 704,704.00

1"



The Independent Accountant does not render tax accounting compliance, advice, planning and other
forms of tax services for the Corporation. The Independent Accountant also does not render other
services for the Corporation.

It is the policy of the Company that any draft audit report must first be reviewed by the Audit
Committee (the members of said Committee being composed of Mr. Gregorio U. Kilayko (Chairman),
Mr. Antonio R. Samson and Mr. Edmundo P. Bunyi (Members) prior to said report being endorsed to
the Board of Directors for approval.

Compensation Plans

The Company has a stock option plan covering all its officers, directors and regular employees.
Under the plan, the option price should not be less than the average closing price of the Company’s
stock listed in the stock exchange on the last trading day immediately preceding the effectivity of the
grant. The number of shares covered by this plan and the subscription price are subject to adjustment
for any stock dividend, stock splits or rights, merger, consolidation, recapitalization and the like. As of
report date, the Company has not designated the number of shares to be covered by the plan. Thus,
there are no potential common shares that would result in the dilution of EPS.

OTHER MATTERS

Action with Respect to Reports

The Company will seek the stockholders’ approval of the Minutes of the 2012 Stockholders' Meeting
during which the following were taken up: (1) Call to Order, (2) Certification of Notice and Quorum, (3)
Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Stockholders' Meeting, (4) Approval of Audited Financial
Statements and Annual Report, (5) Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors,
Officers and Management of the Corporation, (6) Election of Directors, (7) Appointment of SGV & Co.
as External Auditors, and (8) Adjournment.

Management reports which summarize the acts of management for the year 2012, are included in the
Company’s Annual Report to be sent to the stockholders together with this Information Statement and
shall be submitted for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Accordingly, approval of the
Annual Report will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of Management stated in the
Management Report during the period covered thereof.

Acts of the Board of Directors

The items covered with respect to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and officers for
the past year up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary course of
business, such as, but not limited to: the opening of bank accounts and designation of bank
signatories; the financing and investment activities of the Company; and the appointments in
compliance with corporate governance policies.

Voting Procedures

a. Actions to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall require the vote of the
stockholders representing at least a majority of the Company's outstanding capital stock.

b. Three inspectors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each meeting of
the stockhelders, at which an election of directors shall take place; if no such appointment
shall have been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of Directors refused to act
or fail to attend then the appointment shali be made by the presiding officer of the meeting.
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¢. Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in writing in
favor of any person of their confidence and each stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the corporation; provided, however,
that in the election of Directors, each stockholder shall.be entitled to cumulate his votes in the
manner provided for by law.

d. The By-Laws of the Company is silent as to the method by which votes are to be counfed. In
practice, however, the same is done by the raising of hands or viva voce. .

e. Upon confirmation by the inspectors that there is a mathematical impossibility for certain
nominees to be elecied into office based on proxies held and votes present/represented in
the meeting, the actual casting and counting of votes for the election of Directors may be
dispensed with. If actual counting of votes cannot be dispensed with, the appointed
inspectors mentioned in item (b), or in their absence, the auditors of the Company present
during the meeting, are authorized o count the votes cast.

tems 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, and 18 are not responded to in this report, the Company having no
intention to take any action with respect to the information required therein.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report fo be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized. This report is

signed in the City of Pasig on 12 June 2013.
/ 7

i N
Valentino C. Sﬂ( V eph L. Ong
Chairman and CEC reasurer

VANTAGE QUITIES, INC.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the “Corporation”), formerly iVantage Corporation, was incorporated in 20
October 1992 and is organized as an investment and financial holding company. It has authorized
capital stock of One Billion Nine Hundred Million Pesos(R1,900,000,000), all of which are in common
shares with a par value of R1.00 per share. Of the authorized capital stock, 1,788,312,570 are
outstanding and 111,687,430 remain unsubscribed. On 12 January 2009, Securities & Exchange
Commission (SEC) approved the increase of authorized capital stock of the Corporation to Two
Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos B2,250,000,000.00. Furthermore, the SEC has authorized the
Corporation to issue 447,078,142 common shares out of its authorized but unissued capital stock to
cover the twenty five percent (25%) stock dividend declared by the Corporation’s Board of Directors
on 4 June 2008 and ratified by its shareholders on 27 June 2008, As of 31 March 2011, the
Corporation. has an authorized capital stock of Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos
(B2,250,000,000.00) divided info 2,250,000,000 common shares with par value of R1.00 per share.
Qut of the authorized capital stock, 2,235,350,633 shares are outstanding and 14,609,367 shares are
unsubscribed.

The Corporation reverted to its original name by majority vote of the Board of Directors in November
2007, which the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequently approved in April 2008. The
change in corporate name is consistent with the Company's re-alignment of its investment focus
towards the broad financial sector vis-a-vis its information technology focus during the early 2000's.

Purpose

The Company was originally organized with the primary purpose of oil and gas exploration, and
investments and developments as among its secondary purposes. On 3 October2000, the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in the Corporation's primary purpose to
financial holdings and investments, including but not limited to information technology companies and
related ventures. Since the Registrant is an investment holding company, it is not competing in terms
of sales and is not dependent upon a single customer or a few customers, Also, it needs no
government approval of principal products or services and no cost and effect of compliance with
environmental laws.

Investments
Investments

In June 20086, the Corporation divested its shareholdings in International Exchange Bank
(“iBank™), its largest single investment at that time. The iBank sale generated P 2.9 billion in
cash and a P1.6 billion gain, capping an 11-year investment period that yielded a 16%
compound annual return. The PSE index, by comparison, only broke even during the same
period. The divestment was timely in light of the substantial decline in financial markets in
the following years.

The Corporation decided to invest its P2.9 billion "war chest’ in portfolio of equity and fixed-
income securities. The mandate is to attain above market returns while adhering to prudent
risk parameters, i.e. credit, liquidity and market risk. For this purpose, the Company hired its
current President in October 2006 along with a team of finance professionals. The current
team is also tasked to further professionalize management of the Vantage Group of
Companies.

The operating subsidiaries that comprise the Vantage Group are the following:
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e-Business Services, Inc. (“eBiz”) - 100% ownership

Acquired in 2000, eBiz is involved in the money transfer and remittance business as a direct
agent of Western Union, Inc. ("WU"). WU is the global leader in the field with a presence in
over 200 countries through more than 410,000 agent locations worldwide,

The remittance market in the Philippines is over USD 17 billion annually based on official
figures in 2009. With its strong brand name, WU is the recognized leader in this highly
competitive market.

eBiz is among the top three (3) direct agents of WU in the Philippines. Atend of 2012, eBiz
had over 1,400 locations nationwide: 153 in company-owned branches and the rest in sub-
agent locations. eBiz employs more than 400 employees.

eBiz Financial - 100% ownership

eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on 11 April
2005 and started commercial operations on 9 May 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged in
financing business.

iCurrencies — 100% ownership

iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on 3 February 2000 and started commercial operations on
31 May 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and
selling of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, the iCurrencies effectively stopped ifs business of buying and selling currencies
as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on 26 October 2000.
Ameng others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign
currencies and required Foreign Exchange Corporations {(FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-
up capital of PE0.0 million.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign currencies. The
stockholders likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

In the meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by income on its investments and interest income
on its funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc, — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolioc of peso-denominated fixed-income and equity securities. As of 31
December 2012, the Fund has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.

Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities. As of 31
December 2012, the Fund has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.

Phileguity Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership
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T_he Eqnd is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of equity securities. As of 31 December 2012, the Fund has not yet
launched its capital shares to the public.

Yehey! Corporation (“Yehey”) ~ 66.97% ownership

From a pioneering web portal in the late 1990's, Yehey has grown into a leading digital on-
line marketing solutions provider in the couniry. The company currently counts several
established corporation in its roster of customers,

To support its growth, Vantage infused P250 million capital in Yehey in 2007. The following
year, Vantage also declared and distributed a 5% property dividend in the form of Yehey
shares. This has reduced Vantage's ownership in Yehey to 68% from 99% pre-dividend.
The balance of 32% is now owned by Vantage shareholders by way of said property
dividend.

The property dividend has transformed Yehey into a widely-held company that qualifies it to
list by way of introduction in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). On October 18, 2012,
Yehey was listed in the PSE.

In 2012, Vantage disposed 3,891,000 shares of Yehey decreasing the ownership in Yehey
from 68% to 67%.

Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI") — 51% ownership

Vantage acquired 51% of PEMI in 2007 for P32 million. PEMI is an asset-management
company with about P3 billion in assets under management at end-2008. Its flagship
Philequity Fund Inc. has been the top performing equity mutual fund over the past decade as
ranked by the Investment Company Association of the Philippines.

Government Regulation and Environmental Compliance

The Corporation does not need any government approval for its principal products or services and is
not required to comply with specific environmental laws.

Distribution Methods of Products and Services

The Corporation, being a financial holding and investment company, has no distribution methods of
products and services.

Competition

Vantage Equities Inc. is a publicly-listed holding company whose main focus is to make strategic
investments in companies that are in the financial services industry. Under the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE) there are about seventeen companies that are classified as holding firms with about
B585-billion in float-adjusted market capitalization. Most of the holding companies are owned by well-
known families in the Philippines which have diversified investments ranging from properties,
banking, food, power and retail. Most of the firms in this industry can be labeled as mature and has a
long track record of existence as such there are not many changes in terms of additions in this
industry. But the most recent addition to the holding firm industry is the public listing of GT Capital of

the Ty family of Metrobank.

Although the Corporation is not listed in this sector of the PSE, there are similar companies that we
would consider Its competitors and we think would be appropriate to do a comparison. Two main
aspects where firms in this industry compete on are pricing and services. Firms offering more
competitive pricing coupled with excellent customer service normally increase the popularity of their
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brand and thus their appeal to retail and institutional clients. In addition companies with
complementary businesses often win clients by packaging themselves as a one-stop shop service
provider.

The closest competitor of Vantage equities that have financial services business under their company
is Aboitiz Equity Ventures (AEV) which has UnionBank and CitiSavings under its financial segment.
AEV has a market capitalization of about P118-billion as of June 7, 2012 and has three business
segments namely power, financial services and food. It terms of size and market capitalization,
Vantage Equities pales in comparison but the main advantage of Vantage Equities is its combination
of two financial services business namely Philequity Management, Inc. and e-Business Services, Inc.
with Philequity Management, Inc. having one of the best performing funds this together with the
extensive network of e-Business Services, Inc. branches will enable Vantage Equities, Inc. to
effectively market its products and services to its targeted customers.

Competition of Subsidiaries

eBusiness Services, Inc. {“eBiz") - 100% ownership

eBiz is characterized by a relatively strong competition among direct agents and sub-agents
of Wesiern Union. Agents primarily compete through location and customer service. 1t
appears that the competition with other money transfer companies like Moneygram, Xoom,
iRemit does not substantially affect the business of the Corporation.

Phileguity Managerment, Inc. (“PEMI”") — 51% ownership

As of April 2012, the Philippine mutual fund industry is composed of 48 funds with about
R121.8 billion in assets under management (AUM). This in comparison to the mutual fund
industry situation during 2002 where there are only 22 funds with a consolidated AUM of
224 6 billion. The mutual fund industry is sub-divided into four categories — stock, balanced,
bond and money market funds with 44% of the total AUM invested in bond funds. In addition,
whereas in 2002 there were about fourteen companies offering twenty two mutual funds
today we have about seven major players offering forty-eight mutual funds. This is proof that
the mutual fund industry is very competitive with sizeable and bank-initiated funds persisting
thru different economic cycles. It is no surprise that the ebbs and flow of the mutual fund
industry is mainly driven by the economic and capital markets condition of the country as the
not to recent financial crisis of 2008-2009 has shown.

Philequity Management Inc. (PEMI) has four funds namely Philequity Fund (PEFI), Philequity
PSE Index Fund (PPSE), Philequity Peso Bond Fund (PPBF) and Philequity Dollar Income
Fund (PDIF) which mainly compete in the stock and bond funds only. The flagship fund of
PEMI is PEFI which competes in the stock fund category of the mutual fund industry. PEMI's
funds like any other mutual funds are marketed throughout the Philippines but concentration
is mostly in Metro Manila where disposable and investable income is higher. PEMI mostly
markets its funds through sales agents, advertisement through website and print publication.

The main area of competition is through return performance and pricing. On the return
performance, top performing funds continue to attract subscriptions while underperforming
ones continue to see redemptions. On the area of pricing, there are three pricing points
investors look at: Sales load, management fee and exit fees. The mutual fund industry has
varying degrees of sales load, exit fees but basically the same management fees. In addition,
duration of exit varies from one company to the next with some companies offering 6 months
while others up to two years in order to have no exit fees charged to investor.

PEMI's main competitors in the industry are First Metro Investment Corp., Philam Life, Sun

Life of Canada and Bank of the Philippine Island. Two out of four of these companies are
major banks or are subsidiaries of major banks while the other two companies are well-
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recognized insurance companies offering mutual funds in addition to their insurance
products. Both banks are in the top five in terms of assets under management while one the
insurance companies is a 1560-year old, Canadian-based
multi-national company with $494-billion in assets under management. The other local
insurance company has 65-year track record with a R207-billion in assets under
management. In comparison, PEMI's funds particularly PEFI has a 17-year track record of
consistent return outperformance against the Philippine Stock Exchange Index (PSEi) with
about B5.9-billion (as of April 2012) in assets under management.

Yehey! Corporation — 66.97% ownership

Yehey! considers the following as competitors:

+ Digital Agencies
e Advertising Agencies

The Company considers the digital agencies as their direct competitors while the advertising
agencies and media agencies are considered indirect competitors.

Digital Agencies are agencies that deliver services for the creative and technical
developments of internet based products. These services range from the more Common
services such as web design, e-mail marketing and microsites etc. to the more specialist
such as viral campaigns, banner advertising, search engine opfimization, podcasting or
widget development and more. Digital agencies in the country include BBDO-Proximity,
Deploy and Havoc:

BBDO-Proximity

BBDO-Proximity creates breakthrough behavior changing ideas that cause active
engagement between brands and consumers. They make insights, ideas and creative works
that are developed by many of the most talented peopie from around the world. BBDO
Proximity brings customers closer to brands with innovative "Beyond the Line" strategic and
creative solutions. Their services reflect their people's expertise in building relationships,
changing behaviors and delivering results across all marketing disciplines and media.

Deploy

Deploy is a boutique digital solutions provider coffering communications planning, media
planning and buying, analytics, reputation management and digital consultancy with a focus
to delivering the best in class digital solutions underpinned by ROL.

Havoe

Havoc is a premier digital marketing company in the country with over 10 years of experience
in creating digital properties, it helps its clients strategize and develop campaigns that will
maximize their brand in the online space. They specialize on advertising sales presentations,
digital media planning and buying, web development, online communities, blog marketing -
and e-commerce.

Advertising Agencies (Association of Accredited Advertising Agency): These agencies are
service businesses dedicated to create, plan and handle advertising for its clients. They also
provide an outside point of view to the effort of selling the clients products or services. They
also produce works for many types of media, creating integrated marketing communications.
The top advertising agencies in the country are McCann-Erickson Philippines, Ogilvy &
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Mather, TBWA Santiago-Manganda-Puno, BBDO-Guerrero, Ace Saatchi & Séatchi, Jimenez
Basic and J, Walter Thompson.

The very essence of Yehey's competitive advantage lies in its being the first to complete the
end-to-end digital marketing solutions offering. Aimost all companies that are in the business
of digital marketing concentrate on either website development, or online media buying, or
search engine optimization, or on digital PR, or their digital marketing services remain as
added service to their existing above the line advertising efforts.

Yehey!, with its complete suite of services can offer its customers a more comprehensive
digital marketing solutions package at the best possible value and with best advertising
mileage in the digital space.

Financial Risk Management

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and market
risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and these are summarized
below.

Credit Risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by trading only
with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject fo credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
menitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.
Since the group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due under
normal and stress circumstances. To fimit the risk, the Group closely monitors its cash flows and
ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. The Group
also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.  Any excess cash is
invested in short-money market placements. These placements are maintained to meet maturing

obligations.

Market Risk is the risk that movements of market prices will adversely affect the Group’s financial
condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Group focuses on managing the pric (risk of loss
arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument} and foreign exchange risks
(risk of loss arising from fluctuations in exchange rates).

Financial Performance

The Company derived its revenues from various activities:

2012 2011 2010
Commission income 313,304,837 334,087,049 350,326,588
Gain on sale of AFS
investments 333,663,314 329,626,095 506,639,797
Interest income from:
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AFS investments 85,374,345 103,282,875 93,852,163
Cash and cash equivalents 22,511,417 11,148,335 13,850,853
Financial assets at FVPL 7,298,146 6,583,120 6,621,675
Unquoted debt securities 16,777,043 4,075,852 -
Others - 386,945 -
Share in foreign exchange

differential 81,507,179 85,573,235 75,767,180
Management fee and

service income 87,633,738 65,414,284 43,623,335
Money changing gain 34,076,538 36,485,920 59,577,996
Dividend income 37,039,014 35,610,251 45,775,827
Advertising, web

development and internet

service 31,417,088 33,851,638 30,406,652
Income from business

partners 8,348,495 2,868,068 2,333,776

TOTAL

1,058,951,254

1,048,893,667

1,228,775,842

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has a total of 477 employees as broken down below and are
not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA).

0. J A : oNa

Executive 2 0
Senior

Officer 5 1
Manager 19 7
Supervisor 123 11
Staff 328 32
TOTAL 477 51

The Corporation believes that it has maintained amicable relationships with the rank and file and does
not anticipate any labor-management issues to arise in the near term. The Corperation believes that
its relationship with its employees have been consistently good and productive.

Properties
Vantage Equities, Inc. - Parent

Office Condominium - These condominium units are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, ADB
Avenue, Pasig City and Unit 2005 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,
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Pasig City. These are depreciated over an estimated useful life of 20 years and accounted for
on a straight-line basis.

Office Improvements - These are improvements made to the Company's office space and
being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 10 years accounted for on a straight line
basis.

Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in
conducting its daily operations and located at Unit 2703 East Tower, PSE Gentre,Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. These assets are being depreciated over an estimated
useful life of 3-10 years and accounted for on a straight line basis,

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and depreciated over 5 years and accounted for on a straight line basis.

Leasehold Improvements - The Company is leasing its office space from New Rosario
Ortigas Properties, Inc. located at 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City. The term of the contract is for a period of one year and renewable upon
mutual agreement of the parties involved.

eBusiness Services, Inc. (“eBiz”) - 100% ownership

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 4-5 years.

Leasehold improvements - The Company leases the spaces occupied by its branches with
varying period of up to fifteen (15) years and renewable on such terms and conditions as
shall be mutually accepted by the Company and the lessors. These leases are accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Office Furnifure and Equipment - This furniture and equipment are used by the Company in
conducting its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.
These assets are located at the Company's Head Office in 20/F East Tower, PSE Centre,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City and various branches all over the Philippines.

Scoftware License and Software Development — These pertains to the accounting software
used by the company and amortized over a period 3 years accounted for on a straight line
basis.

eBiz Financial Services, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Company does not own any properties.

iCurrencies, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Company does not own any properties and already effectively stopped its business of
buying and sefling of currencies in May 2001 as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Circular No, 264, issued on October 26, 2000. ‘

Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed {ncome Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.
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Philequity Dividend Yield Fund, In¢. — 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

Yehey! Corporation — 66.97% ownership

Server and Network Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting
its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years. These
equipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Furniture, Fixture and Office Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in
conducting its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.
These equipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and depreciated over 5 years and accounted for on a straight line basis

Leasehold improvement - The Company is leasing its office space from Vanlage Equities,
Inc. (the Parent Company) located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City. For
the years 2012, 2011, and 2010, Vantage Equities, Inc. waived its rental fee charges.

Software License — This pertains fo Microsoft licenses and software used for “Kaban Project’
and is being amortized over a pericd of 3 years and accounted for on a straight line basis.

Philequity Management, Inc. — 51% ownership

IT Equipment- These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operations.

Leasehold Improvement - The Company is leasing its office space from ASIA PACIFIC
BUILDWARE COCRP. located at Unit E-2004A 20/F, East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City at monthly rate of R96,706.14 exclusive of VAT and net of
withholding. The term of the contract is for a period of five (5) years from April 1, 2012 o
March 31, 2015 with P3,000 increase in the monthly rental starting on the 3rd year beginning
April 1, 2012.

Office Equipment - These equipments are already fully-depreciated but still in-use by the
Company in conducting its daily operations and are depreciated over the estimated useful life
of 5 years. These are office equipments are located at 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Office Fumniture - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 5 years. Said office
furniture are located in 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,

Pasig City

These properties are free from mortgage or lien. The Company has no plan of acquiring a
property in the next twelve months.

Leqgal Proceedings

3.1. G.R. No. 190477, _
captioned “Sure Express World Wide Corp. vs Hon. Court of Appeals and e-Business

Services Inc. ef. al”,Supreme Court, Manila
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Civil Case No. MC-05-2840
captioned “eBusiness Services Inc. vs. Sure Express World Wide Corp.”; RTC Branch 214,
Mandaluyong City

E-Business filed a civil action against Sure Express to comply with its obligations under the
Money Transfer Service Agreement and to pay the sum of Php 508, 003.75 and US$
22,710.16 plus attorney’'s fees and damages. On September 27, 2007, the lower Court
rendered a decision against Sure Express. Sure Express appealed before the Court of
Appeals and thereafter the Supreme Court. The Supreme Court rendered a decision on
February 03, 2010 dismissing the petition which became final and executory on April 12,
2010. Our law firm filed its Entry of Appearance before the RTC Branch 214 on February 1,
2012 and thereafter on March 14, 2012 a Motion for Execution of Judgment which was
granted on July 17, 2012. Considering that the whereabouts of Sure Express is unknown, the
writ of execution remained unimplemented.

3.2. Civil Case No. 71390,
captioned "e-Business Services Inc.vs. Prudential Guarantee Assurance, Inc.”;
RTC 152, PasigCity

This is a complaint filed by e-Business on November 6, 2007 against defendant for the
latter's refusal to setile and/or pay E-Business insurance claim as a result of loss of money
due to robbery or brigandage. e-Business claims for the aggregate amount of P1,880,085.98
and US $25,860.00 plus interest at the rateof 12% per annum from January 22, 2007,
attorney’s fees of not less than 20% of the claims, P500,000 as damages and the cost of suit.
Since the parties failed to settle amicable during the mediation and judicial dispute resolution,
the case proceeded to trial which is still pending.

3.3.Criminal Case No. 12822,
captioned “People of the Philippines vs.NorielRequiso”, for. Qualified Theft

RTC 214, Mandaluyong City

This is a criminal case filed by e-Business as private complainant against accused Noriel
Requiso on December 9, 2008 after the laiter unlawfully took the sum of Php 1,150,000.00
from the vault of E-Business’ Edsa Market Place. On June 5, 2009, E-Business filed a
Motion {o Cancel Passport of the accused who was then known to be abroad. However, the
Court denied aforesaid motion. Considering that the warrant of arrest cannot be
implemented since accused whereabouts is unknown, the instant case is archived.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Market for Reqgistrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Stock Prices {(as adjusted)

0 0 0
1st Quarter 27 | 26 | 191|185 | 1.88 | 1.43
2nd Quarter n/a nfa | 1.83 | 1.83 | 1.71 | 1.71
3rd Quarter n/a nfa | 1.90 | 1.88 | 1.46 | 1.46
4th -Quarter n/a nfa | 245 | 2.41 | 1.71 | 1.67
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As of 31 May 2013, there were 656 sharehoiders of the 2,100,535,133 commen shares issued and
outstanding. As of the latest practicable trading date. 10 July 2013, the Registrant's shares were
traded at the price of R2.32 per share in Philippine Stock Exchange.

On November 10 2008. the BOD approved the proposal to buy back from the market up to Three
Hundred Million Pesos (P300,000.000.00} worth of shares of the Corporation. As of March 31, 2011,
the total number of shares repurchased from the market is 134,855,500 worth P188.52 million.

On June 4, 2008, the BOD increased the Company's authorized capital stock from P1.9B to P2.258,
as weil as the issuance of 25% stock dividend fo all stockholders. This increase in capital stock was
approved by the SEC on 12 January 2009, while the stock dividends were disiributed to stockholders
as of record date of 10 February 2009 on 06 March 2009.

in 2007, the Parent Company declared a five percent (5%) property dividend in favor of its
shareholders-of-record as of 18 May 2007, payable in the form of common shares of Yehey! worth
P8%,415 629. In February 2008, the Parent Company distributed the property dividends declared.

There is no sale of unregistered securities within the past four (4) years.

Top 20 shareholders as of May 31, 2013:

A

1 | PCD NOMINEE CORP. 2,099,070,206.00
2 | SYSMART CORP, 60,178,375.00 2.69%
3 | TRANS- ASIA SECURITIES, INC. 6,830,000.00 |  0.31%
4 | SYSMART CORPORATION 5,000,000.00 0.22%
5 | EAST PACIFIC INVESTORS CORPORATION 4,520,000.00 0.20%
6 | A. BROWN COMPANY, INC. 3,441,250.00 0.15%
7 | LUCIO W. YAN &/OR CLARA YAN 3,406,250.00 0.15%
8 | OCX DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 3,200,000.00 0.14%
9 | RICARDO L. NG 1,624,375.00 0.07%
10 | AGAPITO C. BALAGTAS, JR. 1,437.500.00 0.05%
11 | APRICINIA B. FERNANDEZ 1,437,500.00. 0.06%
12 | SUZANNE LIM ' 1,437.500.00 0.06%
13 | HARLEY SY 1,437,500.00 0.06%
14 | CYGNET DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 1,408,250.00 0.06%
15 | JERRY TIU 1,365.625.00 0.03%
16 | CAMPOS, LANUZA & CO., INC. 1,161,500.C0 0.05%
17 | WILSON L. SY 1,150,000.00 0.05% |
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-
18 | FILIPINO) 1,883,185.00 0.08%
19 | JOHN PETER YU &/OR JUAN YU 800,600.00 0.04%
20 | AVESCO MARKETING CORPORATION - 718,750.00 0.03%




Dividends

The Company has not declared any cash dividends for the past two years.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2013 COMPARED TO 31
DECEMBER 2011 AND 2012

Balance Sheet

Assets 8,628 7,285 5,842
Liabilities 1,088 1,193 309

Stockholders' Equity 7,540 6,632 5,533
Book Value per Share 3.37 2.97 2.63

Income Statement

Revenues 469 1,059 1,053
Expenses 118 524 512

Other Income /

(Charges) (13) 35 {11)

Net Income 338 570 530

Earnings per Share 0.16 0.26 0.25

The Company posted a consclidated net income of Php338.0 million as of March 31, 2013. It went up
by 260% compared to same period last year of Php102 million. On a per share basis, the company
earned 0.16 centavos as of March 31, 2013 compared to .26 centaves as of December 31, 2012,

Despite global macroeconomic headwinds such as the US fiscal cliff, the EU sovereign debt crisis,
threat of a China hard landing and slowing global growth, global equity markets have managed to
perform sfrongly in 2012 on the back of monetary easing by most central bankers. The ECB's
Qutright Monetary Transactions (OMT) and the US Fed's Quantitative Easing 3 (QE3) in 3Q12 have
spurred a rally in global equities markets.

The Philippine stock market rallied 17.80 percent during the first quarter on the back of optimism
about the local economy even as Fitch Ratings gave the Philippines its first ever investment grade
rating. IN addition the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) continues to cut rates on its SDA causing
investors to look elsewhere for yield. This has caused flows into mutual funds to significantly increase
and BSP has hinted several cuts are to be expected in the future,

On the fixed income side, vields were mostly on a downtrend as a result of credit rating upgrades
from Standard & Poor's and Moody's and of easing monetary policy. 10-year and 20-year
benchmark yields were lower by 101 bps and 61 bps respectively from end-2011 to end-2012,

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:
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eBusiness Services, Inc. (“eBiz")

eBiz continue to achieve record money transfer volume. However, despite transaction growth,
money transfer revenues still fell 1.5% YoY to Php1.6 million due to the contractual reduction in the
Company's share of fees from Western Union and an appreciating currency. The decline in money
transfer revenues was partly offset by slightly higher revenues from the Company's foreign exchange
operations and other products which increased to Php25.5 miliion in first quarter of 2013 from
Php11.7 million in of the same period last year. Meanwhile, as a result of the Company’s continued
efforts to rationalize its costs, general and administrative expenses fell by 3% YoY to Php71.7 million
from Php74.2 million in March 2012. After provisions and taxes, eBiz posted a net income of
Php19.7 million in 2013, up 19% from Php10.2 million in 2012.

Yehey! Corporation {“Yehey”)

Total Revenues of the Company decreased by P 4.75 million from P9.58 million to last year P4.84
million of 1st quarter of 2013 and 2012 respectively. This is due to substantial decrease in media
sales, web development and digital PR.

However, Total Cost and Expenses decreased by approximately P5.31 million due to decrease in
Salaries & Wages and Other Costs like Depreciation, Subscription and Writers’ Fee, among others,

As such, Net Loss of the Company is P.5 million in March 2013 from P2.2 million in 2012.
Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI”)

Net revenues as of March 31, 2013 climbed to Php36.5 million from Php19.4 million last year due fo
increase in assets under management.

Expenses as of the 1st quarter of the year were 53% lower vs. last year. YTD net profit increased by
198% or Php 30.8 million from Php10.3 million fast year.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date. There is no unusual
nature or amount of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the estimates of amount
reported in the prior periods. There were no issuance, repurchases and repayments of debt and
equity securities for the period. No material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that
have not been reflected in the financial statements for the interim period. No significant elements of
income or loss that did not arise from the issuers continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management firm to help improve the
performances of its subsidiaries. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the

financial condition or results of operations.

Key Performance Indicators

The Company sets certain performance measures to gauge its operating performance periodically to
assess its overall state of corporate health. Listed below are the major performance measures, which
the Company has identified as reliable performance indicators.

Current Ratio’ 247.23% 614.55%
Assets to Equity” 114.43% 104.34%
Liabilities to Equity® 14.43% 4.34%
Return on l-‘weraggAssets4 1.11% 1.52%
Return on Average Equity’ 1.26% 1.59%
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The manner by which the Company calculates the above performance indicators for is as follows:

' Current Assets / Current Liabilities

Total Assets / Total Equity
Total Liabilities / Total Equity
Net Income / Average Total Assets

Net Income / Average Total Equity

Causes for any material changes (+/- 5% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statement items — three month period ending 31-March- 2013 versus 31-March-2012
77.57% decrease in internet sales and services

Mainly due to lower media sales, web development and dpr revenue.

98.26% increase ‘in money changing and foreign exchange
Mainly due to higher value of forex rates.

20.61% increase in interest income
Mainly due to additional fixed income securities.

87.5% increase in mutual fund income
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration.

452.25% increase in trading gains(loss)
Mainly due to high market price of invesiments.

845% increase in interest and bank charges
Primarily due to increase US dollar denominated loans from banks.

Balance Sheet items — March 31, 2013 versus end 2012

83% increase in receivables
Mainly due to advances for a new potential fund investment company.

99% decrease in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
Primarily due to disposals of FVPL.

21% increase in available-for-sale securities
Largely due to increase in equities and mutual fund investments.

53% increase in cumulative unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and equities securities.
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52% increase In accounts payable and other current liabilities
Significantly due to purchase of equity securities payable in April 2013.

In Millions | 2012 2011 2010

Balance Sheet

Assets 7,825.13 5,841.93 5,301.53

Liabilities 1,192.88 308.57 436.20

Stockholder's Equity B6,632.25 5,533.36 4,865.33
Income Statement

Revenues : 1,058.95 1,048.99 122877

Expenses 482.42 511.78 508.83

Other Income/(Charges) (6.44) (7.39) (3.32)

Net Income 570.09 : 529.82 716.62

Earnings per Share 0.26 0.25 0.33
Key Performance Indicators '

Current Ratio {Current

Assets/Current Liabilities) 2.31 3.89 5.29

Leverage Ratio (Total

Debt/Total Equity) 0.18 0.06 0.09

Comprehensive  Return  on

Equity 0.17 0.12 0.15

{Comprehensive Income/Total
Equity)
Book Value Per Share 2.97 2.48 2.18

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2012 Y2012 vs Y2011)

The Company posted a ceonsolidated net income of Php570.1 million as of December 31,
2012, higher by 7.6% compared to Php529.8 million in 2011. On a per share basis, the
company earned Php0.26 as of December 31, 2012 compared to Php0.25 centavos as of
December 31, 2011.

Despite global macroeconomic headwinds such as the US fiscal cliff, the EU sovereign debt
crisis, threat of a China hard landing and slowing global growth, global equity markets have
managed to perform strongly in 2012 on the back of monetary easing by most central
bankers. The ECB's Qutright Monetary Transactions (OMT) and the US Fed's Quantitative
Easing 3 (QE3) in 3Q12 have spurred a rally in global equities markets. For the year, the
S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index registered refurns of 13.4% and 13.2%, respectively,
compared to a flat growth and and -7.6%, respectively, in 2011.

Not to be outdone, the local equities market performed even better than its Western
counterparts on the back of improvements in the couniry’s fiscal position, four benchmark
rate cuts from the BSP and strong domestic consumption. For the year, the PHISIX and the
Company's equity portfolio gained 33.0% and 30.6%, respectively, compared to 4.1% and

4.9%, respectively, in 2011,

On the fixed income side, yields were mostly on a downtrend in 2012 as a result of credit
rating upgrades from Standard & Poor's and Moody's and of easing monetary policy. 10-year
and 20-year benchmark yields were lower by 101 bps and 61 bps respectively from end-2011
to end-2012. The Company's fixed income portfolio gained 9.5% in 2012, outperforming the
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benchmark HSBC Locai Bond Index which gained 8.9% during the same period. In 2011, the
Company'’s fixed income portfolio and the HSBC Local Bond Index gained 13.4% and 12.8%
respectively.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company's subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Inc. {(“eBiz"")

eBiz continue to achieve record money transfer volume, hitting over 4.4 million fransactions
worth in excess of USD 1.0 billion in 2012. However, despite transaction growth, money
transfer revenues stili fell 5% YoY to Php394.8 million due to the contractual reduction in the
Company's share of fees from Western Union and an appreciating currency. The decling in
money transfer revenues was partly offset by slightly higher revenues from the Company's
foreign exchange operations and other products which increased to Php57.7 million in 2012
from Php57.0 million in 2011. Meanwhile, as a result of the Company’s continued efforts to
rationalize its costs, general and administrative expenses fell by 5% YoY to Php379.6 million
from Php401.1 million in 2011. After provisions and taxes, eBiz posted a net income of
Php48.0 million in 2012, up 20% from Php40.0 millicn in 2011,

Yehey! Corporation

The Company experienced a 7% decline in revenues to P31.4 million in 2012 from P34
million in 2011. Although revenues from Digital PR increased significantly by 87% from P10
million to P19 million, web production revenues decreased by 47% from P18 million to 19
million. Likewise, no revenue from digital strategy was achieved for 2012, coming from a
revenue of P3.3 million in 2011,

The decline in revenues is mitigated by a 13% decline in total cost and expenses from P38
million to P31 million. General and administrative expenses decreased considerably as a
result of lower provision for credit and impairment losses. All other costs have insignificant
changes from 2011 to 2012.

Over-all, the Company posted total comprehensive income of 14 million, an 85%
improvement from an income of P7.5 million in 2011.

Philequity Management, Inc.

The year 2012 saw a significant increase in the equity markets with the Philippine Stock
Exchange Index (PSEi) returning 33.0% compared to 4.1% in 2011. This double digit return
helped increase investors’ interest in mutual funds, particularly equity funds.

As of end-2012, the Company’s assets under management increased 41.4% to Php6.9 billion
from Php4.9 billion as of end-2011. Net sales likewise increased 138.9% from Php197.2
million in 2011 to Php471.1 million in 2012. As a result, service income increased 33.9% to
Php87.0 million from Php65.0 million in 2011, After expenses and taxes, comprehensive
income in 2012 increased 54% to Php34.1 million.

Other Matters

The Parent Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, e-Business Services, Inc.,
continuously enter into currency forward transactions with bank counterparties to hedge their
foreign exchange risk. The nominal amounts of these contracts are off-balance sheet while
revaluation gains or losses are recognized as Miscellaneous Asset or Miscellaneous Liability,

respectively.

30



Causes for any material changes (+/-5% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statements items -Y2012 versus Y2011

6.22% decrease in commission income
Due to reduction in share of fees from Western Union

7.19% decrease in internet sales and services
Mainly due to absence of revenue from digital strategy.

33.97% increase in mutual fund income
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration.

6.43% decrease in general and administrative expenses
Mainly due to increase personnel costs.

8.74% increase in cost of services and sales
Primarily due to increase in digital public relations costs.

Balance Sheet items — Y2012 versus Y2011

153.35% increase in cash and cash equivalents
Primary due to higher short-term investments.

23.52% increase in receivables ‘
Significantly due to increase in receivable from Western Union and acquisition of Puregold
unguoted debt security of Php 150M.

419% increase in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
Primary due to quoted government bonds.

12.96% increase in avaifable-for-sale securities
Largely due to increase on equities and mutual fund investments,

97.6% decrease in investments in associate and joint venture
Mainly due to disposal of joint venture investment.

37.29% decrease in prepayments and other current assefs
Largely due to decrease in prepayments.

87.15% increase in deferred tax assets
Attributable to increase in allowance for credit losses.

294.32% increase in liabilities
Mainly due to availment of USD denominated unsecured short-term loans from banks.

94% increase in cumulative unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for -sale
investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and equities securities.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2041 (Y2011 vs Y2010)

The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php 529.8 million and Php 716.6 million
in 2011 and 2010 respectively. On a per share basis, this translates to a Php 0.25 income in
2011 compared to Php 0.33 income in 2010.
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2011 proved to be a volatile year for most equities markets. The Fed's second round of
guantitative easing during the latter part of 2010 spurred a rally in developed markets in
1Q11. However, equities were hammered for most of the second half as the European debt
crisis continued to unravel and as developed economies continued to experience lackluster
growth. The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index posted returns of 0.4% and -7.8%,
respectively in 2011 compared to 12.8% and 9.6%, respectively in 2010.

Meanwhile, ASEAN markets have fared relatively better due to healthier fiscal positions and
more robust domestic economies. In particular, the Philippines continue to enjoy a healthier
business climate and a stronger external position. lts domestic-driven economy has likewise
insulated it from external shocks such as the global slowdown and the EU crisis. As a result,
the Phisix posted a return of 4.1% in 2011 while the Company’s equity portfolio gained 4.9%
during the same period. In 2010, the Phisix gained 37.6% while the Company’s equity
portfolio posted a.return of 46.3%.

Political stability and an improved fiscal and monetary environment have prompted debt
ratings agency S&P to upgrade its outlook on the Philippines’ long-term foreign currency debt
to positive. As a result, interest rates trended lower especially on longer-dated securities.
The 10-year benchmark fell by almost 70 bps from 6.1% in 2010 to 5.4% in 2011. The
Company's fixed income portfolio gained 13.4% in 2011, outperforming the HSBC Local
Bond Index which rose 12.8% during the same period. In 2010, the same portfolic posted a
gain of 13.5% compared o a12.1% gain of the baenchmark.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Inc.

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2011, hitting over 4.2 million fransactions worth in
excess of USD 960 million. Value of international transactions grew 5.7% in 2011 compared
to industry growth of 7.2%.

Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 2011slid 3.7% to Php 357
million from Php 371 million in 2010. The decline can largely be attributed to the contractuai
reduction in the Company’s share in Westermn Union’s money transfer charges last September
2011. Furthermore, the continued appreciation of the Philippine peso against the US dollar
from an average of 45.06 in 2010 to 43.30 in 2011 dampened the Company's earnings.

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts o raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of about
Php 4 million, as expenses declined to Php 354 million in 2011 from Php 358 million in 2010.
However, because of weaker top line growth, 2011 net income fell 45.0% to P37 million from
P67 million in 2010.

Yehey! Corporation

A guasi recrganization which involved a re-alignment in management and rationalization of
personnel was started sometime in the middle of 2010. Likewise, cost cutting and production
efficiency measures were introduced that year and continued to 2011. Thus in 2011, Yehey!'s
financial performance improved substantially, posting net profit of P11.4 million from a net
loss of P8.45 million in 2010, '

Revenues in 2011 registered an 11% increase at P33.9 million, from P30.4 million in 2010.
Biggest contribution to revenue came from Web Development and Digital PR Services with
combined revenues of about P28 million. Digital Strategy services also contributed a
respectable amount of P3.3 million, considering that this service was relatively a new product
offering of the Company. The improvement in revenue generation must be due to more
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consistent requirements from existing clients and new clients who have been happier with the
delivery of Yehey's services,

Another improvement in the financial performance of the Company was the remarkable
decline in Cost of Services from P30.2 million in 2010 to P17.8 million in 2011, when full
impact of the personne! rationalization was realized. By the end of 2011, personnel count was
at 30 from a high of 68 in 2009.1t could be said that a most efficient ratio of sales to
production has been achieved.

Meanwhile, General and Administrative Expenses also decreased by 16% to P20 million as a
result of continuous and prudent management of all company resources. Also, lower
provisions were made in 2011 for credit losses and impairment due to an improved collection
- period.

Noteworthy, are the other contributors to Net Income, as follows: [1] P2.2 million income
recognized from the reversal of prior years provision for commission which was never
distributed as revenue targets were not met year on year;[2] P1.1 million representing 50%
share of the 2011 Net Income of Media Contacts, a joint venture undertaking of Yehey! with
Media Contacts, S.A

Philequity Management, Inc.

PEMI's 2011 revenues increased from Php43.6 million in 2009 to Php69.7 million. In line
with the strength of ASEAN economies and their relative outperformance vis-a-vis developed
economies, the mutual funds that the Company manages posted net subscriptions of Php
197 million in 2011 while total assets under management further increased to Php 4.9 billion
as of end-2011 from Php 4.4 billion as of end-2010.

PEMI's operating expenses amounted to Php 25.0 million and Php12.5 million in 2011 and
2010 respectively. This resulted to a net income of Php23.6 million in 2010 from Php16.3
million in 2010.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date. There is no
unusual nature or amount of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the
estimate of amount reported in prior periods. There were no issuance, repurchases and
repayments of debt and equity securities for the period. No material events subseguent to the
end of the year that have not been reflected in the financial statements. No significant
elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management firm to help

improve the performances of its subsidiaries. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2010 (Y2010 vs Y2009}

The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php 716.6 million and Php 365.2 million
in 2010 and 2009 respectively. On a per share basis, this translates to a Php 0.33 income in
2010 compared to Php 0.16 income in 2009.

The unprecedented fiscal stimulus from governments worldwide and the continued
quantitative easing by the US Federal Reserve have resulted to a global economy bottoming
out in 2009 after suffering from the worst financial crisis since the Great Depression. This, in
turn, has set the stage for a more sustained recovery in 2010, wherein valuations came
closer to their fair value levels. The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index posted more modest
returns of 12.8% and 9.6%, respectively in 2010 from 23.5% and 27.0%, respectively in 2009.
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On the domestic front, the smooth transition of power after a successful national elections
has resulted to an improved business confidence and outlook. The Company's equity
portfolio gained 46.3% in 2010, outperforming the Phisix which rose 37.6% during the same
period. In 2009, the same portfolic posted a return of 50.6% compared to a 63.0% gain of
the benchmark.

Investors were also optimistic that the present government can rein in the fiscal deficit while
still promoting economic growth. As a result, the yield curve has flattened and interest rates
have gone down. The Company's fixed income portfolio gained 13.5% in 2010, modestly
outperforming the HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 12.1% during the same period. In
2009, the same portfolio posted a gain 13.2% compared to an 8.3% gain of the benchmark.

For 2011, the Company maintains its positive outlook on the back of a strengthening US
economy. Inflation will be a key watch out as commodity prices continue on the uptrend.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Inc.

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2010, hitting over 4.0 million transactions worth in
excess of USD 900 million. Value of international transactions grew 9.2% in 2010, modestly
outpacing industry growth of 8.2%.

Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 2010 slid 3.3% to Php 371
million from Php 383 million in 2009. The modest decline was mainly due to Western Union
discounting the fees charged in some of its remittance corridors io enhance competitiveness.
Furthermore, the strengthening of the Philippine peso against the US dollar dampened eBiz's
earnings as the average exchange rate moved to 45.06 in 2010 from 47.61 in 2009.

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts to raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of about
Php 19 million, as expenses declined to Php 358 million in 2010 from Php 377 million in
2009. Due to lower costs, net income in 2010 even grew 18.0% to P67 million from P56

million in 2008.

For 2011, eBiz expects OFW remittances to further strengthen. The Company likewise
expects fo reap the benefits from its investment in various strategic programs in 2010 and be
abie to take advantage of the growing remittance industry.

Yehey! Corporation

The ceonsistent losses of Yehey! Corporation during the previous years, prompted the
shareholders to exercise a quasi-reorganization which involved a re-alignment in
management and rationalization of personnel. The re-organization which started middle of
2010, resulted in an improved financial performance of the company.

Gross Revenues of Yeheyl in 2010 declined by 20%, from Php38 million in 2009 to Php30.4
million in 2010. The decline in gross revenues is largely attributed to the lower revenues
contributed by the web development segment in 2010 of about Php19 million from Php28
million in 2009. Likewise, Portal and E- commerce segment contributions decreased by
Php1.5 million. Only the Media Sales and Digital PR segments showed improvement in
revenues. Media Sales revenues increased to Php6 million in 2010 from Php2.3 million in
2009 while Digital PR revenues marginally improved to Php4.7 million in 2010 from Php4.4

miilion in 2009.
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A number of factors contributed to the general decline in revenues, as follows: a) a more
prudent account acquisition taking into account credit-worthiness of the clients, b) focus
made on operational efficiency which in the long-term, should improve client satisfaction and
therefore increase client retention ratio. The decline in revenues was expected and seen as
temporary in 2010. The trend should improve in 2011.

While revenues declined, more efforts were exerted in bringing down the total costs of the
company. Cost of services decreased by 27%, from Php41.5 million in 2009 to Php30.2
million. The decline is & result of reduction in cost Salaries and Wages, as personnel count
went down to 35 from &8 in a pericd of 1 year. Freeze hiring was initiated, thus no
replacements were made for resigned employees. This mandate is still currently in place until
a most efficient ratio of sales to production is achieved. General and Administrative
Expenses likewise decreased from Php17 million in 2009 to Php11.5 million in 2009 as
savings from rent, utilities, transportation and travel were achieved.

However, bigger provisions were made for Doubtful Accounts to reflect the existing collection
probability. Said allocation resulted in a bigger operating loss for the Company from Php23.5
million in 2009 to Php28 million in 2010.

Yehey's investment in Media Contacts likewise reflected a loss of Php3.1 million in 2010,
thus, widening the gap of net lass from 2009.

Philequity Management, Inc,

PEMI's 2010 revenues increased from Php31.4 million in 2009to Php43.6 million. in line with
the global economic recovery and improved business outlook locally, the mutual funds it
manages posted net subscriptions of Php 750 million in 2010 while total assets under
management further increased fo Php 4.4 billion as of end-2010 from Php 2.5 billion as of
end-2009.

PEMI's operating expenses amounted to Php 12.7 million and Php10.5 million in 2010 and
2009 respectively. This resulted to a net income of Php16.3 million in 2010 from Php14.2
million in 2009.

During the first half of 2010, the General Manager of PEMI tendered his resignation, which
resulted to expansion plans being temporarily put on hold. However, the asset management
and servicing teams of the Company remain intact such that clients can continue to expect
only the highest standards of professionalism with respect to management of their
investments.

The Company and subsidiaries:

a) Have no known trends or any demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will result in or that are likely fo result in the liquidity increasing or decreasing in any
material way;

h) Have no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation;

¢) Have no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
{including contingent obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated

, entities or other persons created during the reporting period; and
d) Have not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or financing

agreement.
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Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Please refer to the discussion on "Directors and Executive Officers" in the main body of the
Information Statement.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has been menitoring compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of
2009, as well as other relevant SEC circulars and rules on good corporate governance. All directors,
officers, and employees complied with all the leading practices and principles on good corporate
governance as embodied in the Corporation’s Manual. The Company complied with the appropriate
performance self-rating assessment and performance evaluation system to determine and measure
compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance.

The Company is unaware of any non-compliance with or deviation from its Amended Manual of
Corporate Governance during the previous year. The Company will continue to monitor compliance
with the Revised Rules on Corporate Governance, and shall remain committed in ensuring the
adoption of other systems and practices of good corporate governance o enhance its value to its

shareholders.
- * * *

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE
OF AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH
SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S INFORMATION STATEMENT (ON SEC
FORM 20-1S) AND ANNUAL REPORT (ON SEC FORM 17-A) WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH
WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

A. BAYANI K. TAN

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

2704 EASTTOWER

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE CENTRE
EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGASCENTER
PASIGCITY, METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

F\datalelients\213\corp\misclasm201312013 vantage definitive 20-is.docx
213-2.3NABKTUCNKCMaissa
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Vnnl.fé,e Equities, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements for fhe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, including the additional
components attached thercm in accordance with the uccoumlné principles generally accepted in the
Philippines as prescribed in Note 2 1o the financial statements. This responsibility includes designing and
implementing internal conirols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from materia) inisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecling and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estirates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submit the same to the
stockholders. ;
l
Sycip, Gorres, Velayo and Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has examined the
financial statements of thé Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its

report to the stockholders,. has expressed its opinion on the Fmrness of presentation upon completion of
such examination.

cZ»pé/g

VALENTINO C
Chairman

EDNV DO P. BUNAT, JR. 1L. ONG
P ent casurer
CTC No.: 16283539 C No.: 5111250 CTC No.: 21824976

February 21, 2013/Pasid Cily; J'uunry 18, 2013/Mandaluyong City. Sanuary 02, 2013/San Juan City
TIN: 122-335-530 TIN: 107-184-956 TIN: 108-789-427
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ANNEX®

Vantage Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2012 and 2011

and for the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
and

independent Auditors’ Report

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
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SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
B760 Ayala Avenue

1226 Makati City

Philippines

Phone; (532) 891 0307
. Fax:  (632) 818 0872
| www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No, 0601,
Becembear 28, 2012, valid until December 31, 2015
BEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-3 (Group A),
November 15, 2012, valid until November 16, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Vantage Equities Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vantage Equities, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated statements of income, consclidated statemenis of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
g 14

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Vantage Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

- Ny a-"'\n'm a . QJL“""#\

Jdsephine Adrienne A. Abarca
Partner
CPA. Certificate No. 92126
SEC Accreditation No. 0466-AR-2 (Group A),

February 4, 2013, valid until February 3, 2016
Tax Identification No. 163-257-145
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-61-2012,

April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 3669656, January 2, 2013, Makati City

April 12, 2013
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES i¥ gy

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION____ i &

acendh

December 31
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) £1,369,141,777 £540,411,971
Loans and receivable — current portion (Note 8) 912,499,486 527.417,507
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 9) 450,158,034 86,739,792
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 11) 8,716,170 13,899,226
Total Current Assets 2,740,515,467 1,168,468,496
Noncurrent Assets
Loans and receivable - noncurrent portion (Note 8) 150,000,000 296,979,500
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) 4,856,579,928  4,299,216,023
Investments in an associate and a joint venture (Note 12) 119,228 4,957,780
Property and equipment (Note 13) 45,910,550 44,331,659
Goodwill 3,654,985 3,654,985
Deferred tax assets (Note 24) 3,819,683 2,040,989
Other noncurrent assets (Note 14) 24,538,270 22,290,539
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,084,622,644  4,673,471.475
P7,825,138,111 B5,841,939,971
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 15) P298,281,535 P288,465,032

Income tax payable 12,639,746 12,073,051

Notes payable (Note 16) 874,775,500 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,185,096,781 300,538,083

Noncurrent Liabilities

Retirement payable (Note 22) 7,371,013 7,030,626

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 415,620 1,003,292
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,786,633 8,033,918
Total Liabilities 1,192,883,414 308,572,001

(Forward)



December 31
2012 2011
Equity .
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:
Capital stock (Nofe 23) $2,235,390,633 £2,235,390,633
Cumulative net unrealized gain on change in fair value of
avatlable-for-sale investments (Note 10) 1,083,273,387 558,384,899
Retained earnings 3,347,493,258 2,798,177,641
Treasury stock (Note 23) (188,520,838)  (188,520,838)
6,477,636,440  5,403,432,335
Non-controlling interests 154,018,257 129,935,635
Total Equity 6,632,254.697  5,533,367,970
$7,825,138,111  B5,841,939,971

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
REVENUES (Note 17) P1,058,951,254 P1,048,993,667 £1,228,775,842
COST OF SERVICES AND SALES (Note 18) 25,260,812 23,230,959 42,449,147
GROSS INCOME 1,033,690,442 1,025,762,708 1,186,326,695
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSE (Note 19} (457,160,080) (488,549,521} (466,378,537}
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK
CHARGES (Note 16) (10,688,211) (2,569,793) (1,733,020)
GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT IN A
JOINT VENTURE (Note 12) 2,718,197 - -
EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS (LOSSES)
OF AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT
VENTURE (Note 12) (56,749) 1,149,083 (3,104,763)
OTHER INCOME (Note 20) 43,414,396 25,344,520 46,200,190
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 611,917,995 561,136,997 761,310,565
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Note 24)
Current 38,757,860 33,396,329 46,885,488
Final 4,846,181 2,189,811 1,071,976
Deferred (1,778,694) (4,272.914) - (3,269,159)
41,825,347 31,313,226 44,688,305
NET INCOME £570,092,648 P529,823,771 B716,622,260
Aftributable to;
Equity holders of the Parent Company B549,315,617 B514,705,557 P713,647,678
Non-controlling interests 20,777,031 15,118,214 2,974,582
£570,092,648 £525,823,771 £716,622,260
Basie/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Equity Iolders of the Parent Company :
(Note 26) P0.2615 B).2450 B(.3344

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
NET INCOME £570,092,648 P529,823,771 P716,622,260
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments, net of tax (Note 10) 524,838,488 138,207,325 176,700,309
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1£1,094,981,136 P668,031,096 £893,322,569
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P£1,074,204,105 B652,912,882 P890,347,987
Non-controlling interests 20,777,031 15,118,214 2,974,582
£1,094,981,136 P6638,031,096 P893,322,569

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax £611,917,995 B561,136,997 B761,310,565
Adjustments for:
Trading gains (Note 17) (333,663,314) (329,626,095) (506,639,797)
Interest income (Note 17) (131,960,951) (125,477,127) (114,324,691)
Dividend income (Note 17) (37,039,014) (35,610,251} (45,775,827)
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 13 and 14) 17,280,522 22,852,071 32,526,632
Provision for credit and impairment
losses (Note 19) 3,722,092 13,836,393 16,519,143
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 10,327,631 756,336 21,303,159
Recovery of allowance for credit losses
{Note 8) (10,215,789) (2,172,113) -
Interest expense and bank charges 10,638,211 2,569,793 1,733,020
Gain on sale of property and equipment
(Note 20) (59,521) (21,070) {(302,946)
Gain on sale of investment in a joint venture
(Note 12) (2,718,197) - -
Equity in net losses (earnings) of an associate
and joint venture (Note 12) 56,749 (1,149,083) 3,104,763
Reversal of asset retirement obligation
(Note 20) - (4,145,582) ~
Operating income before working capital changes 138,336,414 102,950,269 169,454,021
Decrease (increase) in:
Loans and receivables (76,708,080) (109,440,407} 44,415,366
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (359,635,362) 25,553,598 165,325,048
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (4,105,104) 11,909,064 2,782,203
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities 9,816,503 72,656,716 1,497,557
Retirement payable 340,387 220,820 (852,728)
Net cash generated from operations (291,955,242) 103,850,060 382,621,467
Interest received 127,092,264 110,577,878 121,203,650
Income tax paid {34,349,186) (65,345,603) (31,140,945)
Net cash provided by operating activities {199,212,164) 149,082,335 472,684,172

{Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:

Available-for-sale investments 5,965,255,706 B5,983,126,972 P3,026,884,130

Investment in joint venture (Note 12) 7,500,000 - -

Property and equipment 329,155 401,200 2,959,890
Acquisitions of:

Awvailable-for-sale investments (5,676,447,430) (6,085,290,870) (3,090,432,577)

Unquoted debt securities (150,000,000) (296,979,500) -

Property and equipment (Note 13) (19,088,603) (15,865,651) (14,148,103)

Investment in 2 joint venture - - 2,000,000
Dividends received 37,039,014 35,610,251 45,775,827
Increase in other noncurrent assets (2,288,174) (2,535,556) (1,101,708)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 162,299,668 (381,533,154) (28,062,541)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Payments of:

Notes payable 874,775,500 - -

Interest and bank charges (10,688,211) (2,569,793) (1,893,608)

Long-term debt - (2,925,490) (3,138,510)
Additional non-controlling interest in a subsidiary

(Note 1) 3,905,591 - -
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 23) — — (153,372,002)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 867,992,880 {5,495,283) (158,404,120}
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,350,578) (18,751) 6,534,949
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 828,729,806 (237.964,853) 292,752,460
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 540,411,971 778,376,824 485,624,364
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P£1,369,141,777 P540,411,971 B778,376,824

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

General Information

Corporate Information

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 20, 1992. The
primary business of the Parent Company is to invest in, acquire by purchase, exchange,
assignment or otherwise; or to hold, own, use for investment or otherwise shares of the capital
stock, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, or other securities or obligations created, negotiated or
issued by any corporation, association or other entities, whether foreign or domestic, including but
not limited to information technology companies and refated ventures, holding companies and
companies engaged in financial services, investments and real property development.

The Parent Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig Cify.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™):

Place of Percentage of Ownership
Name of Subsidiaties Incorporation 2012 2011
e-Business Services, Inc. (e-Business) Philippines 100.00 100.00
eBIZ Financial Services, Inc.

{eBIZ Financial)* Philippines 104.00 100.00
iCurrencies, Inc. (iCurrencies) Philippines 100.00 100.00
Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (PBF) Philippines 100.0¢ 100.00
Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income

Fund, Inc. (PFCFIF) Philippines 100.00 100.00
Philequity Dividend Yield

Fund, Inc. (PDYF) Philippines 100.00 -
Yehey! Corporation (Yehey!) Philippines 66.97 68.35
Philequity Management, Inc. (PEMI) Philippines 51.00 - 51.00

* Indirectly owned through e-Business
The Parent Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

In 2012, the Parent Company sold 3.89 million shares of Yehey! in the amount of 3.91 million.
As aresult of the sale, the Parent Company’s percentage of ownership in Yehey! decreased from
68.35% to 66.97% and non-controlling interest increased by B3.91 million.

¢-Business

e-Business is incorporated in the Philippines and is engaged in the fund transfer and remittance
services, both domestic and abroad, of any form or kind of currencies or monies, as well as in
conducting money exchange transactions as may be allowed by law and other allied activities
relative thereto. e-Business has an existing Representation Agreement (Agreement) with Western
Union Financial Services, Inc. (Western Union) covering its fund transfer and remittance services
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for a period of seven years from September 1, 2007 to August 31, 2014, e-Business receives

remuneration for the services provided to Western Union in accordance with the terms stipulated
in the Agreement.

eBiz Financial
eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on April 11, 2005

and started commercial operations on May 9, 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged in financing
business.

iCurrencies
iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on February 3, 2000 and started commercial operations on

May 31, 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and selling
of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, iCurrencies effectively stopped its business of buying and selling currencies as a
result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on October 26, 2000. Among
others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and
required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-up capital of
P£50.0 million,

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign currencies. The stockholders
likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

In the meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by income on its investments and interest income on its
funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

PBF

PBF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on May 6, 2008 under the Philippine Investment Company Act (ICA)
{Republic Act 2629) as an open-end mutual fund company. PBF is engaged in selling its capital
to the public and investing the proceeds in diversified portfolio of peso-denominated fixed-income
and equity securities. As of December 31, 2012, PBF has not yet launched its capital shares to the
public.

PFCFIF

PFCFIF incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on April 10, 2008 under the Philippine ICA as an open-end mutual fund
company. PFCFIF is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities. As of
December 31, 2012, PFCFIF has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.

PDYF

PDYF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on August 2, 2012 under Philippine ICA as an open-end investment company.
PDYF is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in diversified
portfolio of diversified portfolio of equity securities. As of December 31, 2012, PDYT has not yet
launched its capital shares to the public.
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Yehey!

Yehey! is engaged in the business of internet online related products relating to database search
engine, such as, but not limited to, conceptualizing, designing, illustrating, processing and editing
web sites. It is also engaged in pre-production and post-production work on web sites in the
internet and sell and market said products in the form of advertising of finished products in the
domestic or export market.

PEMI
PEMI was incorporated in the Philippines on March 15, 1994 and is primarily engaged in
management of mutual funds.

Approval and Authorization for Issuance of Consolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance
by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on April 12, 2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale {(AFS)
investments, which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso and all values are rounded to the nearest peso unit, except when
otherwise indicated.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and the items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The functional
currency of the Parent Company and each of the subsidiaries is Philippine peso.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
converlible are considered when assessing whether the Parent Company controls another entity.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Parent Company.
Control is achieved when the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Consolidation of subsidiaries
ceases when control is transferred out of the Group.
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When a change in ownership interest in a subsidiary occurs, which results in loss of control over

the subsidiary, the Parent Company:

» Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

* Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

» Derecognizes the related other comprehensive income recorded in equity and recycle the same
" to profit or loss or surplus;

* Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

s  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; and

e Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transaction, whereby the difference between the consideration paid and the amount
by which the non-controlling interest are adjusted is recognized as an equity transaction and
attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly
or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

Non-conirolling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from parent shareholders' equity. Any losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests are allocated against the interests of the non-controlling interest even

if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except for the following amended standards which were
adopted as of January 1, 2012. The following amended standards did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (dmendments)

The amendments require additional disclosures about financial assets that have been transferred
but not derecognized to enhance the understanding of the relationship between those assets that
have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendments require
disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement
in those derecognized assets.

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments)

This amendment to PAS 12 clarifies the determination of deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of investment property measured using the fair value model in PAS 40, Investment
Property, will be recovered through sale and, accordingly, requires that any related deferred tax
should be measured on a ‘sale’ basis. The presumption is rebutted if the investment property is
depreciable and it is held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits in the investment property over time (‘use’ basis), rather than through
sale. Furthermore, the amendment introduces the requirement that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment, always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.
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Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the Group’s functional cutrency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency using the Philippine
Dealing System (PDS) closing rate prevailing at the consolidated statement of financial position
date. Alldifferences are taken to the consolidated statement of income. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the prevailing
closing exchange rate as of the date of initial transaction.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Puichases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the trade date.
Receivables, accounts payable and other noncurrent liabilities, and long term debt are recognized
when cash is received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial insturments at
FVPL, the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs. The Group classifies
its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified as
either financial iabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities carried at amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they
are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every
reporting date.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group does not have HTM investments,

Determination of fair value

The fair value of the financial instruments traded in active markets at the consolidated statement of
financial position date is based on their quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
When current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. Valuation
techniques include net present value technigues, comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist, option pricing models, and other relevant valuation models. The
inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but

where observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The
judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated
derivatives and discount rates.
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‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the consolidated statement of
income under ‘Miscellaneous expense’ unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset. In cases where transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of
income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each

transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference
amount.

Financial instrumenis at FVPL
Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets and financial liabilities that are:

e acquired and held for trading purposes

s designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL; and

» stand-alone or bifurcated embedded derivative financial instruments not designated as
effective hedging instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
purposes of selling and repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be designated by management on initial recognition
as at FVPL when the following criteria are met:

s The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis;

¢ The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

e The financial instrument cottains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analy51s that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in ‘Trading gains’
in the consolidated statement of income. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest
income’ or ‘Interest expense’ in the consolidated statement of income, respectively, while
dividend income is recorded in ‘Dividend income’ in the consolidated statement of income when
the right to receive payment has been established. .

Derivatives classified as FVPL

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as hablhtles when the fair
value is negative. ?

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
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instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative is
separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all the following conditions are
met:

¢ the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristic of the host contract;

e aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of the derivative; and

e the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at fair value with fair value changes
charged through profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host
contracts when the Group first becomes party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there
is a change in the terms of the contracts that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.

The Group bifurcated embedded derivatives as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 pertaining to
Unquoted debt securities under ‘Loans and receivables’. The value of the bifurcated embedded
derivatives is not significant.

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate
or short-term resale and are not designated as ‘AFS investments’ or ‘Financial assets designated at
FVPL’.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at cost or amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The amortization is included in ‘Interest
income’ in the consolidated staternent of income. The losses arising from impairment are

recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the consolidated statement of
income.

AFS investments

AFS investments are nonderivative financial assets which are designated as such or do not qualify
to be classified as designated at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. They are
purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions. They include equity investments, money market papers and other debt
instruments.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair vatue. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the consolidated statement of income.
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded,
net of tax, from the reported earnings and are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as ‘Net changes in fair value of AFS investments’.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed
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to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS debt investments are
reported in the consolidated statement of income as ‘Interest income’ using the EIR. Dividends
earned on holding AFS equity investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of income
as ‘Dividend income’ when the right to receive payment has been established. The losses arising
from impairment of such investment are recognized as ‘Provision for credit and impairment
losses’ in the consolidated statement of income.

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified
as liabilities under ‘Accounts payable and other current liabilities’, or other appropriate financial
liability accounts, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the
cbligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments that contain
both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being
assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately
determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, accounts payable and similar financial liabilities not qualified as and
not designated as FVPL, are subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
the issue and fees that are an integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

* Financial assets

A financial asset (where applicable, a part of a financial asset, or part of a group of financial

assets) is derecognized when:

¢ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

¢ the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control over
the asset. '

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legai
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and setile the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreemetts, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or & group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, which includes cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and deposits, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individuatly significant. For individually assessed financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
loss is charged against the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized based
on the original EIR of the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance accounts, are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, any
amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the
consolidated statement of income.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or nof, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment, Those characteristics
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are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of

the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the coniractual terms of the assets being
evaluated. '

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in
the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect
the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (such changes in property prices,
payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience. :

AFES investments

For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of income - is removed from consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value
after. impairment are recognized directly in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘Interest income’ in the
consolidated statement of income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of iicome, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and short-term investments. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the dates of placement and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Investments in associate and joint venture

Investment in associate

Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% and 50.00% of the voting rights. In the
consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting,

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying value of the investment and
is not amortized. The Group’s share in an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in the associate’s equity reserves is recognized directly in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. Profits and losses resuiting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate,

Investment in joint venture

Investment in joint venture is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The
investment in joint venture is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
plus post-acquisition changes in the share of net assets of the joint venture, less any allowance for
impairment losses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value. The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import
duties, taxes and any costs directly attributable to bringing the property and equipment to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipoent have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
income in the year in which such costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally
assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property
and equipment.

The cost of an item of property and equipment also includes costs of dismantlement, removal or
restoration and the related obligation that the Group incurs at the end of the useful life of property
and equipment.

When each major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Such costs are capitalized and amortized over the next major repairs and maintenance
activity.
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Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the property and equipment as follows:

Office condominium 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 2-10 years
Office improvements 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Server and network equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years or tetm of lease, whichever

period is shorter

The useful lives, residual values, and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the periods, residual values, and method of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation are charged to consolidated statement of income.

When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to consolidated statement of income.

Software and Website

Development costs of software and website included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in
the consolidated statement of financial position are capitalized and treated as intangible assets
because their costs are not an integral part of the related hardware. Amortization is computed
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 3 years for software and 2 years
for website.

Impairment of Property and Equipment. Software and Investments in Associate and Joint Venture
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be

impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverablé amount. An asset’s recoverabie amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash- generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that réflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates uged to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the Jast impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
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that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value,
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Parent Company’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired business. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the investment in
PEM]I, to which the goodwill relates. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
investment. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the investment and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The discount rate reflects management’s estimate
of the risks specific to the investment.

Where the recoverable amount of the investment is less than the carrying amount of the
investment, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as principal or agent. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Trading gains

This represents results arising from trading activities including all gains and losses from changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVPL, derivatives, and gains and losses from disposal of AFS
investments. Revenue is recognized on trade date upon confirmation of sale of investments from
counterparties. :

Commission income

This represents the commission received by the Group from Western Union. The Group receives
commission from Western Union for every money transfer service provided by the former for the
latter. Revenue is recognized when the money transfer service has been rendered which is when
Western Union acknowledges the transaction.

Interest income
Interest on financial instruments is recognized based on the effective interest method of
accounting.

Share in foreign exchange differential

Western Union establishes the rates by which the currency in which money transfer service
transaction is originated (originating currency) is converted into the currency in which the
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transaction is paid (payment currency). Share from foreign exchange differential is recognized
when money transfer service is rendered and originating currency is converted to the payment
currency.

Service income
Service income comprises management fee and sales commission. Management fee is recognized
as mutual fund management services are rendered and in accordance with the management and

distribution agreement. Sales commission is recognized upon subscription and sale of the mutual
funds’ common shares.

Money changing gain

Money changing gains are related to the Group’s retail foreign exchange operations in the
branches. The Group provides money changing services to its clients which includes buying and
selling of foreign currencies. Revenue is recognized when the money changing service is
rendered.

Dividend income
Revenue is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Advertising, Web development and Internet service

Revenue from advertising and web development js recognized based on Percentage of Completion
Method. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of the work performed.
Revenue from internet service is recognized at the time services are rendered.

Income from business partners

This represents fees received by the Group from partner companies for other retail services in the
branches including over-the-counter payment collection and airline ticketing services. Income
from business partners are recognized at the time the services are rendered.

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Cost of services and sales
Cost of services and sales, which include personnel costs and other expenses incidental to the
Group’s primary services, are expensed as incurred.’

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses, which include the cost of administering the business and are
not directly associated with the generation of revenue, are expensed as incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A re-assessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;
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(¢} There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a re-assessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment for scenarios a, ¢ or d above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.

Group as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease agreement.

Retirement Costs

e-Business has funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all
of its regular employees. The Parent Company and Yehey! have unfunded, noncontributory
defined benefit retirement plans covering substantially all of their regular employees. The
obligation and costs of retirement benefits are actuarially computed by an independent actuary
using projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or
expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarjal gains and losses for the plan at the end of
the previous reporting period exceed 10.00% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of the plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the
expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the fair
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such aggregate is
negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative
unrecognized net actuaria} losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to
the plan.

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and

past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the
current period and past service cost of the current peried are recognized immediately to the extent
that they exceed any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits. If there is no
change or an increase in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses
of the currerit period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately.
Similarly, net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the
current period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above
are recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized
net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan. If there
is no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial
gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are
recognized immediately.
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Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compuie the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences and
carryforward benefit of unused net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) and excess of minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with certain
exceptions. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward benefit of unused NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income wil] be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the
consolidated statement of income is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appiy to the
periods when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same tax authority.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are
sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to ‘Capital
paid-in excess of par value’ account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as
underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in
excess of par value’ account. If the ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ is not sufficient, the
excess is charged against the ‘Retained earnings’.

When the Parent Company issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained
for each class of stock and the number of shares issued.

Own equity instruments which are acquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and
accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent Company’s own
equity instruments. ‘
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‘Retained earnings’ represents accumulated earnings of the Group less dividends declared.

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is determined by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments for any stock
split and stock dividends declared.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of
any dilutive potential common shares. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company
does not have dilutive potential common shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and a reliablé estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that refiects current market assessment
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as an
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after reporting date that provide additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
financial statements, when material.

Dividends on common shares

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
approved by the respective BOD and sharcholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by the respective BOD and
shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the consolidated statement of financial position date are dealt with as an event after the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

Segment reporting

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segnient representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6. The Group’s assets producing revenues are located in the
Philippines (i.e., one geographical location). Therefore, geographical segment information is no
longer presented.
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Future Changes in Accounting Policies

Standards issued but not yet effective up to date of the consolidated financial statements are listed
below. The Group intends to adopt those standards when they become effective. Except when
otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these new and amended standards
and interpretations to have significant impact on its financial statements.

New and amended standards

Effective in 2013

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after Janmary 1, 2013. These amendments require an entity to disclose information about
rights of set-off and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new
disctosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with PAS 32. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether
they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to disclose, in a
tabular format unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum quantitative
information. This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities
recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining

the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
¢) The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netling arrangement or similar agreement

that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:

i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and

ii.  Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash coliateral); and

e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. It
replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) - 12, Corisolidation - Special Purpose
Entities. It establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special
purpose entities. The changes introduced by the standard will require management to exercise
significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore required to be
consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27. The
application of this new standard will not impact the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2013, It
replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers. It removes the option to account for jointly controiled
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a
joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The application of this new
standard will not impact the financial position or performance of the Group.

PERS 12, Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. It
includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and

PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. The
adoption of PFRS 12 will affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

It establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements. It does
not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to
measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted. s disclosure
requirements need not be applied in comparative information provided for periods before
initial application of PFRS 13. The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of this
standard will have a significant impact on its financial position and performance.

PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012. The
amendments to the standard change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive
income. Ttems that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in
time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from
items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and there is no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Amendments range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and
the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
revised standard also requires new disclosures such as, among others, a sensitivity analysis for
each significant actuarial assumption, information on asset-liability matching strategies,
duration of the defined benefit obligation, and disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk.
Once effective, the Group has to apply the amendments retroactively to the earliest period
presented.
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The Group reviewed its existing employee benefits and determined that the amended standard
has significant impact on its accounting for retirement benefits. The Company obtained the
services of an external actuary to compute the impact to the financial statements upon
adoption of the standard. The effects are detailed below:

As at
31 December Asat
2012 i January 2012

Increase (decrease) in:
Consolidated statements of financial position

Retirement payable (89,594,787) (®9,513,481)

Deferred tax asset 794,778 483,992

Other comprehensive income 1,218,702 (19,642)

Retained eamnings 9,170,863 10,017,115
2012

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Retirement expense B1,157,038

Provision for deferred tax 310,788

Net income 846,252

Other comprehensive income 1,238,344

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains in the standard is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial
statements. The adoption of the amended PAS 27 will not have a significant impact on the
separate financial statements of the Group.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS 12, the standard has
been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the
application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. This
interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity,
during the production phase of the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting for the
benefit from the stripping activity. This new interpretation is not relevant to the Group.

Effective in 2014

*

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
labilities

The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014. These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legaily enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting
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criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation only
and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Effective in 2015

¢ . PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. PFRS 9, as
issued, reflects the first phase on the replacemént of PAS 39 and applies to the classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Work on impairment of financial instruments
and hedge accounting is still ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9
requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial
asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All
other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All
equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss. Equity
financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For
FVOQ liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 may have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no
impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

¢ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-15, dgreement for the Construction of Real Estate
This Interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred
the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. The application of this interpretation will not impact the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cvcle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary

amendments to PFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 and are applied retrospectively. . Earlier application is permitted.

PFERS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS — Borrowing Cosis

The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs
in accordance with its previous generally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward,
without any adjustment, the amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial
position at the date of transition. Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are
recognized in accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment does not apply to the
Group as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.
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PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for comparative
information

The amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed
voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospectlve application of an accounting policy,
or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements An entity must
include comparative information in the related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative pefrlod The
additional comparative period doés not need to contain a complete set of financial statements. On
the other hand, supporting notes for the third balance sheet (mandatory when there is a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of
items in the financial statements) are not required. The amendments affect disclosures only and
have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment

The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise. The amendment will not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity
instruments

The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, fncome
Taxes. The Group expects that this amendment will not have any impact on its financial position
or performance,

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information for
total assets and liabilities

The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment
need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker and there has been a material change from the amount disclosed in the entity’s previous
annual financial statements for that reportable segment. The amendment affects disclosures only
and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
Group to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events
may occur which will cause the judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to
change. The effects of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Judgments
The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

a)

b)

d)

Determination of functional currency

Each entity in the Group has determined its functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which each entity operates and the
currency that mainly influences the income and expenses.

Operating lease commitments - group as a lessee

The Group has entered into lease contracts for some of its office spaces and branches. The
Group has determined that it has not acquired all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased properties because of the following factors: (a) the Group will not
acquire the ownership of the leased asset upon termination of the lease; (b) the Group has no
option to purchase the asset at a price that is sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date of
the option; and (c) the lease term is only for a period of one year, renewable annually.
Accordingly, the Group accounts for the leases as operating leases.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized or disclosed in the
financial statements cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include
considerations of liquidity and identification of comparable investments and applicable credit
spreads to arrive at adjusted quoted market prices.

The carrying values and corresponding fair values of financial instruments as well as the
manner in which fair values were determined are discussed in more detail in Note 5.

Financial assets not quoted in an active market

The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in
an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regulartly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Determination of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to determine
whether it is acting as a principal or an agent:

e whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and services;
whether the Group has inventory risk;

whether the Group has discretion in establishing prices; and

whether the Group bears the credit risk.

If the Group has determined it is acting as a principal, revenue is recognized on a gross basis
with the amount remitted to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and expenses.

If the Group has determined it is acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is recognized
as revenue.
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The Group assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded that it is acting as principal in
some arrangements and as an agent in other arrangements.

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a materjal adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the néxt financial year are discussed below:

a)

Fair value of financial instruments

PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities be carried and disclosed at fair value,
which requires the use of accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components
of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rate), the timing and amount of changes in fair value
would differ if the Group utilized a different valuation methodology. Any change in the
assumptions could affect the fair values of these financial assets and liabilities.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are disclosed in Note 5.

b) Allowance for credit losses

The Group maintains an allowance for credit losses at a level considered adequate to provide
for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is evaluated by the Group on
the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are
not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customers, average age of
accounts and collection experience. The Group performs a regular review of the age and
status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment
and provide the appropriate allowance for impairment losses. The review is accomplished
using specific assessment and collective approaches. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized
different methodologies.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying value of receivables and the related
allowance for credit losses are disclosed in Note 8.

Impairment of AFS investments

The Group determines that AFS equity investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as
decrease of more than 20.00% of the original cost of investment, and ‘prolonged’ as greater
than 12 months. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates among other factors, the
normal volatility in share price.

The Group treats AFS debt investments as impaired when an objective evidence of
impairment exists. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the counterparty is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that it will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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In 2012 and 2011, the Group recognized impairment losses on unquoted AFS equity
investments (see Note 10). No impairment loss was recognized in 2010. As of December 31,
2012 and 2011, the carrying values of AFS investments are disclosed in Note 10.

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software and website costs

The useful lives of the property and equipment and software and website costs are estimated
based on the period over which the property and equipment and software and website costs are
expected to be available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property
and equipment and software and website costs are reviewed periodically and updated if
expectations differ materially from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property and
equipment, software and website. However, it is possible that future results or operations
could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recording of expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

There is no change in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software and
website during the year. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying values of property
and equipment are disclosed in Note 13. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying
value of software and website costs is disclosed in Note 14,

Impairment of nonfinancial assets (except Goodwill)

PAS 36, Impairment of Assels, requires that an impairment review be performed when certain
impairment indicators are present. Determining the value in use of property and equipment
and other nonfinancial assets, which require the determination of future cash flows expected to
be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial
statements.

As of the reporting dates, the Group’s property and equipment and software do not have any
indication of impairtment.

Fifth Agency Unified Services, Inc. (FAUSI), an associate, stopped its normal operations in
2008. FAUSI suffered consecutive years of losses which the management believes may lead
to non-recovery of the Group’s investment. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group’s
allowance for impairment on its investment in FAUSI is disclosed in Note 12. The carrying
values of the investment in FAUSI as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are also disclosed in
Note 12.

Retirement costs

The determination of the Group’s retirement cost is dependent on certain assumptions vsed by
the actuary in calculating such amount. Those assumptions are described in Note 22 and
include, among others, discount rates, rates of future salary increase, expected rate of return on
plan assets and average remaining working lives of employees. Actual results that differ from
the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
genetally affect the Group’s recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
periods. While management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the Group’s actual experience or significant changes in the
assumptions may materially affect the retirement obligation.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, retirement payable is disclosed in Note 22.

g} Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the differences can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets to be recognized, based upon likely timing and level of future taxable income.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, are
disclosed in Note 24. Deferred tax on temporary differences not recognized in the

consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are disclosed
in Note 24,

h) Legal Contingencies
The estimate of probable costs, if any, for the resolution of possible claims is developed in
consultation with outside legal counsel handling the Group’s defense in these matters and is
based upon an analysis of potential results. Based on management’s assessment, there are no
legal claims that require recognition in the consolidated financial statements (see Note 28).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, AFS
investments, financial assets at FVPL, accounis payable and other liabilities and notes payable. .
The Group also has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
deposits.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risks. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and these are
summarized below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties failed
to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by trading
only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all custormers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Since the Group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to
the carrying values of its financial assets since it does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements that will mitigate credit risk exposure.

The fair values of financial assets at FVPL and AFS investments represent the credit risk exposure
as of the reporting date but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result
of changes in fair value.
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The table below shows an aging analysis of loans and receivables:

2012
Neither Past Past Due but not Impaired
Due nor 91-120 121-150 151-180 Over
Impaired Days Days 1380 Days 130 Days Subtotal Impaired Total
Due from:
Western Union $456,748,895 P P- | o P P456,743,895 B 456,748,895
Broker 30,003,989 - - - - 30,003,989 - 30,003,989
Sub-agents 15,174,922 - - - - 15,174,922 - 15,174,912
Business pariners 5,615,263 - - - - 5,615,263 - 5,615,263
Urnquoted debt securities 480,565,787 - - - — 480,565,787 - 480,565,787
Receivable from advertising and
web developinent services 11,108,576 1,172,232 35,964 3,547,499 - 15,864,271 26,004,748 42,529,019
Accrued interest receivable 38,875,411 - - - - 38,875,411 50,667 38,926,078
Trade receivable 11,156,183 - - - - 11,737,072 580,839 11,737,072
Advances ta officers -
and employees 2,133,139 - - - - 2,133,139 1,295,924 3,429,063
Others 6,639,172 — — — = 6,058,283 14,565,356 21,204,528
¥1,058,021,337 F1,172,232 F35964  $3,547,499 P~ 1,062,777,032  P43,157,58¢ P1,105,934,616
2011
Neither Past Past Due but nat Impaired
Due nor 91-120 i21-150 151-180 Over
Impaired Days Days 180 Days 180 Days Subtotal Impaired Total
Due from:
Western Union B347,017,898 B P R P~ B347,017,398 B~ P347,017,398
Broker 48,201,151 - - - - 48291,151 - 48,291,151
Sub-agents 15,285,589 - - - - 15285589 - 15,285,589
Business parirers 3,155,168 - - - - 3,165,168 - 3,195,158
Unquoted debt securities 296,979,500 - - - ~ 296,979,500 - 296,975,500
Receivable from advertising and
web development services 4,156,310 - - - - 4,156,810 28,511,309 33,668,119
Accrued interest receivable 34,006,724 - - - - 34,006,724 50,667 34,057,391
Trade receivable 69,805,323 - - - 69,805,323 7,627,663 77,432,986
Advances to officers
and employees 1,441,284 - - - - ,441,284 1,295,924 2,737,208
Others 4,217,560 - — - - 4,217,560 11,475,280 15,692,840
£524,397,007 2 P- P B~ P§24,397,007  R49,960,843  R§74,357,850

Past due or impaired receivables pertain to those receivables which are already outstanding
beyond their normal credit terms, a portion of which were already provided with allowance. For
those past due receivables without an allowance, the Group assessed them as still collectible
granting that there will be continuous effort to follow-up such receivables from their customers.

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired financial
assets based on historical experience with the corresponding third parties.

2012
Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash and cash equivalents* £1,167,218,612 2 P P1,167,218,612
Loans and receivablas:
Due from:
Western Union 456,748,895 - - 456,748,895
Broker 30,003,989 - - 30,003,989
Sub-agents 15,174,922 - - 15,174,922
Business partners - 5,615,263 - 5,615,263
Unquoted debt securities 480,565,787 - — 480,565,787
Receivable from advertising and
web development services 1,954,659 5,780,789 3,373,130 11,108,578
Accrued interest receivable 38,875,411 - - 38,875,411
Trade receivable 11,156,183 - - 11,737,072
Advances to officers and
employees 2,133,139 - - 2,133,139
Others - 6,639,172 - 6,038,283
AFS investments:
Quoted:
Equity securities 1,666,255,287 - — 1,666,255,287
Government bonds 1,355,540,891 - - 1,355,540,891
Corporate bonds 77,819,199 - - 77,819,199
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2012
Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Unquoted:
Corporate bonds 172,424,074 - - 172,424,074
Mutual funds 1,583,970,477 - - 1,583,970,477
Golf shares 570,000 - - 570,000
Financial assets at FVPL:
Government bonds 385,781,634 - - 385,781,634
Corporate bond 61,575,000 - - 61,575,000
Nondeliverable forward 2,801,400 - - 2,801,400
Deposits (included in “Other noncurrent
asgets”™) 20,729,593 - — 20,729,593
£7,531,299,152  P18,035,224 £3,373,130 $7,552,707,506
*Excluding cash on hand.
2011
Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash and cash equivalents* $359,137,670 P B B359,137,670
Loans and receivables:
Due from:
‘Western Union 347,017,898 - — 347,017,898
Broker 48,291,151 - - 48,291,151
Sub-agents 15,285,589 - - 15,285,589
Business pariners - 3,195,168 - 3,195,168
Unquoted debt securities 296,979,500 - — 296,979,500
Receivable from advertising and
web development services - 4,156,810 - 4,156,310
Accrued interest receivable 34,006,724 - - 34,006,724
Trade receivable 69,805,323 — - 69,805,323
Advances to officers and
employees 1,441,284 - - 1,441,284
Others - 4,217,560 - 4,217,560
AFS investments:
Quoted:
Equity securities 1,270,721,653 - — 1,270,721,653
Government bonds 1,535,603,049 - — 1,535,603,049
Corporate bonds 55,568,743 - - 55,568,743
Unquoted:
Corporate bonds 292,950,592 - — 292,950,592
Mutual fund 1,143,801,986 - — 1,143,801,986
Golf shares 570,000 - ~ 570,000
Financial assets at FVPL:
Corporate bond 86,627,840 - - 86,627,840
Nondeliverable forward 111,952 - - 111,952
Deposits (included in “Other noncurrent
assgets™) 18,456,517 - - 18,456,517
B5,576,377,471  B11,569,538 P B5,587,947,009
*Excluding cash on hand.

Grade A financial assets pertain to those investments with counterparties of good credit standing
or receivables from clients or customers that consistently pay on or before the maturity date.
Grades B and C includé those receivables being collected on due dates with varying collection
efforts required, ranging from minimum to moderate that may require close monitoring.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as Grade A because it is deposited with reputable banks.
AFS investments are classified as Grade A since these mostly pertain to investments in listed
companics and government-issued bonds.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Group closely monitors its
cash flows and ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due. The Group also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.
Any excess cash is invested in short-term money market placements. These placements are

maintained to meet maturing obligations.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial instruments based on

contractual undiscounted payments:

2012
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 341,791,632 P1,027,350,145 E B~ B1,369,141,777
Loans and receivables
Due from:
Westen Union - 456,748,895 — - - 456,748,895
Broker - 30,003,989 - - - 30,003,989
Sub-agents - 574,922 - 14,600,000 - 15,174,922
Business partners 5,615,263 - - - - 5,615,263
Unquoted debt securities - 2,751,988 327,813,799 150,000,000 - 480,565,787
Future interest - 2,650,000 3,209,444 - - 5,859,444
Receivable from adveriising and
web development services 15,586,725 - - - - 15,586,725
Accrued interest receivable 35,265 31,613,742 6,777,420 448,984 - 38,875,411
Trade receivable 11,156,183 - - - - 11,156,183
Advances to officers and
employees 2,133,139 - - - - 2,133,139
Others 6,639,172 - - - - 6,639,172
AFS Investments
Quoted:
Equity securities 1,649,290,287 - - - 16,875,000  1,666,165,287
Govemment bonds — - - 47,894,267 1,307,646,624  1,355,540,891
Corporate bonds - - - 68,344,202 9,474,997 77,819,199
Unquoted: -
Comorate bonds - - - 95,198,204 77,225,870 172,424,074
Mutual funds 1,583,970,477 - - - - 1,533,970,477
Golf Shares 570,000 - - - - 570,000
Future interest - 4,539,377 55,900,502 303,882,558 1,042,141336  1,406,463,773
Financial assets at FVPL:
Government bands - - - - 385,781,634 385,781,634
Corporate bonds - 61,575,000 - - - 61,575,000
Derivative assets - 2,801,400 - - - 2,801,400
Future inferest - 1,315,550 10,710,008 11,305,333 - 23,330,883
Other non-current assets
Deposits - - - 20,729,593 — 20,728,593
£3,616,788,143  B1,621,925,008 $404,411,165 ?712.403,_141 $2,839,145,461 B9,194,672,918
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Due to sub-agents and brokers - 196,929,646 - - - 196,929,646
Accrued expenses - 16,596,212 34,938,349 - - 51,534,561
Trade 24,695,322 - - - - 24,695,822
Derivative liability - 255,000 - - - 255,000
Notes payable — 874,775,500 — - - 874,775,500
$24,695,822 P1,088,556,358  ¥34,938,349 F P ¥1,148,190,529
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2011
Less than More than
QOn Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P252,712417  PB287,699,554 - P B~ B30411971
Loans and receivables
Due from: - 347,017,898 - - - 347,017,898
Western Union
Broker - 48,291,151 - - - 48,291,151
Sub-agents - 15,285,589 - - - 15,285,589
Businéss partners 3,195,168 ~ - - - 3,195,168
Unguoted debt securities - - - 296,979,500 - 296,879,500
Future interest - 1,427,721 7,199,488 14,398,975 - 23,026,184
Trade 9,257,840 60,547,483 - - - 69,805,323
Receivable from advertising and '
web development services 4,156,810 - - - - 4,156,810
Accrued interests - 29,092,465 4,914,259 - - 34,006,724
Advances to officers and
employees 1,441,284 - - - - 1,441,284
Others 4,217,560 - - - - 4217,560
AFS Investments
Quoted:

Govemment bonds - - - 124,802,317 1,410,800,732 1,535,603,049

Corporate bonds - - - - 55,568,743 55,568,743

Equity securities 1,270,721,653 - - - - 1270,721,653
Unquoted:

Corporate bonds - - 123,045,125 94,054,947 75,850,520 292,950,592
Mutual funds 1,143,801,936 - - - - 1,143,801,986
Golf Shares 570,000 - - - - 570,000
Future interest - 3,437,979 62,282,688 349,024,150 834,697,599 1,249,442.416

Financial assets at FVPL:
Corporate bonds - - - 86,627,840 - 86,627,840
Derivative assets - 111,952 - - - 111,952
Future interest - 333,184 3,331,840 3,442,901 - 7,107,925
Other non-current assets :
Deposits - — — 18,456,517 — 18,456,517
£2,690,074,718  P793,244,976  B200,773,400 P087,787,147 B2,376,917,594 B7,048,797,835
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
liabilities
Due to sub-agents and brokers B. R135273271 P B B P135,273271
Accrued expenses - 13,761,313 56,174,130 - - 69,935,443
Trade - 9,160,739 47,395,157 - - 56,555,896
Derivative liability — 777,820 - - — 777,820
P—  P15§,973,143  B103,569,287 P P P262,542,430
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that movements of market prices will adversely affect the Group’s financial
condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Group focuses on managing price (risk of
loss arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument) and foreign exchange
risks (risk of loss arising from fluctuations in exchange rates).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates reiates primarily to the Group’s AFS investments and financial assets at FVPL.

The sensitivity of equity is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates by revaluing the

fixed rate AFS investments while the sensitivity of income is the effect to changes in fair value of
fixed rate financial assets at FVPL held as of reporting date,
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates

with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity and income as of December 31, 2012
and 2011.

2012 2011
Change in Effect Effect Effect Effect
Basis Points on Equity on Income on Equity on Income
Increase by 100 (®134,711,338) (P34,641,332)  (P119,286,481) (B867,225)
Decrease by100 154,491,539 £39,539,782 132,830,826 880,397

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. The Group’s financial instruments which are
denominated in foreign currency include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, AFS investments,
financial assets at FVPL, and long-term debt. The Group maintains several U.S. dollar accounts to
manage its foreign cutrency denominated transactions.

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in U.S. dollar are as follows:

2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents US$1,917,363  US$1,778,205
Receivables 11,098,602 7,815,363
AFS investments 3,800,660 3,277,449
Financial assets at FVPL - Corporate bonds 1,621,743 - 1,976,000
Advances/deposits to sub-agents 1,422,428 4,300
19,860,736 14,851,317

Due to sub-agents 1,422,428 979,380
Notes payable 21,310,000 —
. 22,732,428 979,380

Net foreign currency-denominated assets (2,871,692) 13,871,937
Currency forwards 3,750,000 (13,450,000)
Net exposure , 1US8%878,308 - US$421,937

In translating the foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities into peso amounts, the
exchange rate used was B41.05 to US$1 and £43.84 to US$1 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The following table presents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax due to change
in the fair value of its monetary assets and liabilities, brought about by a reasonably possible
change in the U.S. dollar to Peso exchange rate, with all other variables held constant. There is no
other impact on equity other than those affecting earnings.

2012 2011
Change in Foreign Effect on Net  Change in Foréign Effect on Net
Exchange Rate Income belore Tax Exchange Rate  Income before Tax
Increase +0.83% $299,253 +0.84% 155,381
Decrease -0.83% (299,253} -0.84% (155,381)

The increase in U.S. dollar to Peso rate means weaker Peso against U.S. dollar while decrease in
U.S. dollar to Peso exchange rate means stronger Peso against the U.S. dollar.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted AFS investments will fluctuate as a result
of changes in the value of individual stocks.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity. The impact on the Group’s equity
already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the income before income tax. The possible
change in equity prices was determined using historical closing prices of the benchmark
30-company Philippine stock index (PHISIX).

2012 2011
% Variance on Effect on % Variance on Effect on
Equity Price Equity Equity Price _Equity
Increase +2.371% $73,635,851 +2.706% £60,588.021
Decrease -2.371% (73,635,851) -2,706% (60,588,021)

Capital Manapement

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
- economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividehd payment to sharecholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated
as interest-bearing long-term debts over total equity, excluding cumulative net unrealized gain or
loss on change in fair value of AFS investments.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group has no interest-bearing long-term debts. Thus, the
debt-to-equity ratio is 0.00:1.00 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of financial assets and Habilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 under
each category are shown below:

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
‘ Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P1,369,141,777 B1,369,141,777 B540,411,971  B540,411,971
Receivables 1,052,499,68¢  1,070,068,725 824,397,007 821,982,570
Deposits (included under ‘Other
noncurent asseis’) 20,729,593 20,729,593 18,656,517 18,656,517
2,452,371,056  2,459,940,095  1,383,465495 1,381,051.058
Financial assets at FVPL: .
‘ Government bonds 385,781,634 385,781,634 - -
Corporate bonds 61,575,000 61,575,000 86,827,840 86,827,840
Derivative assets 2,801,400 2,801,400 111,952 111,952

450,158,034 450,158,034 86,935,792 86,939,792

(Forward)
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2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
AFS investments:
Quoted:
Equity securities B1,660,255,287 B1,666,255,287 RB1,270,721,653 21,270,721,653
Government bonds 1,355,540,891  1,355,540,891  1,535,603,049  1,535,603,049
Corporate bonds 77,819,199 77,819,199 55,568,743 55,568,743
Unquoted:
Corporate bonds 172,424,074 172,424,074 292,950,592 292,950,592
Equity securities - - - -
Mutual fund 1,583,970,477 1,583,970,477 1,143,801,986  1,143,801,986
Golf shares 570,000 570,000 570,000 570,000

4,856,579,928  4,856,579,928  4.299,216,023  4,295,216,023
P7,759,109,018 P7,766,678,057 $5,769,621,310 B5,767,206,873

Other financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities* P214,574,194  B214,574,194  P262,542,430  R262,542,430
Notes payable 874,775,500 874,775,500 - -
£1,089,349,694 B1,089,349,694  £262,542.430 £262,542,430

* Excluding other current labilities representing statutory payables and other labilities to various
governmen! agencies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables (excluding Unguoted debt securities), Accounts Payable
and Other Current Liabilities and Notes Payable

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

AFES Investments and Financial Assets at FVPL

Fair values are generally based on quoted market prices. For the Group’s equity and fixed income
investments, fair values are determined based on quoted shares in the PSE and fixing rates of the
Philippine Dealing Exchange, respectively. If market prices are not readily available or if the
securities are not traded in an active market, fair values are estimated using either values obtained
from independent parties offering pricing services or adjusted quoted market prices of comparable
investments or using the discounted cash flow methodology.

Unquoted debt securities (included under Loans and receivables)
Fair values of unquoted debt securities are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology
using the interpolated risk-free rate plus credit spread.

Derivative instruments (included under FVPL)

Fair values are calculated by reference to the prevailing interest differential and spot exchange rate
as of the consolidate statement of financial position date, taking into account the remaining term to
maturity of the derivative instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy in determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identified assets or liabilities.

Levetl 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
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Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that

are not based on observable market data.

-34 -

The fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 follows:

2012
Level i Level 2 Total
Financial Assets
Financial agsets at FVPL (Note 9)
Government bonds P385,781,364 P—  R385,781,364
Corporate bonds 61,575,000 - 61,575,000
Derivative assets - 2,801,400 2,301,400
Available-for-gale investments (Note 10)
Quoted
Equity securities 1,666,255,287 - 1,666,255,287
Government bonds 1,355,540,891 - 1,355,540,891
Corporate bonds 77,819,199 - 77,819,199
Unquoted
Corporate bonds - 172,424,074 172,424,074
Mutual funds 1,583,970,477 - 1,583,970,477
P5,130,942,218  P175,225,474 B5,306,167,692
Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Derivative liabilities (Note 14) P P255,000 £255,000
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 9)
Corporaie bonds 286,627,840 P P36,627,840
Derivative assets - 111,952 111,952
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10)
Quoted:
Equity securities 1,270,721,653 - 1,270,721,653
Government bonds 1,535,603,049 — 1,535,603,049
Corporate bonds 55,568,743 - 55,568,743
Unquoted:
Corporate bonds - 292,950,592 292,950,592
Mutual fund (Note 15) 1,143,801,986 — 1,143,801,986
) P4,092,323,271  P293,062,544 £4,385,385,815
Financial liabilities at FVIPL
Derivative liabilities (Note 15) B777,820 »777,820

There were no transfers made among the three levels in the fair value hierarchy in 2012 and 2011.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into major operating business segments as
follows:

a.

Investment holdings

The investment holdings segment deals in the acquisition and sale of financial instruments.
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b. Remittance services
The remittance services segment provides the infrastructure and services as the largest direct
agent for money transfer of Overseas Filipino Workers. Beyond the remittance business, this
segment facilitates the fulfillment of e-commerce transactions and serves as a payment
platform for any Business to Business (B2B) or Business to Customers (B2C) initiative.

¢c. Internet services

The internet services segment is engaged in the business of internet orline-related products
relating to a database search engine. It also provides entérprise and consumer sofutions via
products of the internet.

d. Mutual fund management
This segment deats in the management of mutual funds.

Management monitors the operating results of each segment. The measure presented to manage
segment performance is the segment income before tax. Segment income before tax is based on
the same accounting policies as the consclidated net income except that intersegment revenues are
eliminated only at the consolidation level. Transfer pricing between segments are on arm’s length
basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. '

The Executive Committee (Excom) is actively involved in planning, approving, reviewing, and
assessing the performance of each Group’s segment. The Excom oversees Group’s decision
making process. The Excom’s functions are supported by the heads of each of the segments,

. which provide essential input and advice in the decision-making process.

The Group mainly operates and generates revenue in the Philippines. Thus, geographical segment
. information is not presented.

The Group has no significant customers which contribute 10.00% or more of the consolidated
revenues,

The following table presents earnings and other information of operating segments presented in
accordance with PFRS:

2012
Investment  Remittance Internet Mutual Fund
Holdings Services Services Management  Eliminations Consolidated

Earnings information

Revenues B474,170,224  P449,696,491  B43,120287  B95,645224  (P1,146,734)  R1,061,485492
Cost of servides and sales - - 17,950,308 71,310,504 - 25,260,812
Equity in net earnings of an

associate and joint venture - - (56,749) - - (56,749)
Depreciation and amortization 3,201,767 13,144,811 674,908 259,036 - 17,280,522
Interest expense and bank charges 81,238 10,624,614 - 6,003 (23,644) 10,688,211
Segment income before tax 502,830,392 69,253,350 14,792,554 49,182,728  (24,141,069) 611,917,995
Provision for income tax 4,821,726 20,406,107 2,014,433 14,583,081 - 41,825,347
Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company 498,008,665 47,068,590 © 8,733,346 17,866,891 (22,362,375} 549,315,617
Other information ]
Segment assets 6,164,960,139 1,627,216,428 271,895,116 267,353,977  (506,287,549) 7,825,138,111
Segment liabilities 9,104,146 1,141,529,559 22,694,000 19,638,082 (482,373) 1,192,383,414
Costs to acquire property ‘

and equipment 3,339,437 13,823,283 1,813,283 112,595 - 19,088,603
Net cash flows provided

by (uséd in):

Operating activities (265,632,205) 20,922,745 1,741,736 31,443,354 12,311,706 (199,212,164)

Investing activities 295,512,688  (13,638,215) 951,214  (111,248,369) (9,277,649) 162,299,668

Financing activities ~ 818,775,500 - 50,000,000 (782,620) 867,592,580
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2011
Investment Remittance Intemet  Mutual Fund
Holdings Services Services Management  Eliminations Consolidated
Earnings information
" Revenues P469,143,610 P462,058902 R45,852448  £72,169,928 (B231,221) $1,048,993,667
Cost of services and sales - - 18277752 4953207 - 23,230,059
Equity in net eamings of an
associate and joint venture - - 1,149,083 - - 1,149,083
Depreciation and amortization 4,199,264 16,798,411 1,501,038 353,358 - 22,852,071
Interest expense and bank charges 99,758 2,686,785 4,866 9,605 (231,221) 2,569,793
Segment income before tax 451,993,722 60,878,880 11,419,499 36,844,896 - 561,136,997
Provision for income tax (4,401,140) 24,154,778 217,764 11,341,824 - 31,313,226
Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company 456,394,862 36,724,102 7,656,386 13,930,207 - 514,705,557
Other information
Segment assets 5,194,243.526 682,530,537 261433225  1B1,977,154  (473,244,471)  5,841,939,971
Segment labilities 62,254,663 247,633,606 25,781,528 18,360,886  (45.958,682) 308,572,001
Costs io acquire property
and equipment 6,250 15,016,795 817,686 24,920 - 15,865,651
Net cash flows provided :
by (used in):
Operating activities (231,467,706)  (43,355,610) 29,525,544 41,946,936 352,433,171 149,082,335
Investing activities (145,842,212)  (9,399,636) (18,478,538) 59875080  (267,687.848) (381,533,154)
Financing activities - 13,157,634 - - (18,652,917) (5,495,283)
2010
Investment Remiitance Internet  Mutual Fund
Holdings Services Services  Management Eliminations _Consolidated
Earnings information
Revenues £1,111,983,028 B432487,965 B30,406,652 P43,623,335 (R389,725,138) R1,228,775,842
Cost of services and sales 6,936,614 -~ 30,218,520 5,294 013 - 42,449,147
Equity in net loss of an
associate/joint venture - - 3,104,763 - - 3,104,763
Depreciation and amortization 5,660,827 22,310,208 3,595,102 960,495 - 32,526,632
Interest expense and bank charges 147,982 4,626,125 11,931 - (3,053,018) 1,733,020
Segment income (loss) beforetax 660,278,966 91,638,909 (15,659,892} 25,052,582 - 761,310,565
Provision for incorme tax 10,949,612 24,785,254 244,141 8,709,298 - 44 588 305
Net income (loss) atiributable to
equity holders of the Parént
Company 649,329,354 66,853,655  (15,904,033) 16,343,284 (2,974,582) 713,647,678
Other information
Segment assets 4,730,258,378 627,073,377 259,341,198 87,698,185  (402,836,563) 5.301,534,575
~ Segment liabilities 205,131,818 228,780,252 31,222,757 3,774,195 32,711,321y 436,197,701
Costs to acquire property
and equipment 518,681 13,471,472 56,427 101,523 - 14,148,103
Net cash flows provided
by (used in):
Operating activities 256,661,016 209,330,094 12,542,608 16,414,743 (22,264,289) 472,684,172
Tnvesting activities 357,306,299  (23,731,099)  (11,954,715) 1,055,269  (350,738,293)  (28,062,541)
Financing activities (153,372,002) (380,632,117) - - 375,599,999  (158,404,120)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:
2012 2011
Cash on hand £201,923,165 R181,274,301
Cash in banks 139,858,467 71,438,116
Short-term investments 1,027,360,145 287,699,554
P1,369,141,777 B540,411,971
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Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group. These short-term investments earn annual interest rates ranging from 1.75% to 3.33% in
2012, 2011 and 2010. Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to B22.51 million,
B11.15 million and #£13.85 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 17).

Loans and receivables

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Due from:

Western Union B456,748,895 £347,017,898
Broker 30,003,989 48,291,151
Sub-agents 15,174,922 15,285,589
Business partners 5,615,263 3,195,168
Unquoted debt securities 480,565,787 296,979,500

Receivable from advertising and web
development services 42,529,019 33,668,119
Accrued interest receivable 38,926,078 34,057,391
Trade receivable 11,737,072 77,432,986
Advances to officers and employees 3,429,063 2,737,208
Others* (Note 25) , 21,204,528 15,692,840
1,105,934,616 874,357,850
Less allowance for credit losses 43,435,130 49,960,843

P1,062,499,486  P824,397,007

*Others include advances to suppliers and othey non-trade yeceivables.

Due from Western Union represents pay-outs of e-Business for fund transfers and remittance
services, which were not yet reimbursed by Western Union as of reporting date.

Due from sub-agents arises from money transfer services and are shown net of related payables to
the same sub-agents. Sub-agent accounts with net payable balances are shown under ‘Accounts
payable and other current liabilities’ in the consolidated statements of financial position

{see Note 15).

Unquoted debt securities represent investments in a fixed rate corporate note (FCN) issued by
Puregold Price Club, Inc. amounting to £150.00 million and a credit linked note (CLN) amounting
to US$7.81 million (330.57 million). The FCN bears interest of 5.73% and will mature on
October 22, 2017. The CLN bears a fixed rate of 5.00% and will mature on July 20, 2013. The
CLN also includes an embedded credit default swap, whose reference asset is a global bond issued
by SM Investment Corporation to ING Bank, and an embedded currency swap where the issuer
agreed to pay the principal and interest cash flows at the rate of B42.34 to US$1.00. The fair value
of the embedded derivatives as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is not significant.
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Breakdown of unquoted debt securities as to current and noncurrent is as follows:

2012 2011

Current P330,565,787 B-
Noncurrent 150,000,000 296,979,500
P480,565,787 £296,979.500

The terms and conditions of loans and receivables are as follows:

o Due from Western Union, sub-agents, and business partners generally have one to four days’

term.

e Due from broker pertains to the amount collectible for sale of quoted equity securities. This is

usually collectible within three days.

¢ Receivables from advertising and web development services are normally collectible within

two to four months after billing is made.

¢ Advances to officers and employees are either subject for liquidation or collectible through

salary deduction.

¢ Other receivables are all short-term in nature.

~ The movements of allowance for credit losses are as follows:

Receivable
from
advertising
and web Accrued Advances to
development interest  officers and Trade
services reccivable employees receivables Others Total
‘Balance at beginning of
year £29,511,309 £50,667 P1,295,924 $7,627,663 B11,475,280 49,960,843
Provision for credit losses
(Note 19) 600,000 - - - 3,090,076 3,690,076
Recovery of allowance
(Note 20) (3,169,015) - = (7,046,774) - {10,215,789)
Balance at end of year 226,942,294 B50,667 P1,295,924 £580,889 P14,565,356 P43,435,130
Specific assessment £26,664,748 P50,667  B1,295924 P580,889  P14,565,356  P43,157,584
Collective assessment £277,546 B- B— - P P277,546
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2011
Receivable
from
advertising
and web Accrued Advances to
development interest  officers and Trade
services receivable employees receivables Qthers Total
Balance at beginning of ‘
) year £26,692,736 B $321,048 P7,627,663 P8,932,664 B43,574,111
Provision for credit losses

(Note 19) 2,818,573 50,667 974,876 — 4,714,729 8,558,845
Recovery of allowance -

(Note 20) — — - (2,172,113) (2,172,113)
Balance at end of year $29,511,309 P50,667 P1,295,924 £7,627,663 B11,475,280 P49.960,843
Specific assessment £29,511,309 B50,667 p1295924  P7,627,663 B11475280 £49,960,843

9. Financial Assets at FVPL
This account consists of investments in:
2012 2011
Quoted:
Government bonds P385,781,634 P
Corporate bond 61,575,000 86,627,840
Derivative assets 2,801,400 111,952

£450,158,034 P86,739,792.

Government bonds :
This consists of fixed rate treasury notes (FXTNs) and a retail treasury bond (RTB) issued by the
Republic of the Philippihes which the Company intends to sell in the near future. FXTNs bear
interest rates ranging from 6.38% to 8.00% and have terms of 10 years and 20 years. RTB bears
interest rate of 6.13% and has a term of 25 years. '

B

Corporate bond
This pertains to an investment in a fixed rate corporate bond issued by JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

amounting to US$1.50 million ®61.58 million) and US$1.90 million (R86.63 million) as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The corporate bond bears a fixed rate of 8.00% and
matured on January 18, 2013. The corporate bond includes an embedded put option where the
Group has the right to sell the bonds back to the issuer on January 19, 2011. The Group did not

- exercise the right to sell the bond. The corporate bond is designated as at FVPL since it is
managed on a fotal return basis.

In 2012, the Group sold US$0.40 million of the corporate bond and mark-to-market gain
recognized in 2012 on the sold corporate bond amounted to P0.44 million.

In 2012 and 2011, the Group recognized mark-to-market loss from its quoted government and

corporate bonds held at FVPL amounting to 20.44 million and £3.52 million, respectively. In
2010, the Group recognized mark-to-market gain amounting to £2.59 million.
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Derivative instrumernts

This account pertains to currency forward contracts entered into by the Group to economically
hedge the foreign exchange risk on US$-denominated assets and liabilities. The Group’s
outstanding currency forward contracts have an aggregate notional amount of US$3.75 million
and US$13.45 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The weighted average
forward contract rate is P40.93 to US$1 and R43.79 to US$1, respectively. As of December 31,
2012, the Group is in a net buy US dollar position while as of December 31, 2011, the Group is in

- sell US dollar position.

The movements in the Group’s derivative instruments are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year
Derivative assets P111,952 $25,214,110
Derivative liabilities (777,820) {20,670,939)
(665,868) 4,543,171
Fair value changes 23,421,550 13,542,738
Settled transactions (20,209,282 (18,751,777
3,212,268 (5,209,039)
Balance at end of year
Derivative assets 2,801,400 B111,952
Derivative liabilities (255,000) 777,820
2,546,400 B889,772

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, the net fair value changes on the Group’s currency forward contracts

amounting to P23.42 million, 13.54 million and P17.61 million, respectively, are recognizéd in
foreign exchange gain under ‘Other income’.

10.

Available-For-Sale Investments

This account consists of investments in:

2012 2011

Quoted: ‘
Equity securities B1,666,255,287 21,270,721,653
Government bonds 1,355,540,891 1,535,603,04%
Corporate bonds 77,819,199 55,568,743

Unquoted:

Corporate bonds 172,424,074 292,950,592
Equity securities 239,312 207,296
Mutual funds 1,583,970.477  1,143,301,986
Golf shares 570,000 570,000
4,856,819,240  4,299,423,319

Allowance for impairment losses {239,312) (207,296)

P4,856,579,928 P4,299,216,023

Quoted equity securities pertain to investments in stocks of companies listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange.
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. Quoted government bonds primarily consist of peso-denominated FXTNs and RTBs. These
FXTNs and RTBs earn interest rates ranging from 6.13% to 8.13% and from 6.38% to 8.13% in
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Quoted government bonds also include USD-denominated sovereign bond issued by the Republic
of Indonesia amounting to US$1.00 million (B41.05 million and 43.84 million as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively) which earns interest of 7.50% and will mature on
January 25, 2016, and USD-denominated sovereign bond issued by the Republic of the Philippines
amounting to US$0.15 million (#6.16 million and £6.58 million as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively), which earns interest of 6.50% and will mature on January 20, 2020.

Quoted corporate bonds are USD-denominated bonds issued by private companies. These
corporate bonds earn interest rates ranging from 5.25% ta 5.50% in 2012 and 5.50% in 2011,

Unquoted corporate bonds are PFHP-denominated bonds issued by private companies that are not
traded in an active miarket. These corporate bonds earn interest rates ranging from 6.80% to 9.10%
in 2012 and 2011.

' Unquoted equity securities represent investments in stocks of companies delisted in
the Philippine Stock Exchange. The Group assessed these unquoted equity securities to be
impaired and charged 20.03 and 20.21 million under ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’
in 2012 and 2011, respectively: No provision for impairment losses was recognized in 2010.

Mutual funds represent investment in an open-end mutual fund company at a cost of
P955.48 million, with unrealized gain of £628.49 million, and P904.58 million, with unrealized
gain of 239.22 million, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Trading gains recognized from the sale of AFS investinents are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Equity securities P260,207219  P213,808,123  P438,929,830
Bonds 73,457,197 84,935,046 65,119,990
Mutual funds - 29,406,881 -

P333,064,416 333,150,050 £504,049,829

Interest income earned from AFS investments amounted to P85.37 million, 8103.28 million and
£93.85 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010 (see Note 17).

Movement of cumulative net unrealized gain on changes in the fair values of AFS investments,
which are presented as separate component of equity in the consolidated statements of financial
position are as follows:

- 2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P£559,388,191 P587,388,710 . B352,606,618
Fair value changes taken to equity 857,965,232 305,149,531 738,831,921
Amounts taken to profit or loss (Note 17)  (333,664,416)  (333,150,050) (504,045,829)
Net change in fair value for the vear 524,300,816 (28,000,519) 234,782,092
Balance at end of year 1,083,689,007 559,388,191 587,388,710
Tax effect (Note 24) (415,620) (1,003,292)  (167,211,136)

Balance at end of year, net of ax _ ¥1,083,273,387  B558,384,809  P420,177,574

| O 60 T Y Y RO Y O RO RO R



-472 -

Net changes in fair value of AFS investments, net of tax, which are presented as other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Net change in fair value for the year £524,300,816 (B28,000,519)  £234,782,092
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax
Hability 587,672 166,207,894 (58,081,783)
£524,888,488 P138,207,375 £176,700,309
11. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
2012 2011
Input value-added tax £3,253,030 PB3,246,517
Prepaid expenses 2,461,136 6,500,670
Creditable withholding tax 536,782 2,105,139
Others 2,465,222 2,046,900

$3,716,170 _P13,809,226

Prepaid expenses comprise of rent, insurance, taxes and uniforms. Others include construction and

renovation deposits paid by e-Business’ branches.

12.

Investments in an Associate and a Joint Venture

Details of investments in an associate and a joint venture follow:

2012 2011
Acquisition costs:
Balance at beginning of year
Associate
FAUSI £300,000 B300,000
Joint Venture
Media Contacts, Inc. 4,836,300 4,836,800
Disposal of investment in joint venture (4,836,800) —
Balance at end of year 300,000 5,136,800
Allowance for impaitment {186,772) (180,772)
‘ 119,228 4,956,028
Accumulated equity in net earnings (losses): ‘
Balance at beginning of year 1,752 (1,147,331)
Equity in net earnings (losses) (56,749) 1,149,083
Disposal of investment in joint venture 54,997 -
Balance at end of ysar 1,752
$119,228 4,957,780
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The movements in the allowance for impairment on the investment in FAUSI are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year £180,772 P168,761
Provision for impairment losses - 12,011
Balance at end of year , 180,772 P180,772

Investment in an associate represents e-Business’ 25.00% ownership in Fifth Agency Unified
Services, Inc. (FAUSI). FAUSI was incorporated in the Philippines on August 10, 2004 and
started commercial operations on April 4, 2005. FAUSI is engaged in electronic commerce and
trading, through the internet-based facilities and other on-line transactions, including but not

limited to the development and marketing of goods and services and electronic value or debit
cards.

On February 4, 2008, the BOD has decided to stop and wind down FAUSI’s operations effective
March 2008. In 2012, the BOD of the Company approved the liquidation of FAUSI. As of
December 31, 2012, the stockholders of FAUSI have yet to convene to finalize the liquidation
plan.

Investment in a joint venture represents Yehey!’s investment in Media Contacts, Inc. (MCI}. On

- QOctober 27, 2008, Yehey! entered into a joint venfure contract with Media Contacts, S.A. to create
MCI. The purpose of this joint venture is to provide marketing, sales and promotional consultancy
services, including the conceptualization, preparation, creation, supply and delivery of marketing,
sales and promotional plans and support services, provided that the Yehey! shall not engage in the
buying of media time or space for its clients. The initial investment of Yehey! comprised of share
holdings in the joint venture which amounted to 4.8 million. Media Contacts, S.A. also
subscribed and paid for shares of the same amount.

On April 16, 2012, Yehey! sold its 50% ownership interest in MCI to Media Contacts, S.A. for
7.50 million. Yehey! recognized P2.72 million gain from the sale, which is reported as ‘Gain on
sale of investment in a joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of income.

The following table presents the financial information of FAUSI (amounts in thousands):

Yeéar Total Assets  Total Liabilities Net Loss
2012 . P812 B445 R97
2011 858 393 60
2010 862 337 75

FAUSI has no noncurtent assets and noncurrent liabilities as of December 31,2012, 2011 and
2010,

The following table presents the financial information of MCI (amounts in thousands):

Statements of Financial Position

Total Noncurrent Total Current
Year Total Current Assets Assets Liabilities
2011 $42,394 P3,477 B20,605

2010 28,213 20,717 13,337
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MCI has no noncurrent liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Period Gross Income Expenses Net Income (Loss)
January 1 to March 31, 2012 B3,417 28,058 (B113)
For the year ended

December 31, 2011 17,302 13,498 2,298
For the year ended

December 31, 2010 23,430 14,093 6,210

MCI has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as of December 31,2011 and 2010.

13.

Property and Equipment

This account consists of:

2012
Server
Office Leasehold Transportation Furnifure and Network Office
Condominium __Improvements Equip and Fixtures Equij t  Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year B37,756,690 B130,103,710 19,194,590 £120,102,700 F9,236,908 210,517,702 F326,912,300
Additions - 6,314,327 5,085,217 7,550,536 138,523 - 19,088,603
Disposals - - {1,204,638) (2,172.475) (104,161  {42,813) {3,531.087)
Balance at end of year 37,756,690 136,418,037 ZS.OM 325,473,761 9,271,270 10,474,559 342,469,816
Accumulited Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at baginning of year 19,575,510 121,342,869 12,261,597 110,775,791 8,213,404 10,401,470 282,580,641
Depreciation and amartization (Notes 19
and 20} 2,280,237 3,365,633 2,515,119 8,317,623 723,963 37,503 17,240,078
Disposals - - 11,204,634} £1.958.071) {54,934) {42.814) {3.261,453)
Balance at end of year 21,855,747 124,708,502 13,572,082 117,134,343 8,802,433 16,396,15% 296,550,266
Net Book Value R15,900,943 #11,709,535 B9,503,087 £3.33%,418 378,837 78,730 P45.910,550
2011
Server
Fumiture Office  Transportation Office and Network Leasehold
and Fixtures  Improvemenis Egquipment G injum Equi] Imp Total
Cost
Balance st beginning of year Ril6,184,291 210,517,702 $21,200,636 B37,756,690 R3,534,935 B125,913,426 £320,107,680
Additions 5,261,595 - 2,827,293 - 701,973 7,074,790 15,865,651
Disposals (1,343,186} - {4,833,339) - - {2.884.506) (5,661,031)
Balante at end ol year 120,102,700 10,517,702 19,194,590 37,756,690 9,236,508 130,103,710 326,912,300
Accumulated Bepreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 99,053,873 9,878,870 13,000,903 17,295,367 7,192,545 121,987,904 268,409,471
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 19
and 20) 13,065,015 522,581 2,934,019 2,280,143 1,030,859 2,239,471 22,072,098
Disposals (1,343,09T) = (3,672,325} - - (2,884,506) (7.900,928)
Balanee at end of year 110,775,791 10,401,470 12,261,597 19,575,510 8,223,404 121,342,863 282,380,641
Net Book Value RD,326,909 116,232 ¥6,932,993 . RI%,181,180 P1,013,504 #8,760,851 44,331,659

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the account until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization are charged against current operations. As of December 31, 2012
and 2011, the cost of fully depreciated assets still being used in operations amounted to
£165.43 million and 2146.33 million, respectively. -
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Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment is recognized in the consolidated

statements of income under:

. 2012 2011 2010
General and administrative expenses (Note P16,647,240 P21,187,825 PB27,938,425
19)

Cost of services and sales (Note 18) 592,838 Pg84,273 3,930,219
$17,240,078 222,072,098 P31,868,644

14. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of

2012 2011
Receivable from sale of investment $96,592,600 B066,592,600
Rental and other deposits 20,729,593 18,456,517
Software and website costs 3,220,609 3,261,053
Others 810,483 705,384
121,353,285 119,105,554
Less allowance for credit and impairment losses 96,815,015 96,815,015
$£24,538,270 £22,290,539

In 2011, the Parent Company sold its investment in Lucky Star (a company incorporated fo

operate off- front on betting stations in the Philippines) since management believes that there is a

significant uncertainty with respect to the recovery of this investment due to the Supreme Court
decision to shut down Jai-alai operations. The related receivable from the sale, which is
collectible over ten years at a certain pre-agreed installment terms until 2012, has been fully
provided with allowance for crédit losses. As collections are actually received, an equivalent
amount of the allowance will be reversed and credited to income.

The movement of software and website costs follows:

2012 2011

Cost £10,986,779 £10,986,779
Accumulated Amortization

Balance at beginning of year 7,725,726 6,945,753

Amortization (Note 19) 40,444 779,973

Balance at end of year 7,766,170 7,725,726

£3,220,609 P3,261,053

Amortization of software and website costs are recognized under ‘General and administrative

expenses’ in the consolidated statements of income.

The movement in the allowance for credit and impairment losses follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year 96,815,015 £96,592,600
Provision for impairment losses - 222 415
Balance at end of year £96,815,015 P96,815,015
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15. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2012 2011

Due to sub-agents and brokers (Note 8) $196,929,646 B135,273,271
Accrued expenses 51,534,561 69,935,443
Trade 24,695,822 56,555,896
Output value added tax 8,132,813 6,804,155
Derivative liabilities (Note 9) 255,000 777,820
Others 16,733,693 19,118,447
$298,281,535 £288,465,032

Terms and conditions and nature of the liabilities follow:

e Due to sub-agents and brokers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled

on a iwo to four days’ term.

* Accrued expenses consists of accruals for profit sharing costs, vacation leave and sick leave
conversion, insurance, security services, cash delivery services, utilities, media buys and

others.

s Trade payables include amounts due for purchase of government bonds.

» Other payables include withholding taxes payable, documentary stamp tax payable, merchant

deposits, sundry credits and others.

i

Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables are all short-term in nature.

16.

Notes Payable

In 2012, e-Business availed of USD denominated unsecured short-term loans from different
counterparty banks at annial interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 3.00%. Interest expense

- incurred on these loans amounted to 29.78 million in 2012, which is recognized under ‘Interest
expense and bank charges’ in the consolidated statement of income.

17.

Revenue

This account consists of:

2012 2011 2010
Trading gains (Notes 9 and 10) $333,663,314  P329,626,095  P506,639,797
Commission income 313,304,937 334,087,049 350,326,588
Interest income frotn: '
AFS investments 85,374,345 103,282,875 93,852,163
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) 22,511,417 11,148,335 13,850,853
Unquoted debt securities 16,777,043 4,075,852 -
Financial assets at FVPL 7,298,146 6,383,120 6,621,675
Others (Note 25) - 386,945 -
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2012 2011 2010
Service income 87,633,738 65,414,284 43,623,335
Share in foreign exchange differential 81,507,179 85,573,235 75,767,180
Money changing gain 34,076,538 36,485,920 59,577,996
Dividend income 37,039,014 35,610,251 45,775,827
Advertising, web development
and internet service 31,417,088 33,851,638 30,406,652
Income from business partners 8,348,495 2,868,068 2,333,776
P1,658,951,254 P1,048,993,667 B1,228,775,842
18. Cost of Services and Sales
This account consists of:
2012 2011 2010
Personnel costs P18,042,166 BR16,950,227 P32,988,587
Cost of digital public relations 3,274,925 735,656 219,181
Service connection fee 1,465,587 1,127,748 2,480,287
Advertising and web development 918,838 669,146 2,511,568
Subscription 607,506 948,284 81,000
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 13
and 14) 592,838 884,273 2,712,181
Provision for retirement costs (Note 22) 191,741 400,933 {94,342)
Others 167,161 1,514,652 1,550,685
25,260,812 . $23,230,959 P42,449,147
19. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists oft
2012 2011 2010
Personnel costs P120,807,858 P154,199,889  R127,582,788
Rent and utilities (Note 21) 73,934,773 77,960,333 74,919,875
Commission expense 69,208,683 61,879,343 55,519,975
Qutside services 61,943,000 64,150,913 63,885,951
Professional fees 51,558,150 22,063,160 12,979,469
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 13
and 14) 16,687,684 21,967,798 29,814,451
Transportation and communication 16,090,435 15,876,117 29,530,532
Taxes and licenses 13,462,210 11,811,586 9,543,786
_ Office supplies 12,292,296 14,006,383 18,912,791
Advertising 4,322,919 12,252,274 5,747,651
Repairs and maintenance 4,021,621 3,010,177 3,391,826
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 2,847,555 3,631,565 4,029,316
Insurance 1,497,050 2,970,288 5,430,448
Membership fees and other dues 1,424,029 1,411,709 404,060
Provision for credit and impairment losses
(Notes 8, 10, 11, 12 and 14) 3,722,092 13,836,393 16,519,143
Provision for retirement costs (Note 22) 148,646 {180,113) (758,386)
Others 3,191,079 7,701,706 8,924,861
P457,160,080  P488,549,521  P466,378,537
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20. Other Income

This account consists of:

2012 2011 2010

Foreign exchange gain (Note 9) £29,692,638 B17,332,926 B46,275,786
Recovery of allowance for credit losses

(Note 8) 10,215,789 2,172,113 -

Gain from sale of property and equipment 59,521 21,070 302,946

Miscellaneous income (loss) 3,446,448 5,818,411 (378,542)
, . P43,414,396 £25,344,520 £46,200,190

In 2011, miscellaneous income includes the B4.15 million reversal of asset retirement obligation
of e-Business as the latter was able to establish that it does not have an obligation to dismantle
leasehold improvements and to return the leased spaces to their original condition.

21. Lease Commitments

e-Business leases its office space and the space occupied by its branches with varying periods of
up to 5 years and, renewable on such terms and conditions mutually acceptable to both parties.
Rent expense charged to operations amounted to 55.33 million, B57.47 million and B52.08
million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

The minimum annual rental commitments under the aforementioned lease agreements are as

follows:
Year 2012 2011
Within one year $39,999,426 P38,612,768

After one year but not more than five years 24,273,042 43,979,380

LR
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Amounts for the current and previous years follow:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Fair value of plan assets £13,653,717 11,566,635 £9,633,031 28,919,473 B7,177,700
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 9,624,722 7,263,406 5,036,264 3,642,534 1,702,800
Funded status 4,028,995 4,303,229 4,596,767 5,276,939 5,474,900
Experience adjustments
on plan liabilities 517,359 1,008,028 - 871,856 4,978,702
Changes in the fair value of e-Business’ plan assets are as follows:
2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year $11,566,635 9,633,031
Actuarial gain 1,508,750 1,451,952
Expected return on plan assets 578,332 481,652
Balance at end of year P13,653,717 R11,566,635
Actual return on plan assets $2,087,082 B1,933,604

The major categories of e-Business’ plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan

assets are as follows:

2012 2011
‘ Amount Percentage  Amount Percentage
Cash and cash equivalents P5,719,961 41.89% 4,679,860 40.46%
Investment in common trust fund 7,933,756 58.11% 5,990,360 51.79%
Investment in government securities - - 896,415 7.75%

e-Business’ plan assets are in the form of a trust fund being maintained by a trustee bank.

The‘principal assumpftions used in determining retirement benefits obligation are as foliows:

2012 2011 2010
Parcnt Parent Parent
Company _ Ychey! e-Business  PEMI _Company Yehey! e-Busi PEMI  Company Yeheyl e-Business

Discount rate

January 1 5.47% 6.20% 610%  6.00%  1647% 9.00% 8.50% 825%  1647%  15.09%  18.75%

December 31 5.00% 2.00% 540%  5.45% 547% 6.20% 610% 6.00% 1647% 9.00% 8.50%
Future salary increase 4.00% 4.00% 400%  4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%  4.00%  10.00% 4.00% 4.00%

. Expected rate of return

ot plan assets - - - - - - 5.00% - - - 8.00%
Average remaining

service period 3years Syears  dyears I5years 4 years 4 years 8years 15 years 6 years 3 years 6§ years

Employee turnover ranges from 2.50% to 20.00% depending on age brackets.

The expected rate of return on plan assets represents the expected long-term rate of return on the

retirement fund investment.
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23. Equity
Capital Stock - 1 par value of common shares

The details of this account as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are shown below:;

Shares Amount
Authorized shares 2,250,000,000 £2,250,000,000
Issued shares 2,235,390,633 B2,235,390,633
Treasury stock (134,855,500) (188,520,838)
Outstanding shates 2,100,535,133 £2,046,869,795

On various dates in 2010, the Parent Company acquired a total of 107.99 million shares for
P£153.37 million thereby increasing the total acquired shares to 134.86 million shares for an
aggregate price of B188.52 million.

The track record of the Parent Company’s registration of securities in compliance with the
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Annex 68-D 1(I) follows:

a. Authorized Shares

Authorized Number
Date of SEC Approval Type of Shares of Shares
Januvary 12, 2009 Common 2,250,000,000
October 20, 1992 Common 1,900,000,000

b. Stock Dividends

Date of SEC Approval Percentage
January 12, 2009 25%

c. Number of Shareholders

Year End Number of shareholders
December 31, 2012 688
December 31, 2011 685

In the consolidated financial statements, & portion of the Group’s retained earnings corresponding
to the accumulated net earnings of the subsidiaries amounting to 2343.34 million and

£299.60 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, is not available for dividend
declaration. This accumulated equity in net earnings becomes available for dividend declaration
upon receipt of dividends from the investees.
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24. Income Tax

The provision for current income tax represents the RCIT of the Parent Company, PEMI,
e-Business, Yehey! and iCurrencies and MCIT of eBiz Financial.

Components of the net deferred tax assets of the Group follow:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for credit losses $2,233,376 R1,795,794
Retirement payable 1,235,746 1,235,746
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 296,330
Allowance for impairment of investment 54,231 54,231
3,819,683 3,085,771
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid rent — 1,044,782
Net deferred tax assets $3,819,683 22,040,989
Components of the deferred tax liabilities of the Group follow:
2012 2011
Deferred tax liabilities
Net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of
AFS investments P415,620 £1,003,292

The details of deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT
* for which no deferred tax asset had been recognized in the consolidated statements of financial

position as management believes that there will be no sufficient future taxable mcome against

which these can be applied, are as follows: :

]

2012 2011
Allowance for credit losses P132,839,726 B137,968,253
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 15,909,552 9,530,961
Retirement payable 3,380,494 2,417,513
Leave credits for employees 1,267,524 1,477,250
NOLCO 229,202 204,333
Accrued rent - 5,741,881

P153,626,498 £157,340,191

Excess of MCIT over RCIT P- P14,242

Movements in NOLCQ and MCIT are as follows:

2012 2011
NOLCO  Excess MCIT NOLCO  Excess MCIT
Balance at beginning of year B204,333 P14,242 B17,516,014 P628,722
Addition 109,412 - - -
Application/expiration (84,543) (14,242} (17,311,681} (614,480

Balance atend of year | £229,202 ) — - P204,333 P14,242

0O



-54 -

Details of the Group’s NOLCO are as follows:

Inception Year Amount  Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year

2009 P84,543 (BR4,543) P

2010 52,089 - 52,089 2013

2011 67,701 - 67,701 2014

2012 109,412 - 109,412 2015
2313,745 (284,543) B7229,202

The reconciliation of income before income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to the
provision for income tax as shown in the consolidated statements of income is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Statutory income {ax B183,575,398 168,341,099 P228.393,170
Income tax effects of:
Trading gains (100,099,325) (97,327,297) (151,991,909)
Interest income subjected to final tax
and exempt from tax (25,817,881} (26,051,316) (24,692,400}
Dividend income exempt from tax (11,111,704) (10,683,075) (13,732,748
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax  assets (330,425) (8,758,802) (13,416,287)
Others (4,390,716) 5,792,617 20,128,479
Effective income tax P41,825,347 P31,313,226 P44,688,305

25. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This
includes: (a) individuals owning; directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with, the Group; (b) associates; and,

(¢) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that
gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such

individual.

Related party transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Other related party transactions include the following:

2012
Amount/  OQutstanding
Related Party Category Volume Balance Nature, terms and conditions
FAUSI (Associate) Reimbursable expenses P- £346,544 On demand, noninterest bearing and
(Other receivables) unsecured
MCI (Joint venture) Due from MCI Unsecured advances at annual
(Other receivables) - interest rate of 4.00%
Cash advances -
Settlement 1,456,500
Interest income - :
Commission income 117,039 - Pertains to 2.00% commission

earned from media sales
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2011
Amount/ Outstanding
Related Party Category Volume Balance Nature, terms and conditions
FAUSI (Associate) Reimbursable expenses P64,859 346,544 On demand, noninterest bearing and
(Other receivables) unsecured
MCI (Joint venture) Due from MCI 1,456,500 Unsecured advances at annual
: (Other receivables) interest rate of 4.00%
Cash advances 1,456,500
Settlement 5,275,764
Interest income 386,945
Commission income 166,167 Pertains to 2.00% commission
earned from media sales
2010
Amouit/ Outstanding Nature, terms and conditions
Related Party Category . Volume Balance
FAUSI (Associate) Reimbursable expenses £9,188 £281,685 On demsnd, noninterest bearing
{Other receivables) and unsecured
MCI (Joint venture) Due from MCE Unsecured advances at annual
(Other receivables) 6,732,264 interest rate of 4.00%
Cash advances 6,732,264
Settlement -
Interest income -
Commission income 83,774 - Pertains to 2.00% commission
earned from media sales
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group is as follows:
2012 2011 2010
Salaries and wages £12,402,468 £15,555,985 P16,445,3855
Retirement benefits 478,475 848,770 . 220,140
$£12,880,943 B16,404,755 P16,665,995
26. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share
. 2012 2011 2010
(a) Netincome attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company £549,315,617 B514,705,557 P713,647,678
(b) Weighted average ouistanding shares 2,100,535,133 2,100,535,133 2,134,334,104
{c) Basic/Diluted earnings per share {a/b) £0.2615 £0.2450 B0.3344

On various dates in 2010, the Parent Company acquired a totat of 107.99 million shares for
R153.37 million thereby increasing the total acquired shares to 134.86 million shares for an
aggregate price of B188.52 million.

shares.

. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company does not have dilutive potential common
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27. Contingencies
In the normal course of operations of the Group, there are outstanding commitments and

contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statements. The Group does not
anticipate losses that will materially affect its assets and liabilities as a result of these transactions.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Schedules Required ynder Securities Regulation Code Rule 68

Schedule Content Page No.
Partl

I Schedule of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 1
{Part 1 4C, Annex 68-C)

[ Schedule of all effective standards and interpretations under PFRS 25
{Part 1 41)

]| Map showing relationships between and among parent, subsldiaries, an 6
assoclate, and joint venture {Part 1 4H)

Part2

A Financipl Assets (Part I 6D, Annex 68-F, A) 7

B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties ]
and Prihcipal Stockholders (Other than Affiliates)
{Part iI'6D, Annex 68-E, B)

c Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the 5
consolidation of financial statements (Part JI 6D, Annex 68-E, C}

) Intangible Assets - Other Assets (Port Il 6D, Annex 68-£, D) 10

E Long-Term Debt {Part Il 6D, Annex 68-E, E) 11

F Indebtpdness to Related Parties (included in the consolidated statement 12
of financial position) {Part It 6D, Annex 68-E, F)

G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers {Part Il 6D, Annex 68-E, G} 13

H Capita| Stock (Part I 6D, Annex 68-E, H) 14




SCHEDULE1
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Vantage Equitles, Inc.
2703 East Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center

Paslg City
Unappropriated refained earnings, beginning B2,501,784,741
Add: Net Income atgtually earned during the year
Met income dliring the period tlosed to retained earnings R497,547,617
Less: Non-actpal gains
Falr value adjustments {mark-to-market gains) {3,714,948) 493,832,669
Retained earnings pvailable for dividend distribution, endlinagﬁ R»2,995,617,410
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SCHEDULE )
LIST OF PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (PFRS)
EFFECTIVE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

4 s Dot e el Ktk i A

Framework for the Pref)aration and Presentation of Financial
Statements | X

Conceptual Frameworl% Phase A: Objectives and qualitative

characteristics ;

PFRSs Practice Stateméént Management Commentary X

Philippine Financial Refporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-tin*{e Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting X
{Revised} Standars
Amendrients to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an X
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associa;'e
Amend:%nems to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First~ X
time Al Fopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from X
Compariative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amend:"nents to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and X
Remuv?I of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amend}nents to PFRS 1: Government Loans X
PFRS 2 Share—l]',ased Payment X
]
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and ¥
Cance.]l,ations
Amendiments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based X
Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinations X
{Revised)
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts X
Amené'ments to PAS 39 and PERS 4: Financial Guarantee X
Contrd cts
PFRS S Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Distontinued X
Operations
PFRS & Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources X
PFRS 7 Finangial Instruments: Disclosures X
Amengments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of X

Finangal Assets

Ame |dmems 10 PAS 3% and PFRS 7: Reclassification of X
F‘mansial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

|

|
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Améndments to PERS 7; Improving Disclosures about
Finagciai Instruments

Amelr:dments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of

Finaqcial Assets ”
Amehdments to PFRS 7: Disclosures ~ Offsetting Financial X
Asse{s and Financia! Uiabilities”
Ameﬁdments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of X
PFRS'S and Transition Disclosures
PFRS 8 Operating Segments X
PFRS 9% Finangial Instruments
Amergments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of X
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
PFRS 10* Consa:lidated Financlal Statements X
PFRS 11* Joint f%.rrangements X
PFRS 12* DEsclo%ure of Interests in Other Entities X
PFRS 13" Fair Vf—iiue Measurement X
Philippine Accountinig Standards
PAS 1 Presenation of Financial Statements
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures X
Anmenc‘ﬁ\ents to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
lnstrun‘w‘ents and Ohtigations Arising on Liguidation
Amendpments to PAS 1: Presentation of items of Other X
Compri rhensive Income
PAS 2 lnventc%ries
PAS7 Statemént of Cash Flows X
PAS 8 A:coun{ing Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates X
and Errérs
PAS 10 Events aifter the Reporting Period X
PAS 11 Canstrutiion Contracts
PAS 12 Income ?‘axes
Amendn}\ent to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of X
Underlyi§1g Assets
PAS 16 Property; Plant and Equipment X
PAS 17 Leases X
PAS 18 Revenue X
PAS 19 Employe{a Benefits X
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, X

Group Plélns and Disclosures

NN



Empléyee Benefits

{Amended)* E

PAS 20 Accouinting for Gavernment Grants and Disclosure of
Govertnment Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates X
Amendiment: Net lnvestrnent in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 Borro@ving Costs

{Revised) i

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures X

{Revised) :

PAS 2§ Accou:ﬂting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27 Consajidated and Separate Financial Statements X

PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

{Amended)*

PAS 28 Investments in Associates X

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and loint Ventures

{Amended)*

PAS 29 Finandial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 31 Interefts in Joint Ventures X

PAS 32 Financz‘ial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation X
Amenéments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation
Amem:iment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and X
Financlal Liabilities

PAS 33 Earnings per Share X

PAS 34 Interir) Financial Reporting X

PAS 36 impairment of Assets X

PAS 37 Provisi:ons, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets X

T

PAS 3B Intangible Assets X

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement X
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initizl Recagnition X
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendmeants to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option X

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guaraniee
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NEERBRETALIO FAdonn
EffectiverasiofDecember 31701

Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclassification of X

Financial AsFets

Amendmenks to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification af X

Financial As}sets — Effective Date and Transition

Amendmenis to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and X

PAS 39: Emlgedded Derivatives

[ .

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Iltems X
PAS 40 llwestmEnlIPrcperw X
PAS 41 Agriculturei X
Philippine lnterr.u'etationg1
IFRIC1 Changes inilExisting Decommissioning, Restaration and X

Similar Liab;ilities
[FRIC 2 Members' §!1are in Co-operative Entities and Similar X

Instruments;
IFRIC 4 Determinin:'g Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease X
1FRIC S Rights to Iriterests arising from Decommissianing, X

Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC & Liabilities al'rising from Participating in a Specific Market - X

Waste Eleqtricai and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC? Anplying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 X

Financfal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 X
IFRIC & Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives X

Amendments to Philippine Intarpretation IFRIC-8 and X

PAS 39: Enfbeddead Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Fir:lancial Reporting and Impairment X
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Gr:oup and Treasury Share Transactions X
IFRIC 212 Service Cc:ncession Arrangements X
IFRIC 13 Customer’Loyalty Programmes X
(FRIC 14 The Limit Ibn a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding X

Requirempnts and their Interaction

Amendménts to Philippine Interpretations [FRIC- 14, X

Prepaymc%nts of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation X
[ERIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners X
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assats from Customers X
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments X
IFRIC 20 X

Strippingitosts in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
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EffectiveldsiokDecern ;
I
SIC-7 introdpction of the Euro X
SIC-10 Goverhiment Assistance - Mo Specific Relatlon to X
Operating Activities
SiC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpase Entities X
Amemilment to SiC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 X
SIC-13 Jointly\Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions X
by Venturers
SIC-15 Operat‘jng Leases - Incentives X
SIC-25 Incom% Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or X
its Sha ieholders
SIC-27 Evaluat%ng the Substance of Transactions Involving the %
Legal Form of a Lease
51C-29 5ervice|Concession Arrangements: Disclosures, X
SIC-3% Revenup - Sarter Transactions Involving Advertising X
Services
s$Ic-32 Intangiﬁ‘le Assets - Web Site Costs X

* These standards will be effective for periods subsequent to 2012 and ore not early adapted by the Group
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VANTAGE EQUITIES INC.

Key Performance Indicators
December 31, 2012

Current Ratio’ 247.23% 614.55%
Assets to Equity” 114.43% 104.34%
Liabifities to Equity® 14.43% 4.34%
Return on Average Assets® 1.11% 1.52%
Return on Average Equity5 1.26% 1.59%

(i)
(i)
(iti)
(iv)
v)

Current Ratio {Current Assest/Current Liabilities]
Assets 10 Equity [Net Incomie/Total Equity]

Liabilities to Equity [Total Liabilities/Total Equity ]

Return on Average Assets [Net [ncome/ Average Total Assets)
Return on Average Equity[Net Income/Average Total Equity]
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES

13.

REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION

CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

For the ;t:alcndur year ended: December 31,2012
SEC Idc!:nliﬁcaﬁon Number: AS092-007059

1
BIR Tax ldentification No.: 002-010-620

Exact nome of registrant as specified in its charter:
VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or organization:
Philippines

[__L__] sEcuseony)

Industry, Classification Code

Address of Principal Office: 2743A EastTower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
l Exhange Road, OrtigasCenter, PasigCity

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 689-8690
Former pame, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

_Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Commen Stock

| QOutstanding

Common Stock, 2,100,535,133

_PL.00 par value (Net of Treasury Shares of 134,855,500)

Are any ]or all of these securities fisted on the Philippine Stock Exchange
Yes[ X ] No[ ]

Check whether the registrant: .

a) has filed all reporis required to be filed by Section 17 of the Securities Regulation
Code (SRC) and SRC Rule 17 (a)-1 thereunder and Sections 26 and 141 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months {or for such
sharter period that the registrant was required 10 file such reports):

iYes[X ] No[ ]

b) has L:en subject 1o such filing requirements for the past 90 days
Yes[X] Nef 1

Aggrcgaie market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates as of 31 March 2012
[P6,035,554,709,10
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Item 1.

PART I |- BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Business

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the “Corporation™), formerly i Vantage Corporation, was incorporated in
20 Oclober| 1992 and {s organlzed as an investment and financial bolding company. 1t has
suthorized ¢npital stock of One Billion Nine Hundred Million Pesos (R1,900,000,000), all of
which arc in common shares with a par value of 21,00 per share. Of the authorized capital
stock, 1,783,312,570 arc outstanding and 111,687,430 remain unsubscrlbed, On 12 January
2009, Sceufitles & Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the increase of authorized capital
stock of thq Corporation to Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos #2,250,000,000.60.
Furthermorg, the SEC has authorized the Corporation to issue 447,078,142 comrmon sheres out
of its authorized but unissucd capital stock to cover the twenty five percent (25%) stock
lared by the Corporation’s Board of Directors on 4 June 2008 and ratified by its

2,250,000,000 common shares with par value of 81,00 per share, Out of the authorized capital
stock, 2,100,535,133 shares are issucd, of which 134,855,500 sharcs are in treasury.

The Corpofation reverted to its original name by majority vote of the Board of Directors in
November [2007, which the Securities and Exchange Commission subscquently approved in
Aprll 2008) The change in corporate name is consistent with the Company’s re-alignment of its
investment| focus towards the broad financial seclor vis-a-vls iis information technology focus
tiring the garly 2000's.

Purpose

The Company was originally organized with the primary purpose of oil and gas exploration, aad
investments and devclopments as among ils secondary purposes, On 3 October2000, the
Securities pnd Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in the Corporation’s primary
financial holdings and investments, including but not limited to information
companics and relaled venturcs. Since the Registrant is an investment holding
company, (L is not competing in terms of sales and is not dependent upon a single customer or &
few customers. Also, it nceds no government approval of principal products or services and no
cosl and etfecl of compliance with environmental laws.

Investments

In June 2006, the Corporation divested its shareholdings in International Exchange Bank
{#iBank™), its largest stagle investment ot that time. The iBank sale generated R 2.9 billion in
¢ash and |a B1.6 billion gain, capping an 11-year investment pericd that yielded a 16%
compound annual retumn. The PSE Index, by comparison, only broke even during the same

period. The divestraent was timely in light of the substantinl declitie in financial markets in the
following [years.

ration decided to invest its R2.9 billion “war chest” in portfolio of equity and fixed-
urities. The mandate is to atinin above market returns while adhering to prudent risk
» ke, credil, liquidity and market risk. For this purpose, the Company hired its

ident in October 2006 along with a team of finance professionals, The current team
is alzo tasked to further professionalize management of the Vantage Group of Companies.

ing subsidiaries that comprise the Vantage Group are the following:

usiness Services, Inc, (“eBiz") - [00% ownership

ty 4 Acfuired in 2000, eBiz is involved in the money transfer and remittance business as a

dirget agent of Western Union, [ne. (“WU™). WU is the global leader in the field with a
ence in over 200 countries through more than 416,000 agent locations worldwide.

“



The femittance market in the Philippines is over USD 17 billion annuslly based on
officihl figures in 2009. With its strong brand name, WU is the recognized teader In this
highly competitive markel,

¢Biz s among the top three (3} direct agents of WU in the Philippines. Atend of 2012,
eBiz had over 1,400 locations nationwide: 153 in company-owned branches and the rest
in sub-agent locations, ¢Biz employs maore thon 400 employees.

eBiz [Financial - 100% ownershin
eBiz|Financial is wholly owned by ¢-Business. ¢Biz Financial was incorporated on 11

Apri] 2005 and started commercinl operations on 9 May 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged
in financing business.

{Cutjrencies ~ 100% ownership

iCurfencies, Inc. was incorporated on 3 February 2000 and started commercial
openrlinns on 31 May 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business
of buying and selling of foreign currencies,

In May 2001, the iCurrencies cffectively stopped its business of buying and selling
currencies as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on 26
Qetdber 2000. Among athers, the new circular required additional documentation for
sale|of forelgn currencies and required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to
havg a minimum poid-up capital of B50.0 million,

The |Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operale to
that [of banks. To avoid duplication and direct compelition with its previous msjor
stockholder, iCurrencies declded to stop its business of buying and selling foreign
currpncies, The stockholders [ikewisc decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

In the meantime, iCurrencles is sustained by income on its investments and interest

Thej Fund is engaged in selling its capital o the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfotio of peso-denominated fixed-income and equity securities. As of 31
December 2012, the Fund has not yot launched its capital shares to the public.

Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income, Inc, — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in sclling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities, As of 31
Dedember 2012, the Fund hes not yet launched ils capital shares to the public.

Philequity DHvidend Yield Fund, Ine. - 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in

rsified portfolio of equity sceurities. As of 31 December 2012, the Fund has not yet
launched its capilal shares to the public.

“Ychey”) — 66.97% ownership

a pioneering web portal in the late 1990°s, Yehey has grown into a leading digital
on-ine marketing solutions provider in the country, The company currently counts
severat established corporation in its roster of customers.

Ta|support its growth, Vantage infused 8250 million capital in Yehey in 2007, The
following year, Vantage also declared and distributed a 5% property dividend In the



fornd of Yehey sharcs. This has reduced Vantage's ownership in Yehey to 68% from
99% pre-dividend. The balance of 32% is now owned by Vanlage sharcholders by way
of sdid property dividend.

The[propetty dividend has transformed Yehey into a widely-held company thet qualifies
1t tolist by way of introduetion in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). On Qctober 18,

decade as ranked by the Investment Company Association of the Philippines.

Government Regulation and Environmental Compliance

The Corpdration does not need any government approval for fis principal products or services
and is not fequired to comply with specific environmental laws,

Distributipn Methods of Products and Services

The Corppration, being a financial holding and investment company, has no disttibution
methods of products and services,

consolidated AUM of R24.6 billion. The mutual fund industry is sub-divided into four
catpgories — stock, balanced, bond and money market funds with 44% of the tota) AUM
invgsted in bond funds. In addition, whereas in 2002 there were about fourteen
coripanies offering twenty two mutusl funds today we have about seven major players
offering forty-eight mutual funds. This is proof that the mutual fund industry is very
cothpetitive with sizeable and bank-initiated funds persisting thru different economic
cydles. It is no surprise that the cbbs and flow of the mutuzal fund Industry is mainly
driven by the cconomic and capital markets condition of the country as the not to recent
finpncial crisis of 2008-2009 has shown.

Phjlequity Management Ine, (PEMI) has four funds namely Philequity Fund (PEFI),
Ph|lequity PSE Index Fund (PPSE), Philequity Peso Bond Fund (PPBF) and Philequity
Dollar Income Fuud (PDIF) which mainly compete in the stock and bond funds only.
The flagship fund of PEMI is PEFI which competes in the stock fund category of the
mytual fund industcy. PEMD’s funds like any other mutual funds are marketed
thrpughout the Philippines but concentration is mostly in Metro Manita where disposable
and investable income is higher. PEMI mostly markels its funds through sales agents,
adyertisement through website and print publication.




The main area of competition is theough retuen performance and pricing. On the retumn
performance, top performing funds continue to attract subscriptions while
underperforming anes continue to see redemptions. On the aren of pricing, there are
thede pricing points lnvestors look at: Sales lord, monagement fee nnd exit fees. The
mulual fund Industry has varying degrees of sales fond, exit fees but basically the same
management fees. In addition, duration of exit varles from one company to the nexl with
some companies offering 6 months while others up to two years in order to have no exit
fcoA charged to investor,

I's main competitors in the industry are First Metro Investment Corp., Philam Life,
Life of Canada and Bank of the Philippine Island. Two out of four of these

+ Digilal Agencies
Adverlising Agencies

BBDO Proximity brings customers closer to brands with innovative “Beyond the Line”
stratggic and creative solutions, Their services reflect their people’s expertise in building

relatlonships, changing behaviors and delivering results across all marketing disciplines
and media,

Deploy

Deploy is a boutique digita! solutions provider offering communications planning, media
planning and buying, analytics, reputation management and digital consultancy with &
focus to delivering the best in class digital solutions underpinned by ROI.




Havoc|

Havot

is 4 prerier digital marketing company in {he country with over 0 years of

experience in créating digital propertics, it helps its clients strategize and develop
compaigns that will maximize their brand in the online space. They specialize
on advertising sales presentations, digital media plamming and buying, web development,
online;zonmunities, blog marketing and e-commerce.

Adveriising Agencies (Association of Accredited Advertising Agency): These agencies

are

sctvice businesses dedieated Lo ereate, plan and handle advertising for its clients.

‘They dlso provide an outside point of view to the ceiTort of sclling the clicnts products or
services, They alse produce works for maony types of media, creating intcgrated
marketing communications. The top advertising agencies in the country are MeCann-
Erickson Philippines, Ogilvy & Mather, TBWA Santiago-Mangandz-Pune, BBDO-
Guerrero, Ace Saatchi & Saatchi, Jimenez Basic and J. Waller Thompson.

The véry essence of Yehey's competitive advantage lies in its being the first to complete
the enl-to-cnd digital markeling solitions offering. Alost all companies that are in the
business ol digital marketing concentrate on cither website development, or onling media
buying, or search cngine optimization, or on digital PR, or their digital maorketing
servicds remain as added service to their existing above the line advertising elTorts.

‘t’chc)‘-'!, with its complete suite of services can olTer its cuslomers a more comprehensive
digita[i.’.’mnrkcling solutions package at the best possible value and with best advertistng
mileage in the digilal space.

Financind Performance

‘The Company derived its revenues from varigus activities:

1 | U1l

Conimissioh income 313,304957 | 334,087,049 | 350,326,588
Gaih on salk ol AFS
investments 333,003,314 329,626,095 506,639,797
Tnterest income from:
AFS invesunents 85,574,345 103,282,875 93,852,163
Cash and ciish equivalents 22,511,117 11,148,335 13,850,833
Financial assets ot FVPL 7,296,146 6,583,120 6,621,675
Unquoted debt securitics 16,777,043 1,075,852 -
Others - 386,945 -
Share in foreign exchange
diflerential 81,507,179 85,573,235 75,767,180
Managethent fee and service

@wpmc $7,633,738 63,414,284 43,623,335
Maney changing gain 34,076,538 36,485.920 59,577,996
Dividend ihcome 37,039.014 35,610,251 45,775,827
Adverilsing, web development
and internet service 31,417,088 33.851.638 30,406,652
Income [rom business pariners 8,348,195 2,868.068 2,333,776
TOTAL I 1,038,951,254 1,048,993,667 | 1,228,775,842

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has a totul of 477 employces as broken down below
and are not subject to Collective Bargdining Agreements (CBA).




ftem 2.

- Anticipated No; of

, ddittons!

;},-l . | -
Senior Officer 5 )]
Manager 19 7
Supervisor 123 L1
Stalf 328 32
TOTAL 477 51

The Corporation believes that it has maintained amicable relationships with the ok and file
and doe§ nol anticipate any labor-management issués 1o arise in the near term. The Corporation
believes|that #ts relationship with its employees have been consistently good and productive.

Financial Risk Management
“The main risks arising from the Group’s linancial iisstruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and
market jisk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies lor managing each risk and these are
summarized below:

Credit Risk is the risk that the Group will incur 2 loss because its customers or counterpartics
fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls eredit risk by
trading bnly with recognized, creditworthy thicd pariics. 1t s the Group™s policy that all
customefs who wish to trade on credit terms are subjject lo eredit verification procedures. In

addition| receivable balances are monilored on an origoing basis with the restlt that the Group's
exposuré to bad deébis is not significant.

There are no signifieant concentrations of credit risk withim the Group.
Since the group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement lor collateral.

Liguidity Risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due
tnder ndrmal and stress cireumstances, To limit the risk, the Group closely maonitors jts cash
flows and ensures that credii facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they fall
due. Thy Group also has & commilied Hine of credit tral it can aceess 1o meet liquidity needs.
Any cxt,:'css cash is invested in shorl-money market placements, These placements are
maintaired 1o mect maturing obligations.

Market Risk is the risk that movements of market prices will adversely alfect the Group's
financial condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Group focuses on managing the
pric (risk of loss arising fromi any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument) and
foreign uxchange risks {risk of loss arising from Nuctumtions in exchange rates).

Propertics

Vantage Equities. Inc. - Pavent

@ffice Condominium - These condominium units are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, ADB
Avenue, [Pasip City and Unit 2063 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,
Pasig City. These are depreciated over an estimated useful lile of 20 years and accounted for on
a straight-line basis.

Office Inprovements - These are improvements made to the Company's office space and being
deprectated over an estimated uselul 1ile of 10 years accounted for on a straight line basis.

Furnitnre, Fixtures and Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting
its daily perations and located at Unit 2703 Edst Tower, PSE Centre,Exchange Road, Ortigas




Center,
years

Pasig Cily. These asseis are being deprecinted over an estimated useful life of 3-10
d nccounted for on a straight line basls.

Transppriation Equipment - Thes¢ equipments ire used by the Company in conducting ils daily
operdtions and depreciated over 5 yeais and sccounled for on a stralght line basis.

Leasehpld Improvements - The Company is leasing its office space from New Rosario Ortigas
Properijes, Inc. located ot 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig

Lity. The term of the contract is for a period of one year and rencwable upon mutual agreement
of the parties involved.

cBusingss Services, Inc. (“eBiz") - 100% ownership

Transp'gﬂal!on Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
opemliﬁ ns and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 4-5 years.

Leasehgld Improvements - The Company leases the spaces occupied by its branches with
varying| petiod of up to fifieen (15) yenrs and renewable on such terms and conditions as shall

be mutgally eccepted by the Company and the lessors. These leases are accounted for on a
straightitine basis over the lease term.

Qffice Furniure and Equipment - This furniture and equipment are used by the Company in
conducting its daily operations and being depreciated gver an estimated useful life of 3 years.
These gssets arc located at the Company's Head Office in 20/F Enst Tower, PSE Centre,
Oltigas |Center, Pasig City and various branches all over the Philippines.

Sofhwarg License and Saftware Development — These pertains to the necounting soflware used
by the company and smortized over a period 3 years accounted for on a straight line basis.

eBiz Fisancial Services, Inc. —~ 100% ownershi

The Company does not own any propertles.

The Company does nol own any propcﬂis and already effectively stopped its business of
buying pnd selling of currencies in Moy 2001 as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Circular No, 264, issued on October 26, 2000.

Phile ulty Balanced Fund, Inc. — 108% ownershi

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

Philequity Dividend Yield Fund, Ine. — 100% ownershi
The Fung is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

arporation — 68.35% ownershl

Server and Network Equipment - These cquipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and being deprecisted over an estimoted useful life of 3 years. These
equipmepts are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Furniturg, Fixture and Office Equipment - These cquipments are used by the Company in
ing its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated uséful life of 3 years.
uipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.




Ttem 3.

Transgortarion Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operat|ons and depreciated over 5 years and accounted for on o straight line basis

Leasehold Improvemeitt - The Company is leasing its office space from Vantage Equities, Inc,
(the Pdrent Company} located at 38/F Discovery Céntre, 25 ADB Avenue, Paslg City. For the
years 2012, 2011, and 2010, Ventage Equities, Inc. waived Its rental fec charges,

Software License — This pertains to Microsoft licenses and software used for “Kaban Project™
and is peing amortized over a period of 3 years and accounted for on n straight Iine basis,

Philequi

Management, Ine. - 51% ownership

IT Eqijprient- These equipments arc used by the Company in conducting its daily operations,

Leasehold Improvemens - The Company is leasing its office space from ASIA PACIFIC
BUILDWARE CORP. located at Unit E-2004A 20/F, East Tower, PSE Cenire, Exchange
Road, Drtigas Center, Pasig City al monthly rate of B96,706.14 exclusive of VAT and net of
withho]ding. The term of the contract is for a period of five (5) years from April 1, 2012 to
March |31, 2015 with P3,000 increase in the monthly rental starting on the 3nd year beginning
April 1} 2012,

. These are office cquipments are located at 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre,
e Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

These properties are free from mortgage or lien, The Company has no plan of acquiring a
pmper!I in the next twelve months.

Legal Proceedings

No. 190477,

Civil Case No. MC-05-2840

captioned “eBusiness Services Inc. vs. Sure Express World Wide Corp."; RTC Branch 214,
Mandalpyong City

E-Busidess filed a civil action against Sure Express to comply with its obligations under the
Money TTransfer Service Agreement and {0 pay the sum of Php 508, 003.75 and USS$ 22,710.16
plus attgrney’s fees and damages. On September 27, 2007, the lower Court rendered a decision
against Sure Express. Sure Express appealed before the Court of Appeals and thereafter the
Supremt Court. The Supreme Court rendered a decision on February 03, 2010 dismissing the
petition (which became final and executory on April 12, 2010. Our law firm filed its Entry of
Appearanee before the RTC Branch 214 on February [, 2012 and thereafler on March 14, 2012
a Motiofi for Execution of Judgment which was granted on luly 17, 2012, Considering that the
whereabouts of Sure Express is unknown, the wril of execution remained unimplemented.

3.2. Ciyil Case No. 71390,

captioned “e-Business Services Inc.vs. Prudential Guarantee Assurance, Inc.”,
RTC 152, PasigCity

This is 4 complaint filed by e-Business on November 6, 2007 against defendant for the latter's
refusal to seitle and/or pay E-Business insurance claim as a resull of loss of money due to
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robbery .JI‘ buig‘lud'x&,u ¢-Business claoims for the ageregate amount of P1.380,085.98 and US
&!S 860.00 plus interest at the rateal 12% per anmin [fom Jangary 22, 2007, attorney's fees of
nol Tess {fan 20% of the laims, P500,500 18 dhiitiges and the cost of suit. Since the partics
filed td seitle amicable, “during the mediation and judigial dispute rpsolution, the case

proceeded lo trinl which is still pending..

3.3.Crinlinal Casc No. MC-09-12289,
caplioned “People of the Philippines vs. Noriel G, Requiso™; fors Qualified Thefi
RTC 214, Mandnluyong City

This is .‘ criminal case filed by e-Business as private complainant against accused Noriel
Reguiso icm December 9, 2008 afier the latter unlawfully took the sum of Php 1,150,000.00
from thepvault of E-Business” Edss Market Place. On June 3, 2009, E-Business f'lcd a Molion
to Cane i Passport of the secused who was then kndwn to be abroad.  However, the Court
denied aforesaid motion. Considering that the warrant of arrest cannot be implemented since
accuscd {\ ‘hereabouts is unknown, the instant case is archived,

,Submissrun of Maticers to 2 Vole of Security Holders

No matiér was submitted to a vote ol the security halders during the fourth quarter of 2012,

PART If;i— OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

!:
Market ?‘..‘"' Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

L.

| 2013 2042 2011
, | High Low High ' Low High Low
15t Quarter 27 | 26 | 191 | 185 | 1.88 | 143
2nd Quirter i wa | 183 | 183 ) LT | 17
¢3rd Qu rier nfa | mfa | 190 | 1.88 | 146 | 146
m Quértcr na | nfa | 245 | 241 | 171 | L67

Asof 31 M:m:h 2012, there were 656 sharcholders ol the 2,100,335,133 common shares issucd
and ovtstinding. As ef the close of trading on 27 March 2012, the Registranl’s shares were
traded al%lllc price of B2.70 per share in Philippine Stock Eixchange.

On Novémber 10 2009, the BOD approved the proposal to buy back from the market up to
Three andruj Million Pesos (P300,000,000.00) worth of shares of the Corporation. As of

Mirch 31, 2011, the total iumber of shires tepurchased lrom the market is 154;855,500 worth
P188.52million.

On thk‘L 2008, the BOD increased the Company’s authorized capital stock from PLIB to
P2.238, jus well as the issuance ol 25% stock dividend to all stockholders. This increase in
capital -:i_olck was approved by the SEC on 12 January 2009, while the stock dividends were
‘dislribulﬁd 14 stockholders as of record date of 10 February 2009 on 06 March 2009.

Tn 7007} the Parent Company declared o ive percent (3%) property dividend in favor ol its
slmr(,ho]i]u*: ol-record as of [8 May 2007, payable in the form of comumon shares of Yehey!

worlh I’§9 415,629, In February 2008, the Parent Company distributed the property dividends
declared

There is ilo sale of untegistered sccuritics within the past four (4) years.




Item 6.

Toyp. 20 share lwl‘dcrs as of December 31, 2012

(). O %2 T
R DR O £y A
1 | e nbRMINEE cORD. 2,098,414,395.00 93.87%
. 2 | SYSMART CORD. 60,178.375.00 2.69%
3 | TRANS- ASIA SECURITIES, INC, 6.830,000,00 0.31%
4 | SYSMART CORPORATION 5,000,000.00 0.22%
5 | EAST PACIFIC INVESTORS CORPORATION 4,520,000.00 0.20%
6 | A BROWN COMPANY. INC. 3:441,250.00 0.15%
7 | LUCIY W. YAN &/OR CLARA YAN 3,006,250.00 0.15%
$ | OCX DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 3,200,000.00 0.14%
9 | RICADO L. NG 1.624,375.00 0.07%
10 | AGAPITO C. BALAGTAS. IR, 1.437,500.00 0.06%
11 | APRIGINIA B. FERNANDEZ 1,437.500.00 0.06%
12 | SUZANNE LIM 1,437.500.00 0.06%
13 | HARUEY SY 1,437,500,00 0.06%
.14 | CYGNET DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 1,406,250.00 0.06%
15 | JERRY TIU 1.365,625.00 0.06%
16 | CAMBOS. LANUZA & CO., INC. 1,161,500.00 0.05%
17 | WILSON L. SY 1,150.000.00 0.05%
PCD WOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-
18 | FILIPINO) 1.124,687.00 0.05%
19 | JOHNPETER YU &/OR JUAN YU $00,000.00 0.04%
20 | AVESCO MARKETING CORPORATION 718,750.00 0.03%

Dividends

Vantage Equities, Ine. has not dectared any cash dividends the poast three (3) years.

Management's Discussion and Anal
In Millions

Balance Slicet
Assets |

'sis or Plan of Operations

Linbiliti%‘s
Swekhqlder's Equity

Income Statement

Revenubs

Expenscs

Other Income/{Charges}
Net Inch)mc

Earnings per Share

._‘.l,(cy Perférmance Indicators

Currcnz Ratio (Current Assels/Current Linbilitics)

Leverage Ralio (Total Debt/Total Equity)

Comprihensive Return on Equity
(Comprehensive Income/Total Equity)

Book Value Per Share

7,825.13
1,192,358
6,632.25

1,058.95
482.42
(6.44)
570.09
0.26

33
0.18
017

2,97

1,048.99
511.78
(7.39)
529.82
0.25

3.89
0.06
0.12

248

3.301.53
436.20
4,86533

1,228.77
508.83
(3.32)
716.62

033

5.29
.09
.15

2.18



Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2012 (Y2012 vs Y2011

The Company! posted a consolidated net income of Php570.1 million as of December 31, 2012,
higher by 7.6f% compared to Php529 B milfion in 2011. On a per share basis, the company

{QE3) in 3QIR have spurred a rally in global equitics markets. For the year, the S&P 500 and
the MSCI Wdrld Index registered returns of 13.4% and 13.2%, respectively, compared to a flat
growth and and -7.6%%, respectively, in 2011.

Not to be duidone, the loeal equitiss market performed even better than its Western
counterparts ¢n the back of improvements in the country's fiscal position, four benchmark rate
cuts from the BSP and strong domestic consumption. For the year, the PHISIX and the

Company’ s uity portfolio gained 33.0% and 30.6%, respectively, compared to 4.1% and
4.9%, res vely, in 2011.

On the fixed [ncome side, yields were mostly on a downtrend in 2012 as a resuit of credit rating
upgrades from Standard & Poor’s and Meody's and of easing monetary policy. 10-year and
20-year benchmark yiclds were lpwer by 131 bps and 61 bps respectively from end-2011 to
end-2012. The Company's fixed income portfolio gained 9.5% in 2012, cutperforming the
benchmark HSBC Local Bond Index which gained 8.9% during the same period. In 2011, the

Company’s f/xed income portl'olio and the HSBC Locsal Bond Index gained 13.4% and 12.8%
respectively.

The followinp summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

., money transfer revenues still fell 5% YoY to Php394.8 million duc to the
funl reduction in the Company's share of fees from Western Union and an
appregiating currency. The decline in money transfer revenues was partly offset by
slightly higher revenues from the Company's foreign exchange operations and other
pmdu:fts which increased to Php57.7 million in 2012 from Php57.0 million in 2011.

hile, as a resoil of the Company’s continued efforts to rationalize its costs,
and administrative expenses fell by 5% YoY to Php379.6 million from Php401.1
in 2011. After provisions and laxes, eBiz posted a net income of Phpd8.0

illion to P31 million. General and administrative expenses decreased considerably
ult of lower provision for credit and impairment losses. All other costs have
ificant changes from 2011 o 2012,

Overtall, the Company posted total comprehensive income of 14 million, an 85%
improvement from an income of P7.5 million in 2011,
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Cauges for any material chanpes (+/-5% or more) in the financial statements

{ncome Statements items -Y2012 versus Y2011

6.22% decrepse In commission income
Due to reduction in share of fees from Western Union

7.19% decrepise in internet sales and services
l:yfninly due to absence of revenue from digital strategy.

33.97% increase in mutual find Income
Mainly due {0 increase in assets under administration.

6.43% decrdase in general and adminisirative expenses
Mainly due 1o increase personnel costs,

8.74% incre lr.ve In cost of services and sales

Primarily d

to increase in dipital public relations costs,

Bzlance Shpet iterns — Y2012 versus Y2011

153.35% increase in cash and cash equivalents
Primary dus to higher short-lerm invesiments.

23.52% increase In receivables

Significantly duc to increase in receivable from Western Union and acquisition of Puregold
unquoted debt security of Php 150M.

419% increpse in Financial Asseis at Fair Value Through Prafit and Loss (FVPL)
Primary du¢ to quoted government bonds.

12.96% increase in avallable-for-sale securitles
Largely duj:o increase on equities and mutual fund investments,

97.6% dec,

ase in invesiments in assoclate and joint venture

Mainly duejto disposa? of joint venture investment.

37.29% deJ rease in prepaymenis and other current assels

Largely du

» to decrease in prepayments.
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!8'7. 15% incréase in deferred tax assels
Attributable to increase in allowance for credit Josses.

294.32% increase in labilities
Mainly due 1o availmeiit of USD denominated unsecured short-lerm loans from banks.

94% increase in cumulative unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for -sale
Investments

Mainly due t9 revaluation of fixcd income and cquities securities.

quantitative easing during the latter part of 2010 spurred a rally in developed markets in 1Q11,
However, cquitics were hammered for most of the second half as the European debt crisis
continued to unravel and as developed economics continued to experience lackiuster growth.

The S&P 580 and the MSCI Warld Index posted retumns of 0.4% and -7.8%, respectively in
2011 compated to 12.8% and 9.6%, respectively in 2010.

Meanwhile, JASEAN markets have fared retatively better due to healthier fiscal positions and
more robust| demestic economies. In particular, the Philippines continue to enjoy a healthier
business climate and a sironger external position, Its domestic-driven economy has fikewise
insulated it {rom external shocks such as the global slowdown and the EU crisis. As a result,
the Phisix ppsted a return of 4.1% in 20k while the Company's equity portfolio gained 4.9%
during the game period. [n 2010, the Phisix gained 37.6% while the Company’s equity
portfolio posted & return of 46.3%,

Political stability and an improved fiscal and monetary environment have prompted debt ratings
to upgrade its outlook on the Philippines’ long-term foreign currency debl to
positive. Ag a result, interest rates trended dower especially on longer-dated securitles. The 10-
year benchmark fell by almost 70 bps from 6.1% in 2010 to 5.4% in 2011. The Company's
fixed incon|c portfolio gained §3.4% in 2011, outperforming the HSBC Local Bond Index

which rose ]2.8% during the same period. In 2010, the same portfolio posted a gain of 13.5%
compared 1q af2.1% gain of the benchmark,

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBus|ness Services, Inec.

cBiz pchieved another record volume in 2011, hitting over 4.2 million transactions worth
in excess of USD 960 million. Value of intemational transactions grew 5.7% in 2011
compuared to industry growth of 7.2%.

Despiite volume and value growth, net moncy transfer revenues in 201 1slid 3.7% to Php
357 million from Php 371 million in 2010, The decline can fargely be atteibuted to the
contractual reduction in the Company's share in Western Union’s money transfer
charges last Scptember 2011, Furthermore, the continued appreciation of the Philippine

pesolagainst the US dotlar from an average of 45,06 in 2010 10 43.30 in 2011 dampened
the Qompany’s earhings.

Meanpwhile, eBiz’s efforts o raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of
about Php 4 million, as expenses declined to Php 354 million in 2011 from Php 358
million in 2010.

Hoﬂe\rcr, because of weaker tap line growth, 2011 net income [ell 45.0% to P37 miilion

from P&7 million in 2010,
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Yehey!Corporation

A quasi reorganization which invoived a re-alignment in management and rationatization
of perspnnel was started sometime in the middle of 2010. Likewise, cost culting and
production efficiency measures were introduced that year and continued to 2011, Thusin
2011, Yehey!’s financial performance Improved substantially, posting net profit of
P11.4 million from a net loss of P9.45 milflon in 2010.

2010. Biggest contribution 1o revenue came from Web Development and Digilal PR
Services with combined revenues of about P28 million. Digital Strategy services also
contributed a respectable amount of P3,3 million, considering that this service was
relativdly a new product offering of the Company. The improvement In revenue
generation must be due to more consistent requirements from existing clients and new
clients who have been happier with the delivery of Yehey's services,

Anothqr improvement in the financial performance of the Company was the remarkable
decling in Cost of Services from P30,2 million in 2040 to P17.8 million in 2011, when
full impaet of the personnel rationalization was realized. By the end of 2011, personnel
count yaos at 30 from a high of 68 in 2009.1t could be said that a most efficient ratio of
sales tg production has been achieved.

Meanwhile, General and Administrative Expenses also decreased by 16% to P20 million
as a repuit of continuous and prudent management of all company resources. Also, lower

provisjons were made in 2011 for credit losses and impairment due to an tmproved
collection period.

develgped economics, the mutual funds that the Company munages posted net
subsctiptions of Php 197 million in 2011 while total assets under management further
incregsed to Php 4.9 billion as of end-2011 from Php 4.4 billion as of end-2010.

PEMI's operating expenses amounted to Php 25.0 million and Php12.5 million in 2011
and 2010 respectively, This resulted to a net income of Php23.6 million in 2010 from
Php16.3 million in 2010.

Therd is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date. There is no
unusial nature or amount of item that affect the Grancials. There are no changes in the
estimhte of amount reporied in prior periods. There were no issuance, repurchases and
repayments of debt and equity securities for the period. No material events subsequent to
the end of the year that have not been reflected In the financial statements. No significant
clements of income or loss that did not arlse from the issiters continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate a5 an investment and management firm to help

imprhve the performances of its subsidiarics. There is no seasonal aspect thet had a
matefial effcet on the financial condition or results of operations,

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2010 (Y2010 vs Y2009)




The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php 716.6 million and Php 365.2 million in

2010 and 2009 [respectively, On a per share basis, this translates to a Php 0.33 income in 2010
compared lo Phip 0.16 income in 2009,

The unprecédented fiscai stimulus from povernments worldwide and the continued quantitative
easing by the US Federal Reserve have resulted to a global economy bottoming out in 2009
after suffering froin the worst financial erisis since the Great Depression. This, in tum, has set
the stage for a|more sustained recovery in 2010, wherein valuations came closer to their fair
value levels. The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index posted more modest returns of 12.8%
and 9.6%, respoctively in 2010 from 23.5% and 27.0%, respectively in 2609,

On the domestjc front, the smooth transition of power after a successful national elections has
resulted to an [improved business confidence and outlock. The Company’s equity portfolic
gained 46.3% jn 2010, outperforming the Phisix which rose 37.6% during the same period. In
2009, the samg portfolio posted a return of 50.6% coimpared to a 63.0% gain of the benchmark.

also optimistic that the present government can rein in the fiscal deficit while
economic growth. As o result, the yield curve has flattencd and Interest rates
. The Compeny’s fixed income portfolio gained 13.5% in 2010, modestly
the HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 12.1% during the same period. in
2009, the same: portfolio posted a gain 13.2% compared to an 8.3% gain of the benchmark.

For 2011, thq Company maintains its positive outlook on the back of a strengthening US
economy. Inflation will be a key watch out as commiodity prices continue on the uptrend.

The l’ol[owin% summarizes the opcrating results of the Company’s subsidiarics:

eBusiness Services, Inc.

€Biz achieved another record volume in 2010, hitting aver 4.0 million transactions worth
i ss of USD 900 million. Value of internotional transactions grew 9.2% in 2010,

illion from Php 383 million in 2009, The modest decline was mainly duc to
Union discounting the fees charged in some of its remiltance corridors to

1o reap the benefits ftom its investment in various strategic programs in 2010
= able to take advantage of the growing remittance industry.

manggement and rationslization of personnel. The re-organization which started middle
of 2010, résulted in an improved finencial petformance of the company.

Gross Revenues of Yehey! in 2010 declined by 20%, from Php38 million in 2009 to

Php30.4 million in 26810. The decline in gross revenues is largely attributed to the lower
reveques contributed by the web development segment in 2010 of dbout Phpl9 million
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from Php28 million in 2009, Likewise, Portal and E- commerce segment contributions
decreased|by Phpl.5 million. Only the Media Sales and Digital PR scgments showed
improvément ifi revenues. Medin Sales revenues increased to Phps million in 2010 from
Php2.3 nijillion in 2009 while Digital PR fevenucs marpindlly improved to Php4.7
million in}2010 fiom Phpd.4 million in 2009.

A numbet of factors contributed to the general decline in revenues, as follows: a) a more
prudent apcount acquisition taking Into account credit-worthiness of the clicnts, b) focus
made or dperational efficiency which in the long-term, should improve client
satisfactlon and therefore Increase cllent retention ratio. The decline in revenues was
expected and seen as temporary in 2010. The trend should improve in 2011,

While reyenues declined, more efforts were exerted in bringing down the total costs of
the company. Cost of services decreased by 27%, from Php41.5 million in 2009 10
Php30.2 |million. The decline is 2 result of reduction in cost Salaries and Weges, as
petsopncl count went down to 35 from 68 in 2 period of | year. Frecze hiring was

, bigper provisions were made for Doubiful Accounts to reflect the existing
ign probability. Said aliocation resulted in a bigger operating loss for the
from Php23.5 million in 2009 to Php28 milllen in 2010,

invesiment in Media Contacts likewise reflected a loss of Php3.1 million in
s, widening the gap of net loss from 2009,

2010 revenues increased from Php31.4 million in 200910 Php43.6 million. In
the global economic recovery and improved business outlook locally, the

and 2009 vespectively. This resulted to a net income of Phpi6.3 miltion in 2010 from
Php14.2 million in 2009.

During the first half of 2010, the Generaf Maonager of PEMI tendered his resignation,
which resulted to expansion plans being temporarily put on hold. However, the asset
management and servicing teams of the Company remein intact such that clients can

continjie to expect only thé highest standards of professionatism with respect to
management of their invesiments.

Financisl Statements

The audited|consolidated fnancial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying

index
17-A.

to Finhneial Statéments and Supplemeritary Schedules are filed as part of this Form

Information on Independent Accountant

SGV & CoJ is the external accountant of the Company. The aggregate fees billed for each of
the ltast twg years for professional services rendered by the Company's external auditors in

connection
statutory an

ith annual audit of the Consolidated and Parent Company Finaricial Statements for
regulatory filings are summarized below;

16




Ttem 8.

ftem 9.

.

5 *

P g1z

. . 2011
Audit fee | | 7850000 | Fod0d00 |
Tax Scrvicc!’i -

Other IFees | -
TOTAL 755,040.00 704,704.00

The Independent Accountant dees aot render tax accounting compliance. advice, planning and

other Grms
render other

Changes in

BDiselosure

o
There are no
financial disc

PART I - ¢

A

I tax services for the Corporation. THe Independent Accountant also does not
rvices. for the Corporation.

nd Disagreements with Accountanis on Acéounting and Financial

changes and matlers of disagreement with accountants on any accounting &
losures the Jast two (2} most recenl liseal years,

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Dircctors it

d Execttive Officers of the Registrant

Perod Served Citizenship Age

Diractar | 2003 t6 presént | Ignacio B. Gimenez Filipina 68

Director | 2002 to present | Valeéntino L. Sy Filipino 57

Chairman & CEO 2005 to present

Director | 2006 to present | Edmundo P. Bunyi, Ir. | Filipino 48
sPresident & COO ,

Director 2003 to present | Joseéph L. Ong Filipino 59

Treasurer | 2005 to present

Director, | 1999 to present | Willy N. Ocier Filipino 56

Director 2003 to present | Roberto Z, Lorayes Filipino 69

Director 1993 to 2000 & | Wilson L. 3y

2005 to present Filipino 60

Director 2005 to present | Antonio R, Samson Filipino 67

Director 2012 to present | Gregorio U. Kilayko Filipino 58

Corporate Secretary 1993 to present | Al E'!ayan': K, Tan Filipino 57

Asst. Corporate Secretary | 2011 to present | Darwin 5. Ocampo Filipino 29
E’lh'a‘ccordnncp with the Corporation’s By-Laws, the members of the Board of Directors are

elecled annually and therefore serve for a year afier clection.

The (ollowii
Valentino G
Mr. Sy is ad

Direcior of
present). H

1

o

o 15 a brief write-up of the Board of Directers'and Exceutive Officers.

. Sy

tremtly the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He has been o

e Company since 2002. He is the President of Equinos International Comp. (1996 -
was the Regional Manager of Duférco International Trading Ltd., Taiwan (1987 —

1993) and lﬁ&*lhn‘gcr Metals Lud., Hong Kong (1979 - 1986). All these companics are engaged in

3




trading of stecl. He holds a degree in Industrial Management Engineering from the De La Salle
University,

Edmundo P. Bunyl, Jr,

“ivir. Bunyi is purrently the President and Chief Operations Officer of the Company. He became
a Director of the Company in Octobér 2006. Concurrently, he Is a Director (2006-present) of
Yehey! Corporation, an online scarch engine and web portal & c-Business Services, Inc., a
Western Unidn franchise (2006-Jan, 2008). He was appointed President and Chief Executive
iness Services, Inc. effective Febnisry 2008 - present. He is also the President
tions Officer of Philéquity Management, Inc., an investment company adviser,
since October 2006. He is the former Senfor Vice President and Treasurer of International
Exchange Bank, Assistant Viee President and Head of FCDU & FX Sales of United Coconut
Plantcrs Bank, Assistant Manager for Corporate Banking Group of Far East Bank and Trust
Company, and Assistant Manager for the Corporate Banking Department of Union Bank of the

Philippines. |He holds a degree in Management Engincering from the Atenco de Manila
University.

Ignacio B. G[menez
Mr. Gimenez|

| became a Direclor of the Company in 2003. He is the Treasurer of 1. B. Gimenez
Sécurities,

int., a stock brokerage firm (1976 - present). He is the President of the following
mutual funds, namely, Philequity Fund, Inc., Phitequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc., Philequity
PSE Index Fund, Inc. and Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Ine. {formerly Philequity Money Market
Fund, Inc.). |Hé is niso the Sales and Marketing Manager of Society Publishing, Inc. (1991 -
present). He holds a graduate degree in Business Administration from the Asfan Institute of
Management[{1970) and a college degree from the University of the Philippines {1967).

Joseph L. Ong

Mr. Ong is tHe treasurer of the Company and beeame a director in 2003, He is a director as
well of Yehey! Corp., eBusiness Scrvices Inc, and Philequity Management Ine. Currently, he is
president of Chemeenter Corporation, & company engaged in import and distribution of
indusirial chdmicats. Previously, he was connected with Exxon Chemical/Exxon Corp holding
positions in sales, marketing, plénning, and audit functions both here and abroad. Heholdsa
degree in Chemical Enginecring, Magna Cum Laude, from De La Salle University.

Willy N_ Ocler

Filipino, 56,|is the Chairman and President of the Company and has been a Director since 29
July 1999. He also serves as Co-Vice Chairman of Belle Corporation and Highlands Prime,
Inc., as Chairman of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc.,, APC Group, Inc., and Sinophil
Corporation.| He is also the current Vice Chairman of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf

Club, Inc. and is a Director of Vantage Equities, Inc.. Hé was also previously affiliated with
Eastern Sec

Officer.
Roberto Z.

Mr. Lorayes

present) of H

ﬂ

present) of
present) of

Wilson L. §

Mr. Sy was

2000). Curre:

Philequity
Encrgy, Inc

LS

rities Development Corporation being its past President and Chief Qperations

Lorayes

became a Dircetor of the Company in 2003, Currently, he is the Chairman (1994 -
hilequity Mahagement, Inc., 8 fund management company, and President (1993 -
trategic Equities Corpomtlun, a stockbrokerage firm. He is alsoa Du-ector (1998 ~
iedelberg Motors Corporation, dealer of automobiles.

y

reclecied to the Board in 2005. He is a former Director of the Company (1993 —
ntly, he is the Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance Holdings, Corp. and Director of
vianagement, Inc., Xcell Propedy Ventures, Inc., and Monte Oto Resources &
Mr. Sy is aiso an Independent Director of the reporting corporations The Country
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I
Club at Tagaylay Highlands, Inc., Tagaytay Highlands International Gelf Club, Inc., Tagaytay
Midiands Golf Club, Inc., and The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytdy Highlunds. He is presently the
Chairman of the Manila Slock Exchange Foundation, bnc. He was a former Chairman of the
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., a Ditector of Basic Petrolcum & Minerals, Basic Diversified
Ind., Beli-.el Corp., Safiiwares Manul'aclunng, A. Brown Corporation, and Jolllbee Foods
Curpnraliun. and a trustee of the PSE Foundation, Inc. He holds o degree in Management
Engineeﬂm]‘; from the Atenco de Manila University.

Antonio B! Samson

Mr. Samson became a Director of the Company in 2005, He is concurrently the Group
Chaitman, Chief Business Strategist of DDB Worldwide Communications Group, inc., an
advertising company. He is the former President and CEO of OMD Philippines, where he also
previously served as Chainnan. The company is an interational media planning and buying
agency with regional office in Singapore. He s also a thrice-weekly columnist of Business
Waorld (smce 1984 in then Business Day) and is the President of the Manila Chamber Orchestra
Foundation and the Metropolitan Museum, and Chairman of the Adveriising Foundation. From
1982 to 2003, Mr. Samson worked with the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company,
where his last position from 1999 until his edrly retirement was Executive Vice President, and
concurrently President nind CEO of MediaQuest Holdings, Inc.

Mr. Samson holds a Bachelor’s of Ats Degree in Economics from the Atengo de Manila
University, a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the Asien Institute of
Managemeitt, and & Masters Degree in Business Economics from the University of the Asia and
the Pacific (then Center for Research and Communication),

Gregorio U. Kilayko

Mr. Kilayko was elected as an independent director in 2012, He is presently the Chairman of
ABBA Motors, a Director of The Royal Bank of Scotland, and an Independent Director of SM
Prime Holdings, Inc., Belle Carporalion, and Highlands Prime Leisure, Inc, He was also the
founding| head of lNG Barings’ stock brokerage and investment banking business in the
Philippines and a Philippine Stock Exchange Governor in 1996 and 2000. Mr. Kifayko holds a

Master <’[>[' Business Administration degree from Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvanio.

A, Bayal:iil K. Tan

Filipino, 57, is the Corporate Secrelary of the Company. He is also cumently a Director,
Corporate Sccrelary, or both, of the following reporting companies: First Abacus Financial
Holdmgs Corporation, Belle Corporation, Sinophil Corporation, Tagaytay Highlands
Intérnational Golf Club, inc., Tagaytny Midlands Golf Ciub, Inc., The Country Club at
Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay nghlands Inc., Vantage Equities,
Ine., Toich Solutions, Inc., I-Remit Inc., Destiny Financia} Plans, Inc., Philcquity Funds, Ine.,
Philequity PSE Index Funds, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, fne., Philequity Peso Bond
Fund, Inc. Philequity Strategic Gmwth Fund, Inc. and TKC Steci Corporation. He is the
Mnnagmg Partner of Ten Venluranza Valdez Law Offices and also a Director, Corporate
Secretary, or both of private companics such as Sterling Bank of Asia Inc, Oakridge Properties,
Inc., JTKC Equities, Inc., The Discovery Leisure Company, Inc., Goodyear Steel Pipe
Corporation, Southern Visayas Property Holdings, Inc., Hella-Phil, Inc., Monle Oro Resources
& Energy Inc., FHE Properties, Inc., SCT Furaishing, Ine. City Canc Corporation, Destiny
LendFund, Inc, E-Business Serv:ccs, Inc, Yehey Corporation, Treasure Steclworks
Corporation, Tera [nvestments, Inc., Star Equilies, Inc., Medicare Plus, Inc., Pharex
HealthCorp., and Highlands Gourmet Spocmlasl Corp. Atty. Tan is a member of the Philippine
Bar. He tiolds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the San Beda College, a Bachelor of Laws

Degree fram the University of the Philippines College of Law, and a Master of Laws Degree
from Lhe New Ydrk University School of Law,

Darwin S. Ocampo

Filipinlo, 29, is the Assistant Corporate Secrelary of the Company. He is also currently the
Assistant Corporate Secretary of the following reporting companics: Tapaytay Highlands
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International [Go Club, Inc,, The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands Ine, Yeheyl
Corporation, Phllequity Fund, Ine., Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc., Philéquity PSE Index
Fund, Ine., Ph(lequity Balanced Fund, Inc., and Philéquity Dollar lm:umc Fund, Inc, Helisalso
the D:rector. orporate Secretary, of Assisiant Corporale Secretary of private companies such
as Mio Magazine, Inc,; Arquee Corporation, Elevatc Financial Solutions Inc., Hambrecht &
Quist Philippifies, Inc,, and Professional Parking Manugemcnt Corporation. Atty. Ocampo is 2
member of the Phihppmc Bar and a Special LecWirer in the Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng

Muoynila, He holds a Bachelor of Ants in Politlcal Sclence Degree and a Jurls Doctor Degree
from the Unlvprsity of the Philippines.

Family relatidnships among Directors:
Messrs. Vitlentino Sy and Wilson Sy are brothers,
Independent Director

Mr. Antonio [R. Samson was nominated and reelected ns the independent direclors of the
Company in cormpliance with the réquirements of Rule 38 of the Securities Regulation Code.

Involvement )rn Certain Legal Praoceedings

The Company and its major subsidiaries and associates are not involved in, nor are any of their

propertics subject 1o, any material legal proceedings that could potentinlly affect their
operations and financial capabilities.

ided below, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein
tors, nominees lor eleclion as director, executive officers, underwriter or control

(b) any order{ judgment, or decree, not subsequentiy reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foréign, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring, spspending or otherwise limiling the involvement of any of the above persons in
any type qf business, secutities, commodities or banking activilies; and,

(c)any finding by a domestic or foreign court of compétent jurisdiction {in civil action), the
SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self regulatory organization, thit any of the above persons hes violated a

securities [or commodities law, and the judgment has not boen reversed, suspended, or
vacated,

As a resuft of the delay in the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure Club, Inc.
{ULC), some of its members have initiated legal actions against ULC, the Universal
Rightfield Ppoperty Holdings, Inc. {URPHI) dnd the Universal Leisure Corporation
{ULCorp), well as their respective incumbent and former officers and directors,
including their former Corporate Secretary, Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan, Other than the
Comptaint for Estafa (docketed as 1.5, No. 08-K~19713) filed before the City Prosecutor of
Manila, aHl the legol actions initinted have been dismissed. A Counter-Affidavit has alrcady
been filed bpfore the City Prosecutor in 1.S. No. 08-K-19713 sceking to dismiss the
Complaint fqr fack of cause of action. As of 29 Februaty 2012, the case is still pending
resolution by the City of Manila, Office of the City Prosecutor,

Significant lgmployees

No employet is expected by the Carporation 1o make a significant contribution to the
business.

L
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Item 10. Executive COIIpcnsulion

Except for Mdssrs, Edmundo 1. Dunyi, Jr., all ol the Company’s directors and afTicers
have not receiyed any Torin of compensation froni incepiion up fo present ther than a per
diem ol RG 00? .00 (nef of Wwithho!ding tax) for each meéting attended and annual per diem
during stockhgiders' meeting, There is no employinent contract between the Company and
the above-nanied execulive ofiicer or current exceutive officers. [n addition, except as
prowdcd beloly, there are no compensatory plans or arrangements with respect named
executive officérs thal resulted in or will result from the rcs:gmtlon retirement or
termination offsiich executive director or from a chinge-in- scontrol in the Compuny.

The Company hﬂs no price or stock warrants,
Summary Compensation Table (Annunl Compensation)

[} [

Qe & b, 0 &) =1 % i Qmp Ao
Yalenlino C, Sy
Chairman & CEQ ]
Edmunde I Buu i, Jr.
President & CQO |
Joseplt L. Ong '
Treasurer :
All officers and directors as n group 2013 (Estin‘uil‘c)‘ 3.572,099.96
2012 5,347.232.45
2011 3,495,278.68

Item 117 ‘Sccurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
1. Security Ownership ol Centain Record and Benelicial Owners
As of 31 March 2013, Vantage Equities, Ine. knows no one who beneficially owns

in excess of 3% of the Company’s common stock excepi as set forth in the table
below.

Tileof Nameand Adifressof  Relatlonship’. |- Recort (1)

Class Record/Benéficinl © - withthe Benefletal  Cltizenship- Ngﬁ’:;“r Percent of Class
Owner Compony ! - () Ovwner

PCD Notiinee Gaip, (*) 2,098.637.457
GfF MSE luilding
Aytila Avenue, Makati

Common Stoekliolder r Filiping 9%

(“)PCD \o;nmu: Cuomporation {(FCDNC) is o wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Cemral Depository,
ln_cu_(PCD) The bineficial owiers of the shares uhder the name of PCDNC are PCI's participants who
hold theyshares in tietr own behalf or in behall or their respechive clients, No single PCD participant

currently owns more than 5% el the Comoration™s shares forming part of the PCDNC account exeept 25
follows: |

|

Name aiid Addvess of Relationship with Amount* and Nnture of

Tmc RemxdecneﬂclnlOwncr Company Beneficlal Dwnershlp Cilizenship  Perventof Class
of Class - L i
Coiimian

ch!lh Sccuirutms. Tue, Stockinider 1 827 929, 0b8 ¢ Filipino §7.10%
21E Bast Vosver, PSE Centre,

Exchange Rend, Onigas Center,

rasig City
s, Ruby Tan - Fivance
Manager




(2,

*The shafies shall be voted by the person these shaseholders shall duly muthorize for the  purpose, No
singte lichelicinl owner of Hisse shares own more than 3% of the shures of the Campany except ns
follows; |: |

. 1}

Retationship with
Company

: Nameand Addoecortl e and

% Held
| . Relationshipwith Issuer

|
. Citizenshlp I Number of Shares

Creative Wisiloim, juc.

21/F East Tewer, PSE Cenlre,

Exchange Road, Orﬁl‘gns Center. Pasig City
Ms, Ruby Tan—Co[p. Ste,

Comnion Suwekhalder Filipino 884:350.718 42.14%

2. Sceurity Ownership of Management

The I'ol!owingimblc shows the share beneficially owned by the directors and executive
officers of the:Company as of 31 Murch 2013:

Title of

Noame of Rcé:ﬁrdfﬁeneﬁcinl

Amount & Nature of Percent of
Ciass Owner Record/Beneficial Ownership Citizenship Class
Common | Ignacio B. Gimenez 12,500 (direct). Filiping 0.0006%
Common | Valentino LSy 62,957,812  (dircct &.indirccl) Filiping 2.9972%
Common | Edmundo P’ hun)’i, Jr. 6,262,500  {dircet & indirect) Filipino 0.2981%
Coinmon Joséph L. Ong 12,500 {dircet) Filipiuo (.0006%
Common | Willy N. Ocler 5,998.000  (direct & indirect) Filipino 0.2855%
Common | Roberio Z. Loraves 25000  (direct} Filipino 0.0012%
) . Wilson L. 3
Commeon | 184,150,000  (direct & indirect) Filiping 8.7668%
Common.. |- Antonio R. Samson 62,500  (direct) Filipitio 0.0030%
Common | Grégorio U.lKiI:\yko 10,000  {(direet) TFiliping 0.0005%
Common A. Bayani Ki Tan 1,437 (direct) Filipino 0.0001%
All Directors and Officers as 4 proup 259,492,249 ‘ 12.3536%

0o

ftem 12,

[ERR T
¥ L

Voting Trust{!lolders of 5% or Maore

There is no pdrty which holds any voling trust or any similor agreement for 5% or more of

Vantage's voting seeurities.

Changes in C:nnlrol

The Compang; is nol aware of any arrangement that niay result in a change in control of the

Company.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has not been a party during the lasl two {2) years 10 any other transaction or
proposed irmisaction, in which any director or executive officer of the Company, or any
security holder owhing 10% or more of (he securities of the Company or any member of the

immediate family of such persons, had a direct or indifect material interest.

Vantage Equilies, Inc. is not under the conlrol of any parent company.




Item 14.

The Tollowing are the tramsactions presented in the Notes to Audiled Financial as Related
Party Transactions:

2.1 Yf}.HEY has n ebhstitancy agreemnent with a board member of the Company
amounting to P1.8M actried ih 2012 and subsequently paid in Marcl 2013,

12.2 In 12012, PEMI participated in the Parent Compuny”s investment in credit-linked note
by purchasing P101.77M at fuce value, The Compaiiy setves as {he receiving agent of all
coupon Enlcr‘eét Tor the entire diration ol the participation.

123 ‘I'ltié Company waived the colleetion of remtal for the lease of office of Yehey! of the
years 2011 and 2012,

i
124 2012, 2001 and 2019, the Parent Company paid certain expenses ol c-Business,
Yehey!l, PEMI and iCurrencics, which ivere later billéd lor reimbursement.

12.5 Coinpensation of key management personnel of the Group:

12011

§alarics&\\ﬂgcs 12,402,468.00 | 15,335,985.00 | 16,443,855.00

Retirement benelits 478,475.00 §48,770.00 22{),140.00

TOTAL 12,880,943.60 .| 16,404,755.00 | 16,663;995.00

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Conjpany has been monitoring compliance with’ SEC Memaoramdum Circular No. 6,
Serics off 2009, as well as other relevant SEC ciréulars and rules on good corporate
governanee. All dircctors, offfcers, and employecs complied with all the leading practices
and prineiples on good corporale governance as embaodied in the Corporation’s Manual. The
Cmnpnn)}comnli'cd with the appropriate performance sélf-rating assessment 4nd performance
evdhidtion system to deterriine and measure complianéé with the Manual of Corporate
Governgnce.

PART V- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Extiibils aad Reports on SEC Form [7-C
a. Ex?ﬁbils - See accampanying index o exhibits,

‘The following exhibit is filed as a separate section of this reportl:
Supsidiarics ol the Company

The other exhibits. as indicated in the Index 10 Exhibits are either not applicable to the
Campany or requiré no answer.

«.b.. Reports on SEC Form 17-C

SEC Form 17-C filed 06 August 2012
Letter 1o PSE] dated 04 August 2012 Re: Minutes of the Annual Stockholders® Meeting,

(List of elected Direclors & Officers of the Corporation and List of elected members of

various Board Commitices
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Pursuant to the requirements of S&ttion 17 of the Sectrities Regulahon Code; and Section 141
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YANTAGE EQUITIES, INC,

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

FORM 17 - A, Item 7

Page No.

Consolidated Financial Statements

~ Sthtement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements
Report of Independgént Public Accountant
Corsolidated Balarjee Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings for the

Years Endcdf December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

December 3 l, 2042, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Schedules

Report of Indepengent Public Accountants on Supplementary Schedules

Part 1
.1 oy

1K

Part 2

O mmg 0

-

Schedule of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

(Part 1 4C| Annex 68-C)

Schedule of all effective standards and interpretations under PFRS

(Part | 47}

Map show|ng relationships between and among parent, subsidiaries, an associate,
and joint venture (Part 1 4H)

Financial Assets (Part Il 6D, Annex 68-E, A)

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Affiliates)

(Part If 61), Annex 68-£, B)

Amounts Receivable from Related Partics which are eliminated during the
consolidation of financial stalements (Part If 6D, Annex 68-E, C)
Intangible|Assets - Other Assets (Part /I 6D, Annex 68-E, D)

Long-Term Debt (Part 1l 6D, Annex 68-E, E)

e indebtedness to Related Parties (included in the consolidated statement of

financial gosition) (Part il 6D, Annex 68-E, F)
Guarantecs of Securities of Other tssuers (Part I 6D, Annex 68-E, G)
Capital Stéck (Part [f 6D, Annex 68-E, H)

These schedules, which are required by Part 1V (a) of RSA Rule 48, have been omitted because
they are cither not required, not applicable or the information required to be presented is included
in the Company's |consolidated financial stitcments or the notes to consolidated financial

statements,
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(5

8
&)
(10)

(13
(16)
(18)
(19

(20)
@21y
29)

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Form 17-A

Plan of Achisition, Reorgonization, Arrangement,
Liguidation, or Succession

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders,
Including Indentures

Agrcement

Annuel Repprt to Securily Holders, Form 17-Q or
rly Report 1o Security Holders

Letter re: Change in Certifying Accountant
Report Furnished to Security Holders
Subsidiarieq of the Registrant

Published Report Regarding Matters Submitted to
Vdte of Security Holders

Consent of Experts and Independent Counsel
Power of Altorney

Additional Fxhibits

Page No.

s These exhibits }Lm cither or not applicable to the Company or require no answer.
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. ‘ ANNEX*D-”

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Unaudited Audited
March 31,2013 31-Dec-12
ASSEIS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 1,357,481,754 1,369,141,777
Receivables — net (Note 6)) 1,296,079,107 912,499,486
Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVPL) (Note 7) 2,917,500 450,158,034
Prepaid taxes and other current assets (Note 9) 22,983,544 8,716,170
Total Current Assets 2,679,461,905 2,740,515,467
Noncurrent Assets
Loans and receivables - noncurrent portion - 150,000,000
Available-for-sale securities (Note 8) 5,876,685,033 4,856,579,928
Investment in associates & JV—net 119,227 119,228
Deferred Tax Assets 357,353 3,819,683
Goodwill (Note 10) 3,654,985 3,654,985
Property and equipment — net (Note 10} 43,801,325 45,910,550
Other noncurrent assets - net (Note 11) 23,888,180 24,538,270
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,948,506,103 5,084,622,644
8.627,968,008 7,825,138,111
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 12) 454,071,580 298,281,535
Dividends Payable- net of tax - -
Notes Payable 610,349,500 874,775,500
Income tax payable 19,355,650 12,039,746
Current Portion of long-term debt - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,083,776,730 1,185,096,781
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 617,010 415,620
Accrued Retirement Costs 3,380,494 7,371,013
Asset Retirement Obligation - -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,997,504 7,786,633
1,087,774,234 1,192,883,414

Stockholders’ Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Capital stock — P1 par value

Authorized — 2,250,000,000

Issued — 2.235,390,633 2,235,390,633 2,235,390,633

Stock Issuance Cost of a subsidiary -
Cumulative net unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-
for-sale investments 1,652,835,131 1,083,273,387
Retained eamings 3,670,937,721 3,347.,493,258
Treasury Stocks (188,520,838) (188,520,838)
Minority Interest 169,551,127 154,618,257
Total Stockholders’ Equity 7,540,193,774 6,632,254,697

8,627,968,008

7,825,138,111




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Period Ended (Unaudited) For the Quarter Ended (Unaudited)
March 31, 2013 March 31,2012 March 31,2013~ March 31, 2012
REVENUES
Money transfer service 103,592,786 105,246,143 103,592,786 105,246,143
Equity in net eamings of associates - - - .
Internet service and sales 1,298,924 5,790,503 1,298,924 5,790,503
Money changing and foreign exchange 23,371,340 11,788,082 23,371,340 11,788,082
Interest income 37,330,462 30,951,937 37,330,462 30,951,937
Trading Gain/Loss 261,543,367 47,359,592 261,543,367 47,358,592
Income from Mutual Fund 36,526,805 19,480,583 36,526,895 19,480,583
Others 5,072,052 13,851,533 5,072,052 13,851,533
468,735,326 234,468,373 468,735,826 234,465,373
EXPENSES
Ceneral and administrative expenses (Note 13) 78,516,505 82,166,362 74,516,505 82,166,362
Cost of services and sales 35,456,506 34,500,503 35,456,506 34,500,503
Depreciation and amortization 3,921,460 4298208 3,921,460 4,298 208
117,894,471 120,965,073 117,894,471 120,965,073
INCOME FROM QPERATIONS 350,841,355 113,503,300 350,841,355 113,503,300
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest and bank charges — net (9.219.217) {575,513) (9219,217) (975,513}
QOthers 3,187,624 (68,284) 3,187,624 (68,254)
{6,031,593) (1,043,797) (6,031,593) (1,043,797)
INCOME BEFORE EXTRA-ORDINARY
Income/Expense 344 809,762 112,459,503 344 809,762 112,459,503
Extra-Ordinary Income/{Exp.} - - - -
INCOMEBEFORE INCOME TAX 344,809,762 112,459,503 344,809,762 112,459,503
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
Current 6,432,428 10,149,095 (22,688,667) 10,149,095
Deferred - - (1,511,037 -
6,432,428 10,149,095 (24,199,704) 10,149,095
NET INCOME (LOSS) 338,377,334 102,310,408 369,009,466 102,310,408
Attributable to:
Equity holders ofthe parent (Note 18) 323,444, 464 95,385,467 323,444 464 95,385,467
Minority interests 14,932,870 6,924,941 14,932,870 6,524,941
338,377,334 102,310,408 338,377,334 102,310,408

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Parent 0.16 0.05 0.16 0.05




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Quarter Ended (Unaudited)

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

CAPITAL STOCK - 1 par value
Authorized - 2,250,000,000 shares
Issued - 2,235,390,633 shares
Balance at beginning of year 2,235,390,633 2,235,390,633
Stock issuance cost of a subsidiary - (3,209,910}
Stock dividends issued - -
Balance at end of period 2,235,390,633 2,232,180,723
CUMULATIVE NET UNREALIZED GAIN ON CHANGE IN FAIR
VALUE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-S ALE SECURITIES
Balance at beginning of year 1,083,273,387 558,384,899
Unrealized Gain/(loss) 569,561,742 346,405,043
Balance at end of period 1,652,835,129 004,789,942
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
Balance at beginning of year 3,347,493,258 2,840,384,631
Net income (loss) 338,377,334 95,385,469
Share in Minority Interest (14,932,869) -
Stock Dividend . .
Balance at end of period 3,670,937,723 2,935,770,100
TREAS URY SHARES (188,520,838) (188,520,838)
MINORITY INTEREST
Balance at beginning of year 154,618,257 129,935,635
M inority share in the capital stock from issuance of property dividend -
Total income and expenses recognized during the period 14,932,870 (18,846,347}
Balance at end of period 169,551,127 111,089,288

7,540,193,774 5,995,309,216




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Quarter Ended (Unaudited)

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income {loss) before Tax 344,809,762 112,459,503
Depreciation and amortization 3,921,460 4,298.208
Interest expense 9,219,217 975,513
Dividend income (1,453,377) (6,145,863)
Interest income (37,330,462) (30,951,937)
Operating income before working capital changes 319,166,600 80,635,424
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase):
Receivable (247,217,676) 259,567,211
Prepaid expenses and other cuirent assets (14,267,374) (4,369,822)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other current liabilities 156,145,331 (108,918,589)
Net cash provided by (used for) operations 213,826,881 226,914,224
Interest paid (9,219,217) (975,513)
Income taxpaid
Dividends received 1,453,377 6,145,863
Interest received 50,968,517 30,951,937
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 257,029,558 263,036,511
CASHFLOWS FROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES
" Decrease (increase) in:
Investment and advances - 56750
Property and equipment (1,812,233) (3,267,564)
Decrease (increase) in AFS/HTM (572,864,571) (303,972,437)
Increase (decrease) in net unrealized gain on AFS 569,561,744 346,405,045
Decrease (increase in) other assets 851,480 {3,000,962)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (4,263,580) 36,220,832
CASH FI.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Increase {decrease) in minority interest - 13,225,793
Acquisition of Treasury Shares - -
Payment of loans (264,426,001) 48,499,601
Cash used in financing activities {264,426,001) 61,725,394
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,660,023) 360,982,737
CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,369,141,777 540,411,971
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 1,357,481,754 901,394,708




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

(Formerly iVantage Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED‘ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Corporate Information

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 20, 1992. The
primary business of the Parent Company is to invest in, acquire by purchase, exchange,
assignment or otherwise; or to hold, own, use for investment or otherwise shares of the capital
stock, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, or other securities or obligations created, negotiated
or issued by any corporation, association or other entities, whether foreign or domestic, including
but not limited to information technology companies and related ventures, holding companies and
companies engaged in financial services, investments and real property development. Its
investments consist of shares in: (a) entities involved in inward remittances and financing
services; (b) an Information Technology (1T)-based entity; and (c) an entity involved in
management of mutual funds.

On April 8, 2008, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s change of corporate name from
iVantage Corporation to Vantage Equities, Inc.

The Parent Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the “Group™):

Percentage of Ownership

Name of Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation 1Q2013 2012
e-Business Services, Inc. (e-Business) Philippines 100.00 100.00
eBIZ Financial Services, Inc.

(¢BIZ Financial)* Philippines 100.00 100.00
iCurrencies, Inc. (iCurrencies) Philippines 100.00 100.00
Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. Philippines 100.00 100.00
Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income

Fund, Inc. Philippines 100.00 100.00
Philequity Dividend Yield

Fund, Inc. (PDYF) Philippines 100.00 100.00
Yehey! Corporation (Yehey!) Philippines 66.97 66.97
Philequity Management, Inc. (PEMI) Philippines 51.00 51.00

* Indirectly owned through e-Business
The Parent Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

g-Business

e-Business is involved in fund transfer and remittance services, both domestic and abroad, of any
form or kind of currencies or monies, as well as in conducting money exchange transactions as
may be allowed by law and other allied activities relative thereto. e-Business has an existing
Representation Agreement (Agreement) with Western Union Financial Services, Inc. (Western



Union) covering its fund transfer and remittance services for a period of seven years from
September 1, 2007 to August 31, 2014, e¢-Buginess shall receive remuneration for the services
provided to Western Union in accordance with the terms stipulated in the Agreement.

eBiz Financial
eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on April 11,

2005 and started commercial operations on May 9, 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged in financing
business.

iCurrencies
iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on February 3, 2000 and started commercial operations on

May 31, 2000, iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and selling
of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, the iCurrencies effectively stopped its business of buying and selling currencies as a
result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on October 26, 2000. Among
others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and
required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-op capital of

B50.0 million.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign currencies. The
stockholders likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

in the meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by income on its investments and interest income on its
funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

PBF

PBF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on May 6, 2008 under the Philippine Investment Company Act (1CA)
(Republic Act 2629) as an open-end mutual fund company. PBF is engaged in selling its capital
to the public and investing the proceeds in diversified portfolio of peso-denominated fixed-
income and equity securities. As of December 31, 2012, PBF has not yet launched its capital
shares to the public.

PECFIF

PFCFIF incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on April 10, 2008 under the Philippine ICA as an open-end mutual fund
company. PFCFIF is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities. As of
December 31, 2012, PFCFIF has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.

PDYF

PDYT was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on August 2, 2012 under Philippine ICA as an open-end investment company.
PDYF is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in diversified
portfolio of diversified portfolio of equity securities. As of December 31, 2012, PDYF has not yet
launched its capital shares to the public.

Yechey!

Yehey! is engaged in the business of internet online related products relating to database search
engine, such as, but not limited to, conceptualizing, designing, illustrating, processing and editing
web sites. It is also engaged in pre-production and post-production work on web sites in internet



and sell and market said products in the form of advertising of finished products in the domestic
or export market.

PEMI

PEMI was incorporated in the Philippines and is primarily engaged in management of mutual
funds.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale
{AFS) investments, which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest peso unit, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Parent Company controls another entity.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in fult,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Parent
Company. Control is achieved when the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Consolidation of
subsidiaries ceases when control is transferred out of the Group.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of income from the date of acquisition up fo the date of disposal, as appropriate.

When a change in ownership interest in a subsidiary occurs, which results in loss of control over
the subsidiary, the Parent Company:

* Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

e Derecognizes the related other comprehensive income recorded in equity and recycle the
same to profit or loss or surplus;

¢ Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

e Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; and

» Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

In a separate or parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at
cost, less accumulated impairment in value. Dividends earned on these investments are
recognized in the Parent Company’s separate statement of income as declared by the respective



BOD of the investees.

Non-Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly
ot indirectly, by the Parent Company.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from parent shareholders' equity. Any losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests are allocated against the interests of the non-controlling interest even if
this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. Acquisitions of non-
controlling interests that does not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transaction, whereby the difference between the consideration and the fair value of the share of

the net assets acquired is recognized as an equity transaction and attributed to the owners of the
Parent Company.

Changes in Accounting Palicies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except for the following amended standards which were
adopted as of Janvary 1, 2012. The following amended standards did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments; Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Amendments)

The amendments require additional disclosures about financial assets that have been transferred
but not derecognized to enhance the understanding of the relationship between those assets that
have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. Tn addition, the amendments require
disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement
in those derecognized assets.

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments)

This amendment to PAS 12 clarifies the determination of deferred fax on investment property
measured at fair value. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of investment property measured using the fair value model in PAS 40, Investment
Property, will be recovered through sale and, accordingly, requires that any related deferred tax
should be measured on a ‘sale’ basis. The presumption is rebutted if the investment property is
depreciable and it is held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits in the investment property over time (‘use’ basis), rather than through
sale. Furthermore, the amendment introduces the requirement that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment, always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.

Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Translation
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated in Philippine peso
based on the Philippine Dealing system (PDS) closing rate prevailing at end of year and foreign
currency-denominated income and expenses, at PDS weighted average rate for the year. Foreign
exchange differences arising from restatements of foreign currency-denominated assets and
liabilities are credited to or charged against operations in the year in which the rates change.



Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.
Receivables, accounts payable and other noncurrent liabilities, bonds payable and long term debt
are recognized when cash is received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers,

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial insturments at
FVPL, the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs. The Group classifies
its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified as
either derivative liabilities, {inancial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities carried at amortized
cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and
whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such
designation at every reporting date.

As of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Group does not have HTM investments.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of the financial instruments traded in active markets at the consolidated statement
of financial position date is based on their quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid
price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs, When current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction
provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in
economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. Valuation
techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist, option pricing models, and other relevant valuation models. The
inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where
observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The
judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated
derivatives and discount rates.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 17 difference) in the consolidated statement
of income under ‘Miscellaneous expense’ unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset. In cases where transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of
income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference
amount.



Financial assets at FVPL represent securities which are held for trading and free standing
derivative (currency forward contract). Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Interest earned or
incurred is recorded in ‘Interest income’ or ‘Interest expense’ in the consolidated statement of
income, respectively, while dividend income is recorded in ‘Dividends’ in the consolidated

statement of income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive payment
has been established.

Financial instruments at FVPL
Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets and financial liabilities that are:

¢ acquired and held for trading purposes

» designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL; and

= stand-alone or bifurcated embedded derivative financial instruments not designated as
effective hedging instruments

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purposes of selling and repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be de‘signﬁted by management on initial recognition
at FVPL when the following criteria are met:

¢ The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis;

s The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

s The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. Interest earned or dividends received are recorded in interest
income or dividend income, respectively. Interest incurred is recorded as interest expense in the
consolidated statement of income.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative is
separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all the following conditions
are met:

¢ the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristic of the host contract;

¢  aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of the derivative; and



» the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at fair value with fair value changes
charged through profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host
contracts when the Group first becoriies party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there

is a change in the terms of the contracts that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.

The Group bifurcated embedded derivatives as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
pertaining to Unquoted debt securities under ‘Loans and receivables’. The value of the
bifurcated embedded derivatives is not significant.

As of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company’s financial assets at FVPL
comprise of investments in corporate bonds and currency forward contracts.

Loans and receivables

This accounting policy relates to the consolidated statement of financial poesition captions ‘Cash
and cash equivalents®, ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘Refundable deposits’ (included under Prepaid
expenses and other current assets). These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as ‘Other
financial assets held for trading’ or designated as “AFS investments’ or ‘Financia] assets
designated at FVPL’.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at cost or amortized
cost using the EIR method, less allowance for credit losses. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the consolidated statement of
income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Provision for credit and
impairment losses’ in the consolidated statement of income.

AFS investments

AFS investments are nonderivative financial assets which are designated as such or do not qualify
to be classified as designated at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. They are
purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions. They include equity investments, money market papers and other debt
instruments.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the consolidated statement of income.
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded,
net of tax, from the reported earnings and are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as ‘Net unrealized gain on AFS investments’.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed
to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS debt investments are
reported in the consolidated statement of income as ‘Interest income’ using the EIR. Dividends
eamned on holding AFS equity investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of income
as ‘Dividends’ when the right to receive payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairment of such investment are recognized as ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in
the consolidated statement of income.



Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVPL when the financial liability is either held for trading
or it is designated as at FVPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

¢ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* on nitfal recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itisa derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Management may designate a financial liability at FVPL upon initial recognition when the

following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument by instrument basis:

¢ The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

» The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

e The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative

does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value of financial instruments are recorded in Mark-to-market gain (loss)
on financial assets at FVPL in the consolidated statement of income. Interests incurred are
recorded in Interest expense in the statement of income using the effective interest method.

Derecoenition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assels

A financial asset (where applicable, a part of a financial asset, or part of a group of financial

assets) is derecognized when:

¢ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

¢ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control
over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability

[



and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.,

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, which includes cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and deposits, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. For individually assessed financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of loss is charged against the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized
based on the original EIR of the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance accounts,
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, any
amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the
consolidated statement of income.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics
are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of



the debtors’ ability to pay alt amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
gvaluated.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future
cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which
the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period (such
changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses
in the Group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

AFS investments
For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
consolidated statement of income - is removed from consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized direcily in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
staternent of income. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘Interest income’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event cccurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and short-term investments. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible fo a known
amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the dates of placement and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Investments in associate and joint venture

Investment in associate

Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% and 50.00% of the voting rights. In the
consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting.
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Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying value of the investment
and is not amortized. The Group’s share in an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in the associate’s equity reserves is recognized directly in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
eliminated to the exient of the interest in the associate.

Investment in joint venture

Investment in joint venture is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The
investment in joint venture is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
plus post-acquisition changes in the share of net assets of the joint venture, less any allowance for
impairment losses,

Investments in joint ventures in the Group’s financial statements are carried at cost less any
allowance for impairment losses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value. The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import
duties, taxes and any costs directly attributable to bringing the property and equipment to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
income in the year in which such costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally
assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property
and equipment.

The cost of an item of property and equipment also includes costs of dismantlement, removal or
restoration and the related obligation that the Group incurs at the end of the useful life of property
and equipment.

When each major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Such costs are capitalized and amortized over the next major repairs and maintenance
activity.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the property and equipment as follows:

Fumiture and fixtures 2-10 years
Office improvements 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office condominium 20 years
Server and network equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years or term of lease, whichever

period is shorter
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The useful lives, residual values, and depreciation and arnortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the periods, residual values, and method of depreciation and

amortization are consistent with the eéxpected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation are credited or charged to consolidated statement of income.

When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to consolidated statement of income.

Software and Website

Development costs of software and website included under “Other noncurrent assets™ account in
the consolidated statement of financial position are capitalized and treated as intangible assets
because their costs are not an integral part of the related hardware. Amortization is computed

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 3 years for software and 2 years
for website.

Impairment of Property and Equipment. Software and Investment in Associate and Joint Venture
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash- generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment
losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the expense category consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the ]ast impairment loss was recognized. Ifthat is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impatrment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual
value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Parent Company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired business. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to which goodwill has
béen allocated, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as principal or agent. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Commission income

This represents the commission received by the Group from Western Union. The Group receives
commission from Western Union for every advance dollar remittance service provided by the
former for the latter. Revenue is recognized the remittance service has been rendered which is
when Western Union acknowledges the transaction.

Advertising, Web Development and Internet Service

Revenue from advertising and web development is recognized based on Percentage of
Completion Method. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of the work
performed. Revenue from internet service is recognized at the time services are rendered.

Money Changing Gain

Money changing gains are related to the Group’s retail foreign exchange operations in the
branches. The Group provides money changing services to its clients which includes buying and
selling of foreign currencies. Revenue is recognized when the service is rendered.

Share in Foreign Exchange Differential
Income from foreign exchange differential is recognized when service is rendered and foreign
currency denominated cash is converted into Philippine peso.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, using the effective interest rate.

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Service Income
Service income is recognized when the services are rendered.

Management fee
Revenue is recognized as services are rendered and in accordance with the management and
distribution agreement.

Gain on Sale of AFS Investments
Revenue is recognized on trade date upon receipt of confirmation of sale of investments from
counterparties.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset. A re-assessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in confractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(¢) Thereis a change in the determination of whether fulfiliment is dependent on a specified
asset; or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a re-assessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment fot scenarios a, ¢ or d above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.

Group as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease agreement.

Retirement Costs

e-Business has funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all
of its regular employees. The Parent Company and Yehey! have unfunded, noncontributory
defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all of its regular employees. The obligation
and costs of retirement benefits are actnarially computed by an independent actuary using
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense
when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for the plan at the end of the
previous reporting period exceed 10.00% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of the plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected
average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the fair
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such aggregate is
negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to
the plan.

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that
they exceed any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits. If there is no change
or an increase in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the
current period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately. Similarly,
net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current
period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are
recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net
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actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, If there is
no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial
gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are
recognized immediately.

Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences
and carryforward benefit of unused net operating loss carry over (NOLCOQ) and excess of
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with certain
exceptions. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward benefit of unused NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT, fo the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the
consolidated statement of income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
periods when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same tax authority.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are
sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to ‘Capital
paid-in excess of par value’ account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as
underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in
excess of par value’ account. If the *Capital paid-in excess of par value’ is not sufficient, the
excess is charged against the ‘Retained earnings’.

When the Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each
class of stock and the number of shares issued.
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Own equity instruments which are acquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and
accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancéllation of the Parent Company’s own equity instruments.

‘Retained earnings’ represents accumulated earnings of the Group less dividends declared.

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is determined by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments for any stock
split and stock dividends declared.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects
of any dilutive potential common shares. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Parent
Company does not have dilutive potential common shares.

Provisions

General \

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as an
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Ifit is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Group recognizes provision arising from legal and/or constructive obligations associated with
the cost of dismantling and removing an item of property and equipment and restoring the site
where it is located, the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the asset is acquired or
as a consequence of having used the asset during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period. A corresponding asset is recognized as part of property
and equipment. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using estimated cash flows. The cash flows are discounted at a current pretax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability.

The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized in the consolidated
statement of income as an interest expense. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are
reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the
discount rate applied are added or deducted from the cost of property and equipment. The amount
deducted from the cost of property and equipment shall not exceed its carrying amount.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period
Events after reporting date that provide additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial
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statements. Events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
financial statements, when material.

Dividends on common shares

Dividends on common shares are récognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
approved by the respective shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries while stock
dividends are deducted from equity when approved by the BOD and shareholders of the Parent
Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after the consolidated statement of financial
position date are dealt with as an event after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Segment reporting

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6. The Group’s assets producing tevenues are located in the
Philippines (i.e., one geographical location). Therefore, geographical segment information is no
longer presented.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

Standards issued but not yet effective up to date of the consolidated financial statements are listed
below. The Group intends to adopt those standards when they become effective. Except when
otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these new and amended standards
and interpretations to have significant impact on its financial statements.

New and amended standards
Effective in 2013
* PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013. These amendments require an entity to disclose information about
rights of set-off and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new
disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with PAS 32. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or “similar agreement’, irrespective of
whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to
disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate, the following
minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for financial assets and
financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial
liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
¢) The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b} above, including:
i.  Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii.  Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance.

e PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, It
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replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in Standing Interpretations Committee (8IC) - 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose
Entities. It establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special
purpose entities. The changes introduced by the standard will require managemeiit to
exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore
required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.
The application of this new standard will not impact the financial position or performanee of
the Group.
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PERS 11, Joint Arrangements

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Tt
replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers. It removes the option to account for jointly controlled
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a
joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The application of this new
staridard will not impact the financial position or performance of the Group.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. It
includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and

PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s inierests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. The

adoption of PFRS 12 wiil affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

It establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements. It does
not change when an entity is required fo use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how
to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted. Tts disclosure
requirements need not be applied in comparative information provided for periods before
initial application of PFRS 13. The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of this
standard will have a significant impact on its financial position and performance.

PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012. The
amendments to the standard change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive
income. Items that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in
time (for example, ipon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from
items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and there is no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Amendments range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and
the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
revised standard also requires new disclosures such as, among others, a sensitivity analysis for
each significant actuarial assumption, information on asset-liability matching strategies,
duration of the defined benefit obligation, and disaggregation of plan assets by nature and
risk.

Once effective, the Group has to apply the amendments retroactively to the earliest period
presented.
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The Group reviewed its existing employee benefits and determined that the amended standard
has significant impact on its accounting for retirement benefits. The Company obtained the
services of an external actuary to compute the impact to the financial statements upon
adoption of the standard. The effects are detailed below:

Asat
31 December Asat
2012 1 January 2012

Increase (decrease) in:
Consolidated statements of financial position

Retirement payable (R9,594,787) (#9,513,481)

Deferred tax asset 794,178 483,992

Other comprehensive income 1,218,702 (19,642)

Retained earnings 9,170,863 10,017,115
2012

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Retirement expense B1,157,038

Provision for deferred tax 310,788

Net income T 846,252

Other comprehensive income ) 1,238,344

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains in the standard is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial
statements. The adoption of the amended PAS 27 will not have a significant impact on the
separate financial statements of the Group.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangemients, and PFRS 12, the standard has
been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the
application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine :
The Interpretation is effective for annmual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. This

. interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity,

during the production phase of the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting for the
benefit from the stripping activity. This new interpretation is not relevant to the Group.

Effective in 2014

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
liabilities

The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014, These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsctting
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criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation only
and bave no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Effective in 2015

o PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. PFRS 9,
as issued, reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Work on impairment of financial
instruments and hedge accounting is still ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its
entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial
recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVQ) is not invoked, be
subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the
objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give
rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through
OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability
that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative
separation rules and the criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9
may have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but
will potentially have no impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-15, Agreement for the Consiruction of Real Estate
This Interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred
the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. The application of this interpretation will not impact the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PERSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 and are applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS — Borrowing Costs

The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs
in accordance with its previous genetally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward,
without any adjustment, the amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial
position at the date of transition. Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are
recognized in accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment does not apply to the
Group as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.
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PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for comparative
information

The amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed
voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an accounting policy,
or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements. An entity
must include comparative information in the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative period.
The additional comparative period does not need to contain a complete set of financial statements.
On the other hand, supporting notes for the third balance sheet (mandatory when there is a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification
of items in the financial statements) are not required. The amendments affect disclosures only and
have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment

The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be

recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and

equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise. The amendment will not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity
instruments ‘ .

The amendment clarifiés that income taxes relating to disttibutions to equity holders and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, Income
Taxes. The Group expects that this amendment will not have any impact on its financial position
or performance,

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information for
total assets and liabilities

The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment
need to be disclosed only when thie amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker and there has been a material change from the amount disclosed in the entity’s previous
annual financial statements for that reportable segment. The amendment affects disclosures only
and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to make
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may occur
which will cause the judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The
effects of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they
become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable undet the
circumstances.

Judgments ‘
The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:
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a)

b)

©)

d)

Determination of Functional Currency
The Group has determined its functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It is the currency

of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates and the currency that
mainly influences the income and expenses,

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as a Lessee

The Group has entered into a lease for some of its office spaces and branches. The Group has
determined that it has not acquired all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased properties because of the following factors: (a) the Group will not acquire the
ownership of the leased asset upon termination of the lease; (b) the Group has no option to
purchase the asset at a price that is sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date of the
option; and (c¢) the lease term is only for a period of one year, renewable annually.
Accordingly, the Group accounts for the lease as operating leases.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using a varjety
of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include

considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated
financial instruments (see Note 5).

Financial assets not quoted in an active market

The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in
an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Determination of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent
The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to determine
whether it is acting as a principal or an agent:

. whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and services;
. whether the Group has inventory risk;

. whether the Group has discretion in establishing prices; and

. whether the Group bears the credit risk.

If the Group has determined it is acting as a principal, revenue is recognized on a gross basis
with the amount remitted to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and expenses.

If the Group has determined it is acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is
recognized as revenue.

The Group assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded that it is acting as principal in
some arrangements and as an agent in other arrangements.

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a)

Fuair value of financial instrumenis .
PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities be carried and disclosed at fair value,
which requires the use of accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components
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of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rate), the timing and amount of changes in fair vatue
would differ if the Group utilized a different valuation methodology. Any change in the
assumptions could affect the fair values of thesé financial assets and liabilities.

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 7.

b} Allowance for credit losses

d)

The Group maintains an allowance for credit losses at a level considered adequate to provide
for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is evaluated by the Group on
the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are
not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customers, average age of
accounts and collection experience. The Group performs a regular review of the age and
status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment
and provide the appropriate allowance for impairment losses. The review is accomplished
using specific assessment and collective approaches. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized
different methodologies.

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, receivables net of allowance for credit
losses are disclosed in Note 6.

Impairment of AFS equity investiments

The Group determines that AFS equity investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as
decrease by more than 20.00% of the original cost of investment, and ‘prolonged’ as greater
than 12 months. In making this judgment, the Group évaluates among other factors, the
normal volatility in share price.

In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the
financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the
carrying value of AFS investments are disclosed in Note 8.

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software and website

The useful lves of the property and equipment, software and website are estimated based on
the period over which the property and equipment, sofiware and website are expected to be
available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practice, intérnal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property and
equipinent, software and website are reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ
materially from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property and equipment, software and
website. However, it is possible that future results or operations could be materially affected
by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The
amounts and timing of recording of expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances.

There is no change in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software and
website during the year. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the carrying
values of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 10.

Impairment of nonfinancial assets (except Goodwill)
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, requires that an impairment review be performed when certain
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h)

impairment indicators are present. Determining the value in use of property and equipment
and other nonfinancial assets, which require the determination of future cash flows expected
to be generated from the continued use and ultimate digposition of such assets, requires the

Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial
statements.

As of the reporting dates, the property and equipment and software do not have any indication
of impairment.

Fifth Agency Unified Services, Inc. (FAUSI) stopped its normal operations in 2008. FAUSI
suffered consecutive years of losses which the management believes may lead to non-
recovery of their investment.

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The calculation of value in use for both cash-generating units are most sensitive to the
following assumptions explained as follows:

Discount Rates. Discount rates reflect management’s estimate of the risks specific to the cash
generating unit. This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating performance
and to evaluate foture investment proposals. The discount rate used for the cash-generating
unit is based on the estimated cost of equity. This rate is further adjusted to reflect the market
assessment of any risk specific to the generating unit for which estimates of cash flows have
not been adjusted.

Growth Rate. Growth rate reflects management’s estimate of the cash generating unit’s
earnings potential as a function of economic and industry growth and the unit’s strategic
position relative to its competitors. For purposes of the projection, a growth rate of 5.0% was
used.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

Asset retivement obligation

Determining asset retirement obligation requires estimation of the costs of dismantling
installations and restoring leased properties to their original condition. While the Group
believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or obligation in the
future period.

Accrued retirement costs

The determination of the Group’s retirement cost is dependent on selection of certain
assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amount. Those assumptions include,
among others, discount rates, rates of future salary increase, expected rate of return on plan
assets and average remaining working lives of employees. Actual results that differ from the
Group’s assumptions are accurmulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the Group’s recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
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periods. While management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the Group’s actual experience or significant changes in the
assumptions may materially affect the pension and other retirement obligation.

Deferred tax assets

The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary
differences is based on the budgeted taxable income of the following period. This budget is
based on the Group’s past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.

Legal Contingencies

The estimate of probable costs, if any, for the resolution of possible claims is developed in
consultation with outside legal counsel handling the Group’s defense in these matters and is
based upon an analysis of potential results. Based on management’s assessment, there are no
liabilities that require recognition arising from legal claims.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized info major operating business segments as
follows:

Investment holdings
The investment holdings segment deals in the acquisition and sale of financial instruments.

Remittance services

The remittance services segment provides the infrastructure and services as the largest direct
agent for money transfer of Overseas Filipino Workers. Beyond the remittance business, this
segment facilitates the fulfillment of e~commerce transactions and serves as a payment
platform for any Business to Business (B2B) or Business to Customers (B2C) initiative.

Internet services

The internet services segment is engaged in the business of internet online-related products
relating to a database search engine. It also provides enterprise and consumer solutions via
products of the internet.

Mutual fund management
This segment deals in the management of mutual funds.

The Group mainly operates and generates revenue in the Philippines only, (i. €., one geographical
location). Thus, geographical segment information is not presented.

The Group has no significant customers which contribute 10.00% or more of the consolidated
revenues.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

March 31,2013 December 31,2012

Cash on hand and in banks £252,757,11 P341,781,632
Short-term investments 1,104,724,653 1,027,360,145
B
1,357,481,7541,

357,481,754 £1,357,481,754
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Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and carn interest at the prevailing short-term investment rates.

Loans and receivables

This account consists of:

March 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Due from:
Western Union $397,679,116 P456,748,895
Broker 26,050,106 30,003,989
Sub-agents 15,174,922 15,174,922
Business partners - 5,615,263
Unquoted debt securities 474,671,806 480,565,787
Receivable from advertising and web
development services 42,946,381 42,529,019
Accrued interest 25,288,023 38,926,078
Trade receivable 20,180,792 11,737,072
Advances to officers and employees 77,663 - 3,429,063
Others 335,041,054 21,204,528
1,337,109,863 2,674,219,726
Less.allowance for credit losses 41,030,755 43,435,130
P
1,296,079,108474
,671,806 P474,671,806
Aging of Loans and Receivables
As of March 31, 2013
No. of Days Receivable Due from WU, Unquoted Debt Others Total
from Brokers, Securities
advertising Subagents and
and web Affiliates
development
Services
Current (1-30 days) 6,310,080 438,904,144 - 380,587,532 825,801,756
31-60 days 4,524,682 - - - 4,524,682
61— 90 days 1,433,342 - - - 1,433,342
QOver 90 days 30,678,277 - 474,671,806 - 505,350,083
TOTAL 42,946,381 438,904,144 474,671,806 380,587,532 1,337,109,363

Due from Western Union represents pay-outs from e-Business covering fund transfers and
remittance servicesg, which were not yet reimbursed by Western Unjion as of the reporting date.

Due from sub-agents arising from money transfer services are shown net of related payables to the
same sub-agent. Sub-agent accounts showing net payable balances are shown under ‘Accounts
payable and other current liabilities” in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Unquoted debt securities represent investment in a credit linked note. This credit linked note is a
financial instrument structured with an embedded credit default swap in relation to the linked
obligation, a global bond issued by SM Investment Corporation to ING Bank. Aside from the
credit default swap, the note contains an embedded foreign exchange option wherein the issuer
has the option to pay interest in USD or in an equivalent amount of PHP calculated at the foreign
exchange period end rate. No bifurcation was made on the embedded derivatives.
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The advances to officers and employees are either subject for liquidation or collectible through
salary deduction.

The terms and conditions of receivables are as follows:

* Due from sub-agents, business partners and Western Union are noninterest bearing and are
generally on a one to four days’ term.

¢ Due from broker is nonintetest-bearing and are usually collectible on a 3-day term.

¢ Receivables from advertising and web development services are normally collectible within
two to four months after completion of the contract while other receivables are due and
demandable upon coimpletion of the transaction.

s Interest receivables are generally collectible on a 180-day term.

» Due from affiliates represents short-term noninterest bearing advances for working capital
requirements.

e  Other receivables such as business partners and prudential guarantees are all short-term in
nature.

7. TFinancial Assets at EVPL

This account consists of investments in:

March 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Held-for-trading

Government bonds ® - 385,781,634
Corporate securities - 61,575,000

Derivative asset
Currency forward coniracts 2,917,500 2,801,400
P2,917,5000 B04

8. Available-For-Sale Investments
This account consists of investments in:

March 31, 2013 December 31,2012

Debt securities B2,644,789,517 B1,605,784,164
Equity securities 1,516,816,367 1,667,064,599
Mutual funds 1,715,079,149 1,583,970,477
B

9,108,580,54917,215,

P 956,241

Allowance for impairment Josses - (239,312)
5,876,685,033 RO

9. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
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This account consists of:

‘ March 31,2013 December 31, 2012
Prepaid expenses £4,429,590 2,461,136
Input value-added tax 2,416,502 3,253,030
Creditable withholding tax 2,479,802 536,782
Others 13,657,650 2,465,222
P22,983,544 $22,983,544
10. Property and Equipment

Details of this account are presented below:
March 31,2013 December 31, 2012
Cost £340,845,754 P342.469,816
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 297,044,429 296,559,266
P43,801,325 P
45,910,550681,691,50
8

11. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

March 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Receivable from sale of investments P - 196,592,600
Rental and other deposits 20,324,041 20,729,593
Software and website - net 126,969 0
Others 3,437,170 810,483
23,888,180
Less: Allowance for credit losses - 96,815,015
£23,888,1800 200
12. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
This account consists of:
March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Due to sub-agents and brokers P167,796,695 £196,929,646
Accrued expenses 91,175,753 51,534,561
Trade 2,504,918 24,695,822
Others 192,594,214 25,121,506
P454,071,580 PO08,143,1605

Terms and conditions of financial liabilities follow:

Due to sub-agents and brokers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled

on a two to four days’ term.

29



¢ Accrued interest are payable within 30 days from its accrual.

* Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are
normaily seftled on a 60 to 90-day term.

13. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Salaries, wages and allowances B27,927,057 P28,543,712
Rent and utilities 20,311,242 21,399,048
Qutside services 15,465,674 16,056,866
Professional fee 1,721,247 3,879,389
Office supplies 2,584,991 2,587,516
Taxes and licenses 5,032,317 3,419,697
Transportation and travel 897,780 1,182,822
Representation 1,156,082 648,337
Advertising 371,761 111,360
Others 3,048,354 4,337,115
P

82,166,362157,033,0

P78,516,505 10

14. Retirement Costs

e-Business has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all

of its qualified employees. The Parent Company and Yehey! have an unfunded, noncontributory

defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of their qualified employees.

15, Equity
a. Capital Stock - Bl par value of common shares
The details of this account are shown below:

Authorized shares 2,250,000,000
Issued and ouistanding shares 2,235,390,633

b. Treasury stock

On various dates in 2009, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 26.9 million shares for an

aggregate price of P35.1 million. The aggregate amounts are presented in the consolidated
financial statements as ‘Treasury stock’.

In addition, on various dates in 2010, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 134.9 million

shares for an aggregate price of 153.4 million.

16. Related Party Transactions
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with, the Group; (b) associates; and,

(c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that
gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such
individual.

17. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, AFS investments,
financial assets at FVPL and notes payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, deposits and accounts payable and other current liabilities, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and these are summarized
below:

Credit Rigk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties failed to
discharge their contractual obligations.

The Group‘s credit exposures are to the National Government of the Philippines through investments
in government securities, to blue-chip local firms through equity and corporate bond holdings and to
commercial banks through its short-term depaosits.

Liguidity Risk

- Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Group closely monitors its cash
flows and ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.
The Group also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs. Any excess
cash is invested in short-term money market instruments. These investments are maintained to meet
maturing obligations.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that movements of market prices will adversely affect the Company*s financial
condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Company focuses on managing price (risk of loss
arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument) and foreign exchange risks
(risk of loss arising from fluctuations in exchange rates).

18. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

March March March
31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011

(a) Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company P323,444,464 P95,385,467 BR155,264,508
(b) Weighted average outstanding shares 2,235,390,633  2,235,390,633  2,046,869,795
(c) Basic/Diluted earnings (loss) per share

(a/b) P0.144 P0.0426 P0.0759
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PART 1~ FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financinl Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are fited as part ol this Form 17-Q.

ftern 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations

Financial Highlights

Unaudiked =~ - . - Audited

' fn Millions & March 31,2013 December31,2012 |  December 31, 2011

Balauce Sheet

Assets 8.628 7,285 5,842
Liabitities 088 1,193 309
Stockholders' Equity 7.540 6,632 5,333
Book Value per Share 3.3 2.97 - 2.63

Income Statement

Revenues 469 1,058 1,053
Expenses 118 524 512
Other Incame / (Charges) (13) 33 (11
Net Income 338 570 530
Earnings per Share 0.16 0.26 0.25

Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2013

The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php338.0 million as of March 31, 2013, It wenl up by 260%
compared to samse period Tast vear of Phpi02 million. On a pet shave basis, the company earned 0.16 centavos as of
March 31, 2013 compared to .26 centavos as of December 31, 2012,

Despite globa! macroeconomic headwinds such as the US fisenl cliff, the EU sovereign debt erisis, threat of a China
hard landing and slowing global growth, global equity markets have managed o perform strongly in 2012 on the
back of monetary easing by most central bankers. The ECB’s Outright Monetary Transactions (OMT) and the US
Fed’s Quantitative Easing 3 (QE3) in 3Q12 have spurred a rally in global equities markets.

The Philippine stock market rallied 17.80 percent during the first quarter on the back of optimism about the loeal
economy even as Fitch Ratings gave the Philippines its first ever investment grade rating. IN addition the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) continues to cut rates on its SDA causing investors to look elsewhere for yield. This has
caused fows into mutual funds to significantly increase and BSP has hinted several cuts are to be expected in the
fture.

On the fixed income side, yields were mostly on a downtrend as a resull ol credit rating upgrades from Standard &
Poor’s and Moody's and of easing monetary policy. 10-vear and 20-year benchmark vields were lower by 101 bps
and 61 bps respectively from end-2011 to end-2012,

The following summarizes the operating results of' the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Ine. (*eBiz")

eBiz continue to achicve record money transfer volume. However, despite transaction growth, money transler

revenues still fell 1.3% YoY to Phpl.6 million due to Lhe contractual reduction in the Company®s share of fees from
Western Union and an appreciating eurrency, The decling in monsy transfer revenues was partly offset by slightly



higher revenues from the Compony’s fareign exchange operations and other products which increased to Php25.5
million in first quarter of 2013 from Phpl1.7 million in of the same period last year, Meanwhile, as a result of the
Company’s continued cfforts o rationalize its costs, general and adminiswative expenses fell by 3% YoY to
Php7 1.7 million from Php74.2 million in March 2012, After provisions and taxes, eBiz posted a net income of
Php19.7 million in 2013, up 19% from Phpl0.2 million in 2012,

Yehey! Corporation (*Yehey”)

Total Revenues of the Company decreased by P 4.75 million from P9,59 million to last year P4.84 million of 1st
quarter of 2013 and 2012 respectively. This is due to substantial decrease in media sales, web development and
digital PR,

However, Total Cost and Expenses decreased by approximately P3.31 million due to decrease in Salaries & Wages
and Other Costs like Depreciation, Subseription and Writers® Fee, among others.

As such. Net Loss of the Company is P.3 million in March 20t3 from 2.2 million in 2012,

Philequity Management, Inc, (“PEMI™)

Net revenues as of March 31, 2013 climbed to Php36.3 million lrom Phpl9.4 million last year due Lo increase in
assets under management.

Expenses as of the st quarter of the year were 33% lower vs. [ast year, YTD net profit increased by 198% or Php
30.8 million (rom Phpl 0.3 million last year.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date.  There is no unusual natore or amount off
item hat affect the financials. There are no changes in the estimates of amount reported in the prior periods. There
were no issuance, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities for the period. WNo material events
subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been rellected in the financial statements for the interim
period. No significant elements of income or Joss that did not arise from the issuers continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management [irm o help improve the performances of
its subsidiaries. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the tinancial condition or results of
operations.

Key Performance Indieators

The Company sets certain performance measures to gauge its operating performance periodically (o assess its
overall state ol corporale health. Listed below are the major performance measures, which the Company has
identified as reliable performance indicators.

S March 31,2013 - Mareh 31, 2012
Current Ratig' 247.23% 614.535%
Assets to Equity® 114.43% 104.34%
Liabilities to Equity’ 14.43% 4.34%
Return on Average Assels’ 1.11% 1.52%

. Rewrn on Average Equity’ 1.26% 1.39%




. Fortuda -

Current Assets / Currenl Liabilities

= | Total Assets / Tolal Equity

3| Total Liabilities / Total Equity
| Net Income / Averape Total Assets
3

Net Income / Averape Total Equity

Causes for any material changes (+/~ 5% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statement items -- three month veviod ending 31-Miareh- 2013 versus 31-March-2012

77.37% decrease I internel sales and services
Mainly due Lo lower media sales, web development and dpsr revenue,

98.26% increase in money changing and foreign exchange
Mainly due to higher value of forex rates.

20.61% increase in inierest incame
Mainly due to additional fixed income securities.

87.3% increase in muinal fund income
Mzinly due to increase in assets under administration.

432,25% increase in trading gains{loss)
Mainly due to high market price of investments.

§43% increase in interest and bank charges
Primarily due to ncrease US dollar dengmivated loans from banks.

Balance Sheet itemns ~ March 31, 2013 versus end 2012

63% inciease in receivables .
Mainly due to advances for a new potential fund invesimeant company.

99% decrease in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVVPL)
Primarily due to dispesals of FVPL.

21% increase in avallable-for-sale securities
Largely due to increase in equities and mutual fund investments.

33% increase in cumulative unrealized gain on change in jair value of available-for-sale investments

Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and equilies securities.

52% increase in accowns payable and other cunrent liabifities
Significantly due to purchase of equily securilies payable in April 2013.

[¥3)
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this

report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized, in the City of Pasig
on May 20, 2013.

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
[ssuer

By:

-y

UNY], JR.
dent & COO

MARIMRE

Group Comptroiler



